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CORPORATE PROFILE
DRI

Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”
or “Springland”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) invest in and manage the retail chain business
which strategically focused in Greater Yangtze River Delta
region. Springland has been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2010 with
stock code 1700.

The Company has successfully tapped into cities along
Taihu Lake and Yangtze River and developed as a dual-
format retail chain operator, which operates department
store and supermarket under three core brands named
“Yaohan”, “Springland” and “Datonghua”. Its footprint
covers 22 cities including Wuxi, Zhenjiang, Nantong,
Ma’anshan, Changxing, Yangzhou, Jiaxing, Anging and
Wuhu in Jiangsu, Anhui and Zhejiang Provinces. At
year-end 2018, Springland operated 90 chain stores
with a gross area of approximately 1.73 million square
meters. With the excellent management and systematic
management capabilities, the Company has become a
member of the top tier PRC-based retail operator. This
dual-format retail business model caters for a broad
range of customer preferences from daily necessities
to luxury goods. Our retail business model generates
diversified revenue sources while lowering the operational
risks, creating synergies between department store and
supermarket business and enjoying greater economics of
scale.

The prime locations of our stores are crucial to the
success of the Group’s retail business. Most of our
shopping malls, department stores and city center
supermarkets are located in self-owned properties which
situated in prime shopping districts of the cities with high
population density. The community center supermarkets
are located in encircling communities with dense
population and convenient locations.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
DR

STORE NETWORK

O ~ O O &~ W N —

ZERAG
Commencement
Gross Floor* date of  Property
Areas operation  ownership
BEER B%R NEFER
(000 sg. m.)
(FFHK)
Department Store and BEREAHTL
Shopping Mall
Jiangsu Province TEE
Yixing Springland HEZH 29 12/1994  Primarlly owned ~ TEHA
Liyang Yaohan ZBNEE 27 09/2003  Primarily owned TERE
Danyang Yaohan RBNEH 58 09/2004  Owned BB
Yixing (Hexin Branch) HEME 30 11/2004  Owned BB
Changshu Yaohan BH\EH 27 12/2004  Lease HE
Jiangyin Yaohan TBNEH 38 09/2005  Owned BR
Wuxi Yaohan* E5 )\ AR 76 07/2006  Owned 85
Nantong Yaohan* mEEE 58 11/2009  Owned BA
Zhenjiang Yaohan BINEH 93 01/2010  Owned BE
Jintan Yaohan $18)\BH 25 12/2011 Owned 85
Zhenjiang Commercial Building* ENNSES 45 12/2011  Owned BA
Yangzhou Wanjiafu* ANERE" 25 12/2012  Owned BE
Yixing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall ~ E&\ARAEES 135 11/2015  Owned BB
Gaochun Yaohan B \E 39 01/2016  Managed g
Jiangyin Chengxing Yaohan TREENGH 58 06/2018  Lease HE
Anhui Province ZHE
Ma’anshan Yaohan SRINEH 36 11/2009  Owned 848
Xuancheng Yaohan SHAEH 35 12/2012  Owned BB
Anging Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall ~ RE VB4 EES 55 12/2016  Owned BB
Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall &\ B4 EES 110 12/2017  Owned BE
Tongling Yaohan PEN\EH 48 12/2018  Managed =3
Zhejiang Province Wirg
Changxing Yaohan RE\AH 36 08/2012  Owned BB
Jiaxing Yaohan Lifestyle Shopping Mall & & \ARE4EES 127 01/2016  Owned BE
Shaoxing Yaohan BENEH 56 12/2018  Managed BB
1,266
Supermarket by region AEFBD No. of stores
EHEE
Changzhou & Liyang B2 78 12
Jiangyin Tk 83 9
Zhenjiang & Danyang BILRAS 49 1
Yixing = 88 8
Wuxi Ei35 67 18
Jiaxing "R 6 2
Others Efh 9 10
461 70

Commencement date represents date of acquisition

FMEARKWER

Not included gross floor areas for car parks and other supporting functions

TREEESMEMEEN N ZEmME

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th B =R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEREE

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - GROUP (RMB MILLION)
HEMSRERAR -8 (AR% 88T

2018 11,637
2017 11,188

4.0%

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - DEPARTMENT STORE DIVISION (RMB MILLION)
HERSRERE-BEXK (ARB - 8E8T)

2018 I 3,653
2017 8,216

5.3%

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS - SUPERMARKET DIVISION (RMB MILLION)
HERSRERE-BWER (ARB :858T)

2018 I 2,984
2017 | 2,972

0.4%

OPERATING PROFIT (RMB MILLION)
LeguEN(ARE 858T)

2018 I 790
2017 692

14.1%

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF PARENT (RMB MILLION)
BLARAERAREEN (AR® - BET)

2018 I 100
2017 | 340

17.6%

EARNINGS PER SHARE (in RMB: (cents))
BRERN (AR% : %)

2018 E— 19
2017 | 15

27.1%
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ETREHREE

2018 is a year full of unexpected events. With the
unpredictably intensified trade dispute between China
and the U.S., it casted uncertainties to China’s economy.
While the private sector economy which accounts for
60% of China’s GDP also encountered unprecedented
difficulties during the time when the goal of financial
deleveraging was basically achieved. Nevertheless, under
the pressure of these theatrical changes, China’s overall
economy still sustained steady growth, with its national
GDP reached over RMB9O trillion, representing a year-
over-year increase of 6.6%. Growth of China’s economy
contributed about 30% to global economic growth.
Against the backdrop of decreasing momentum in global
economic growth; the decelerating rate of growth in
global trade; increasing hurdles and uncertainties, such a
national growth was not achieved easily.

At the same time, landscape of the retail industry was
also full of changes and hurdles, whereas unmanned
retailers were suddenly faltering, while Smart Communities
were rapidly developing. Thanks to the impetus of
leading IT conglomerates, the importance of offline
retail was rediscovered. New technologies such as
“Big Data”, “Artificial Intelligence”, and “Blockchain” are
widely applied. There were emerging strategies such as
Localization of Sales Channels, Social Fission Marketing in
the industry as well.

In the era of changes and transformation, Springland
continues to focus on refining our stores strategically.
By combining our strategy with new technologies, we
have upgraded and transformed our traditional stores to
enhance consumer shopping experience. As a result, our
total sales proceeds and operating profit has achieved
a relatively stable growth. The total sales proceeds of
the Group went up by 4.0% to approximately RMB11.6
billion as compared with previous year, while the profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent amounted to
approximately RMB400 million, an increase of 17.6%
year-on-year. The basic earnings per share was RMB19
cents. In light of the financial performance of the Group,
the boards of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposes a final dividend of HK$7 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ETEHREE

STRATEGY

We believe the current consumer trends centered around
the accurate response to consumers’ needs in efficient
and effective manner, while providing customers with
cost-effective goods and higher standard of services.
Therefore, customer is the core of our business. We
construct our core competitiveness from the aspects
of product improvement, experience enhancement,
and technological innovation. By these, we implement
our management reconstruction based on “People”,
“Products” and “Place”.

"People" is the foundation of business, and therefore
customer’s digital information is an important resource
for the growth of our business. In 2018, from operation
to marketing, Springland has been constantly upgrading
our digital management system, in order to accumulate
and process data, and to transform them into precious
commercial values. We have fully implemented
e-membership system in our stores. Also, by using
applications like WeChat group, WeChat service number,
mini mobile programs and other multi-channels, we
continuously interact and reach customers in different
social media, and eventually stimulated consumptions.
Another aspect of "People" is empowerment of our
employees. 2018 is a critical year for Springland to
implement the business partnership mechanism within the
Company. We have reorganized our business organization
into smaller units, allowing employees to become business
partners, and fully participating in management, and
eventually share the result of our business growth. This
mechanism effectively leverages the entrepreneurship of
partners, revitalizes momentum of future development and
strengthens Springland in retail arena.

KB
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ETREHREE

Being a connector between consumers and retail
stores, the concept of “Products” has become more
comprehensive and diversified with continuous growth
of consumer expectations. Aside from the function and
quality of the product, shopping experience and mental
satisfaction are also involved within the concept of
Product. At department store division, we pay special
attention to the needs of consumers through the
experience gained from daily operations. Our business
ratio and brand combination were adjusted in accordance
to the market trends. In terms of forming strategic
partnership, we select our cooperative enterprises and
brands which match with our philosophy in order to
form create the best synergies for market expansion.
In 2018, our department store readjustment area has
reached nearly 130,000 square meters, whereas in-
store merchandise mix of approximately 1,700 brands
were optimized and 130 new brands were introduced
throughout the year. Through the adjustment and
introduction of new market brands, we recorded
steady growth to our business performance. Regarding
supermarket division, we played a more active role in
direct purchase from the origin. Through setting up of
our fresh food and cold chain processing center, fresh
food and cold chain logistic center, origin procurement
optimization plan, on-the-site processing plan, etc.,
we actively improved the efficiency in our supply chain
management. Eventually, our customers are thrilled to see
our efforts presenting in the supermarket stores via the
improvement of product offering, product appearance,
and product display.

“Place” can be regarded as customer’s expectation in
experiential consumption, which is the exclusive value
of physical stores. Achievement of this was one of the
main tasks of Springland in 2018. At our department
stores and shopping malls, we actively implemented a
diversified product portfolio and construction of immersive
scene experience. On the one hand, we positioned our
brand around “lifestyle” by focusing on teenagers and
family groups. We integrated shopping, dining, and
entertainment elements into our projects by introducing
children experience studios, bookstores, virtual-reality
experience museums, archery halls into our department
stores. These facilities enabled us to fulfill the needs of our
target customers. On the other hand, we connect all the
consumers, the stores and our shopping malls by curating
themed activity, as an important way to create memorable
experience for our consumers. Through the themed
activities, we successfully created interactions among
stores and customers and gave comprehensive meanings
and experience to our department stores. These two
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ETEHREE

approaches have transformed our mall into a socialized
place for new experiences, bringing customers with more
excitement, entertainment and social interactions. At our
supermarkets, upgrades were made to our store design
and shelf display. We have increased the offerings of fixed
volume semi-prepackaged fresh foods, which is more
convenient for instant consumption of our customers. In
addition, multi-payment method is available in our stores,
which greatly reduced the checkout time. We also provide
a number of convenient services to customers, which
create more connections and interactions between our
supermarkets and consumers. Through these new and
improvement measures, consumers’ shopping experience
are eventually optimized.

Finally, Springland has been developing at a steady
pace. Under the direction of the asset-light strategy, our
department store business opened 1 new Yaohan in
Jiangyin Chengxing, and started to manage 2 stores in
Shaoxing and Tongling. We also completed the deal of
management of 3 department store projects, and for the
first time moved beyond our strategic presence in Jiangsu,
Zhejiang and Anhui provinces, by expanding our presence
into Henan province. We focus our supermarket expansion
in the existing regions and take advantage of mass
coverage with the aim to create a more mature coverage,
we aspired to provide residents with enhanced shopping
experience. 13 new stores were opened throughout the
year, and totally reached 70 total stores.

PROSPECTS

Given the complex nature of international economic
and trade conditions, declining of consumers’ and
investors’ confidence, as well as the backdrop of market
contraction, we are expecting a bearish macro economy
in 2019, whereas stableness and steadiness will be the
theme of the year. After the exploration and the trial and
error in 2018, the industry is looking for the answer to
direction of “New Retail” reform.

Nonetheless, retailers should stay vigilant reflecting,
exploring and evolving ourselves by embracing
consumers, new technologies amid challenges. Such shall
be the way for enterprises to keep up with the pace of the
world.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN

ETREHREE

In 2019, our goal is to create a more highly efficient
supply chain mechanism, and to provide consumers with
cost-effective goods and even better service. As such,
Springland will ensure its basic operational management
in accurate and sound manner, from selection of
merchandise, establishment of procurement professionals,
management of memberships, achieving accurate
marketing, to inventory management. We will further
enhance application of digital technologies to our stores
by integrating new technologies in our operations. We will
also promote retail efficiency improvement and customer
experience improvement, and blend online membership,
online purchase, and online operations into our daily lives.
We strive to provide stores known for their uniqueness
and excellence. We will solidify our irreplaceable presence
in the regions by our exclusive retail portfolio and service.
Under the clear and concise group strategy, we will
cultivate and recruit more talented individuals. With such
vibrant and energetic management team, we have been
reserving energy for the upcoming Spring.

Springland continues to progress actively on the path of
retail industry, as we are becoming one of the leaders in
the retail industry regionally. Our achievement can only
be realized with the management team and all employees
for their excellent work and contribution, the support
from our shareholders, business partners and consumers.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to send my sincere
gratitude and express my appreciation for their continual
contributions to the long-term development of our Group.

Chen Jiangiang
Chairman

25 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK D

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the reporting year, the Group continued to optimize
and upgrade our stores, in order to improve the overall
shopping environment, accommodate the latest consumer
trends and cope with the industry competitions.

For our department stores, approximately 130,000 square
meters of our stores have been readjusted, whereas in-
store merchandise mix of approximately 1,700 brands
were optimised and 130 new brands were introduced
throughout the year. In terms of the scale of readjustment,
Zhenjiang Yaohan continued to enrich our merchandise
mix by world-renowned cosmetics, watches, accessories,
clothing, and ladies’ bags brands, while consolidating
our presence in the high-end market in Zhenjiang and
creating competitive edge over our rivals through our
experiential shopping experience. At our Nantong Yaohan,
we introduced regionally-exclusive fashion brands as
well as premium restaurant brands. Such measures
were intended to enhance our customer retention
capability, attract younger generations, and become the
landmark store in Nantong core business district. While
in Wuxi Yaohan, we expanded the jewellery section and
refurnished the ladies’ shoes section; our Yixing Yaohan
create a thrilling British village-themed section for children,
which correspondingly consolidating our brand image and
position of related categories.

For our supermarkets, we completed optimization and
upgrade of 8 supermarkets. Among which, we adjusted
the market position of our supermarkets in Jiaxing and
Zhenjiang to create more synergies with our department
stores, whereas they were adjusted from hypermarkets to
city supermarkets. Through upgrading the merchandise
display, promotion from fashion KOLs, individualized
marketing, the area-effectiveness was further utilised and
satisfactory results were achieved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Stepping Up in Supply Chain Management

We introduced strategic communication mechanism with
retailers for our department stores. By such mechanism,
we can keep up with the dynamic pace of our suppliers
and understand the latest promotion focus. Both
our stores and the suppliers can gather information
for analysis, such as customer feedback, potential
customer resource construction and focus of resources
management, and eventually to reach consensus on
key cooperation topics. In view of international premium
brands gradually slowing down the pace of setting up
new stores, the Group was still able to obtain the support
from renowned thanks to the level of cooperation. During
the year, our Jiaxing Yaohan and Wuhu Yaohan set up
counters for Estee Lauder; while Shiseido’s presence can
be found at Changshu Yaohan, Ma’anshan Yaohan and
Jiaxing Yaohan.

MARKETING STRATEGIES

Construction of member resources as the key to the
increase the core competitiveness

Qur department stores actively promote the concept
of “Members’ Promotion” and aim to anchor as a
membership-based department store. We intend to
comprehensively promote members’ benefits and
construction, and integrate all marketing resources into
the membership card by highlighting the member’s
exclusive rights. We also increase the value of
membership by improving club activities such as “Fun for
Kids” and “Fashion & Entertainment”.

Upgrade content marketing via diversification of
marketing initiatives, accelerate the construction of
digital operation system

We are transforming marketing ideas, optimising
construction of system, and integrating internal and
external data resources. In the gradual process of
digitization of membership data, we are constructing
a premium and personalised marketing management
system based on the customer base. By categorizing and
selecting our members and consumers, we aim to achieve
effective and accurate segment marketing with the least
resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK D

In terms of innovative marketing, the Group intends to
establish an interactive relationship with our member
customers by creating a diversified use of our own IP
images. During the year, mascots such as Yangyang at
Yixing Yaohan store, Yixing store’s Huabao, and Laibao
at our store in Zhenjiang, and the Daibao at our Shaoxing
store, greeted our consumers one after another, who give
our stores a more vivid image and enrich our marketing
means. During the year, in addition to the use of social
media platforms such as WeChat, Weibo and Tiktok, as
well as media formats such as graphic-text and H5, our
department stores attempted to step up in creating short
videos, in order to accelerate the pace of dissemination.

NETWORK EXPANSION

Thanks to the excellence of our operational resilience,
the Group has begun to offer management contracts
to mall as a way to expanding our operating footprint.
In December 2018, Shaoxing Yaohan and Tongling
Yaohan, both of which are managed department stores
of the Group opened. Both malls are integrated hubs for
shopping, dining, and entertainment experience.

We continued to focus on community supermarkets for
our supermarket section. The Group carried through
its “1+N” expansion strategy and increased the density
of outlets by opening 13 new supermarkets during the
year. We also closed 3 supermarkets and upgraded
8 supermarkets in order to fit our community-oriented
approach. Our upgraded supermarkets fit consumers’
needs better with its improved atmosphere, merchandise
mix and functions.

By the end of 2018, the Group operated 20 department
stores and comprehensive lifestyle shopping malls with
a gross floor area of 1,120,000 square meters (2017:
1,050,000 square meters) and managed 3 stores with a
gross floor area of 143,000 square meters. The Group
also operated 70 supermarkets, with a gross floor area of
461,000 square meters (2017: 481,000 square meters).

* Total gross floor area include gross floor area for car
parks and other supporting functions

FRFEETH AEEEEBBITETS
TILERABEIPESR  REBEFELELEEHE
SERENEHBEER -FA - BEBEHED
D FEEMMESE  FETIRmERNKE
MEBENEHORESMEEBEHFMEE
HE O BEFHEEADNESZEEMEHE
MoEETEEEEFTE KR TENNE
MEMASEAEEBTE  URBEXHSE
e Ri%v BTN BEEEEREMN
REENEENE  EEXETRE T4
Ej]o

WiRER

BENAEBSHNEERN  AEERB
BEFTRETERSE - FPSEEAL - P
20184%F12H » A&EEHFA THEN\AEHK - iF
BENANEHRESERSG HRESERE -
BE - RRIREN — B — X EDH L -

HATT1+NIRERR - ZEME - FAFH
13 BMm R AERETEBHMEMN -
F;FJTSF'EJtm I ¥TSSK B T Pk 3 17 78 2T

CHANERME  REBERSE EREE
EIJE@%IJJ@ CHEDNAEEFNEREEES
szo

MR2018FFE  AEEKLE20MBE REE
By EBEEmMEA1128F K (2017
F 1058 FFK)  KESEERE - BEE
BAI143B T K LET0MEB™M  #£E
B46.1EF K (20174 481 EFFXK) -

* HEEHERREESTNEBEELE
EEmIR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s TSP was RMB11,637 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent was RMB396 million. The Directors
of the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$7
cents per share.

Total sales proceeds (“TSP”)! HEFSRIBER

M EE

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE - AEERHEE
FriszE@emEas ANRE1637EET 82
AERFEEARE SN ABARKIGHEETT °
AARESEZUHEE2018F12A31HIEF
FER A SR R ER AR S B BT -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLFE

Department store HEE
Supermarket i
Revenue WA
Operating profit? 1 A2
EBITDA ST & AN 8 A A

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent
Earnings per share (RMB: cents)

Calculated in term of TSP:
Operating margin®

— department store

— supermarket
Net profit margin®

SRREDEFAEA
& A 34 )
BROEMN (AR - D)

B EZ BB H

15
—HE

— i
8 e

2018 2017 Change
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F EHE)
(RMB million)

(AREB&ET)

11,637 11,188 4.0%
8,653 8,216 5.3%
2,984 2,972 0.4%
4,608 4,444 3.7%

790 692 14.1%
1,249 1,082 15.4%
400 340 17.6%
19 15 26.7%
8.7% 7.6%
1.2% 2.3%
3.4% 3.0%

1 Total sales proceeds (“TSP”) = revenue from direct sales + gross revenue from concessionaire sales + rental income
HEMBRIBARE -—BEEHERA + BTECHEMBRIBALEE + HalA

2 Operating profit = operating profit of department store + operating profit of supermarket
KREEN=AELLEN + BTL

gl

3 Operating margin = operating profit/TSP

REEME = EERTHEREN

HEE

4 Net profit margin = profit for the year/TSP
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MAN ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

Revenue & TSP WA ERSRELRE
Year ended 31 December 2018 Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ2018F1281ALEE HE017F12A31ALEE
Department Department
store Supermarket store  Supermarket
division division Total division division Total
BEER BHER &t BEEH e At
(RMB million)
(ARERET)
(2]
Revenue KA P
-
Direct sales BEBE 497 2477 2,974 400 2,550 2050 | L
Commission income from SHES R E g
concessionaire sales BEHA 1,274 62 1,336 1,228 52 1,280 |€u§ <zt
Rental income iE N 201 81 282 133 75 208 § %
Provision of management services REEERE 9 - 9 - - - ‘E’: g
Provision of food and beverage services  IREEE SR 7 - 7 6 - 6 =
7]
o
Total At 1,988 2,620 4,608 1,767 2,677 4,444
TSP HEFMBRERE
Direct sales ERHE 497 2417 2,974 400 2,550 2,950
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales B EEHEMGHE 7,954 427 8,381 7,683 347 8,030
Rental income iR N 202 80 282 133 75 208
Total At 8,653 2,984 11,637 8,216 2,972 11,188
Same store sales change AEHES 3.8% -1.0% 0.4% -3.4%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Department store division:

TSP from the department store division increased to
RMB8,653 million (2017: RMB8,216 million), and same
store sales grew to 3.8%. Direct sales as a percentage of
TSP from the department store division was 5.7% (2017:
4.9%) while gross revenue of concessionaire sales as a
percentage of TSP from the department store division was
91.9% (2017: 93.5%) for 2018.

TSP by five largest stores

The Group has increased the number of its stores, and
so the five largest stores aggregate contribution to TSP
decreased from 52.5% of last year to 51.6% of 2018.

In 2018, top 5 largest department stores by TSP:

BEXK:
BEXGHEEMGRBELEENZEARK
8,653E BT (2017F : AR¥8,216BH &
JC) 0 B 5 S K3.8% ° 20184 - H# 4
EHAEXKHEEMSHRELENRR A
5.7% (20174 : 4.9%) ' HTEEHELH A E
X HEMSHNIBLTENER A91.9% (2017
&1 03.5%) °

B T A 55 B BT 12 50 T AR B i & Bt
REBMPIEREEN TARNAABEEY
BEENHERSRELENRITEMK S
FH52.5%F% E20185F £951.6% °

2018%F I A KRB EIEHEFTSHIBEE

2018 2017

—2-N\% i
TSP TSP TSP TSP
$§&£Fr8  Contribution HE TS Contribution
RIEAE HEMSB NIBHBE HE R
(RMB million) MIEHE  (RMB million) KIEABRR
(AR¥EERT) BERtE (ARBBEET) BRI=E
Wuxi Yaohan w5\ E 1,373 15.9% 1,306 15.9%
Zhenjiang Yaohan BT \ER 983 11.3% 991 12.1%
Jiangyin Yaohan Lk E R 945 10.9% 943 11.5%
Jiaxing Yaohan =ENEH 606 7.0% 478* 5.8%*
Changshu Yaohan BRG] 559 6.5% 519* 6.3%*
Nantong Yaohan EREUANERSS 545* 6.3%* 550 6.7%
Liyang Yaohan =3 AN R e 533* 6.2%* 520 6.3%
Others Hth 4,187 48.4% 3,906 47.5%
8,653 100% 8,216 100%

* The store’s TSP is included in others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

TSP by merchandise categories

In 2018, the proportion of sale proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories™ are as
follows: fashion and apparel accounted for approximately
35.8% (2017: 37.8%); merchandise related to cosmetics
accounted for approximately 8.0% (2017: 6.9%);
watches, gold and jewelry accounted for approximately
25.1% (2017: 24.5%); footwear accounted for
approximately 7.3% (2017: 8.2%); athletic apparel and
casual wear accounted for approximately 11.9% (2017:
11.2%); children’s and home furnishing accounted
for approximately 7.1% (2017: 7.1%); the remaining
categories including household and electronic appliances,
rental income and others accounted for the remaining
4.8% (2017: 4.3%) of TSP of the department stores
division. The proportion of sales proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories are presented
in the below charts.

Department Store - 2018

Fashion and apparel BE
Ry 2 2 AR &

Watches, gold and jewelry

EBR B RE R 4.8%

Cosmetics e

= bk & 1.9% 35.8%

Footwear 7.3%

BERE 8%
Athletic apparel and casual wear \ 25.1%
18 )R 5 2 0K P9 R ~—”

Childern’s and home furnishing
BFEEIRXERMm

Others

Hh,

Commission rate from Concessionaire sales and
Comprehensive Gross Margin®

In 2018, the commission rate from concessionaire sales
was 16.0%, representing the same as in 2017. The
Comprehensive Gross Margin of department store division
was 23.4%, representing an increase of 1.5 percentage
points from 2017, mainly due to the increase of rental
income.

* Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current period’s presentation.

12 anan FE G Y B AT R 5L B AE BE B 7 B
2018F W mBRETEEXEBEEME
RIEBBEOLAOT  BERRHEDR
35.8% (20174 : 37.8%) : 1L 15 418.0%
(20174 : 6.9%) ~ 88k - BT LEA1E
#925.1% (20174 : 24.5%) : EBAE4I7.3%
(20174F : 8.2% ) : BH) AR 3% MK B AR A 49
11.9% (20174 : 11.2%) s EXERZKE A MG
#97.1% (201749 1 7.1%) - HmRER (82
FERANETHM Bl AREAM) (H4%
THI4.8% (20174 : 4.3%) ° L s n fB 2
DEEBEEEBHEEMERIEREN L0
TEAR -

Department Store — 2017
BE

4.3%
71%

o
11.2% 37.8%

8.2%

6.9%
\ 24.5% |

HerZLHE 2 FREEEFIF

Ro018F AERTEEHEMAESXA
16.0% * H2017F 5 F - AEXEBHEFEEE
FR B23.4% » B2017F LI R1 5B 5
2 TEHRESRANERAE -

RN RBEBECENOHE S KEAMEERQ
R

5 Comprehensive Gross Margin = (gross profit of direct sales + commission income from concessionaire sales + rental
income + other income (service fee collected from concessionaire and suppliers))/TSP.
FAENERESEMNRAEEMSTIALETE - REEMNBEEEHEEN FHELHEMAS KA - HalA

REMBPA(EZ2REFFELEBRREFNRBEE)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Supermarket division:

In 2018, TSP of the supermarket division reached
RMB2,984 million (2017: RMB2,972 million), increased by
0.4% year-on-year. It resulted majorly from the combined
impact of a net drop off of sales due to closing down for
optimisation of some supermarkets and sales contributed
from newly opened supermarkets. Direct sales to the
supermarket business contribution is 83.0% of the total
amount of sales proceeds (2017: 85.8%).

TSP by merchandise categories

Fresh food accounted for approximately 42.2%
(2017: 41.8%), dry foods accounted for approximately
30.5% (2017: 30.2%), non-food accounted for
approximately 22.8% (2017: 28.4%) and the remaining
categories including rental income and others accounted
for the remaining 4.5% (2017: 4.6%) of the TSP of the
supermarket division. The proportion of sales proceeds of
supermarket division from various merchandise categories
are presented in the below charts.

Supermarket - 2018

Fresh food B
MERM
Dry food
ZERM
Non-food merchandise 22.8%

" 42.2%
FRME ’

Others
= ﬁﬁ 30.5%

Direct sales margin and Comprehensive Gross Margin
Revenue from direct sales in the supermarket division
decreased from RMB2,550 million in 2017 to RMB2,477
million in 2018, representing a decrease of 2.8%. The
direct sales margin was 14.2% (2017: 12.3%). The
Comprehensive Gross Margin was 22.5% (2017: 22.9%).
The Group intended to maintain the Comprehensive Gross
Margin stable by increasing investments in equipment and
technology to expand the contribution from fresh food and
to enhance products quality and reduce wastage as well
as cost efficiency from strengthening the supply chain and
merchandise categories.

4.5%

2018%F MMTEBKHEEMBHREATEAR
B0 084 E BT (20175 : ARM2 97280 &
J0) 0 R R0.4%  EEBHNEH PIER
RN RS E TRAF R EBMEER
BHEAENEBGATVENS - AEHE
BT EREEMSHBRENER 583.0%
(20174 : 85.8%)

B dnan S B B AT R 5L E A BE B 7 H

FEREMEEBMESBEEMSRIELE
#942.2% (20174 : 41.8% ) & E B M1E
#930.5% (20174 : 30.2% ) : IE B B L
#4922.8% (20174 : 23.4% ) H&em o |
Fl(BEASWAREAM) EHRTHIE%
(20174 : 4.6%) - A @MBES D EGEBT
EBEEMSRBELENOLAIWNTETR -

Supermarket — 2017
izl

4.6%

23.4%
41.8%

\ 30.2%

EREEEFERGEEFE

BHEBNEZHEERAR01I7TEFHAR
2 550F BT N 22018F W A R#E2,477
BET R THK2.8%  HEHEMEFRX
B14.2% (20175 : 12.3%) @ SFAEF X A
22.5% (20174 : 22.9% ) ° £ B #3815 I o4
BERFEMIEARBERANHERBEE TR
R BBREARECNRIBLBEFHEIL
EEMAAES  BABMmME  BIEERE -
NIEERMERLEA EFE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Rental income

Rental income increased by 35.6% to RMB282 million
in 2018 from RMB208 million in 2017, mainly due to
increased rentable area and improved tenant mix in the
year.

Fee income from suppliers

In 2018, fee income from suppliers was RMB651 million
(2017: RMB622 million), fee income from suppliers as a
percentage of TSP was 5.6%, representing the same as
in 2017. Fee income from suppliers including promotion
fees, management fees paid by suppliers for participating
in promotional activities, reimbursing electricity charge and
material, etc.

Purchase of and changes in inventories

The purchase of and changes in inventories represents
the cost of sales for direct sales of goods. It decreased by
0.8% to RMB2,579 million in 2018 from RMB2,600 million
in 2017.

He

HEWABH017TFARB2085BE L K
35.6%E2018F ARK282F5E L TEAR
AEMAHAmELGMEAERABRNE -

REHEFNE MU A

2018F  REHEAMEMBAEARKE
651E BT (20174 : AR%6228E7T) ' 1h
HEFTSRIBRREE DL 495.6% » H120174F
FBE - REHREENEMKABERERZ
MESEHEEBMELNNREE SR8
UREEMATEEEMTRENKE - Ok
EEEER -

BEFERFESY
BEFEMFEEYTERBRERHEENK
K -BEFEMFEZEHH01T7TFENAR

2 600 @ & 7T 20.8% £ 2018 12,579 R
BT °

Expenses ZH
Year ended 31 December 2018 Year ended 31 December 2017
BEN18E12ANALER BENITE12ASIALER
Department Department
store  Supermarket store  Supermarket
division division  Headquarters Total % of TSP division division  Headquarters Total % of TSP
BEXH RmEH a3 &t e REER feiES) 23 s fhHE
(RMB million) fiezE (RMB milion) FiaaE
(AR¥EET) BERAY (AR%BET) CHERA
Staff costs SIRA 359 21 60 700 6.0% 349 286 68 703 6.3%
Depreciationand ~ FEREH
amortisation 428 92 3 523 4.5% 391 91 3 485 4.3%
Rental expenses ~ FERR 19 76 5 100 0.8% 21 80 5 106 0.9%
Otherexpenses  EHER 463 187 3 683 59% 4 157 56 624 56%
Total B 1,269 636 101 2,006 11.2% 1172 614 182 1918 17.1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Expenses consisted of staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses and other expenses. Other
expenses mainly included utility expenses, advertising
and promotion expenses, loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, impairment of other intangible assets, net
fair value losses of derivative instruments of which the
transaction is not qualified as hedges, office expenses,
maintenance costs, travelling expenses, entertainment
expenses, property tax and government surcharges and
other miscellaneous expenses.

In 2018, total expenses of the Group as a percentage
of TSP was 17.2% (2017: 17.1%) and total expenses
increased by 4.6% to RMB2,006 million from RMB1,918
million in 2017. The growth was primarily attributable to
the increase in the number of stores in accordance with
the expansion of store network, which resulting the rise in
depreciation and amortization, other operating expenses
and other miscellaneous expenses.

In 2018, staff costs decreased by 0.4% to approximately
RMB700 million as compared to 2017. Our management
has been making continuous effort on labour cost
optimisation measures in order to increase labour
efficiency. Depreciation and amortization increased by
7.8% to RMB523 million in 2018 from RMB485 million
in 2017. Other expenses increased by 9.6% to RMB683
million in 2018 from RMB624 million in 2017. The
increase in other expenses was attributable to net off the
increase in property tax, utilities expenses due to network
expansion, the comprehensive impacts induced by the
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment caused
by renovation and upgrading of existing properties,
and the provision for impairment of property, plant and
equipment, investment losses due to maturity of derivative
financial instruments and loss from closing down of some
loss-making supermarkets.

EREREIMA FEREE HEMX
EREMAX - HitHAXBRKERS  BES
EEER ME BEARENEEEE
ME BELREHREER HHEBELEE
MEEE  THAENRXZNITESRTA
REBRFE WRAEMX HENEME
A-ZIRkE XEREE WEN  BFW
MEMMEAMMERRM

20185 « AEBERBENIEEMSNIE
BEHNE D B17.2% (20176 1 17.1%)
BRAER2017TFHARK1,918F & TIEM
4.6%EAREE2,006EETT o ZEMEEEHRN
TEBENBEREBMEBHSKEE R
& & H 5 S 938 I FT BR o

R2018F - EIT AN B ARET00H &
JC + BE2017F AL - B A0.4% - BEERFE
ZHRTABBILERUIEAS SR - TER
B AR2017F AR Y485 H B T M7.8% =
2018F AR #523F &t + H i F X 2017
F624H B ILIE N9.6% E2018F683H &
T EMASEMEEZEARTERKERSE
BOMED KEBZLEBAE M ¥R
EMEMHTANALAFROME  BE K
BRBRBEK  FTIEWERE LEENRE
B THEHEHPZHNTESRIARE
BRUKRBHT S EBBTHEAEBRELR
BREMY -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK D

Operating profits

Operating profits for the Group (excluded interest and
unallocated gains, corporate and other unallocated
expenses and finance costs) increased to approximately
RMB790 million in 2018 from RMB692 million in 2017,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.1%. Operating
profits for the department store division increased from
RMB625 million in 2017 to approximately RMB754
million in 2018, representing a year-on-year increase of
20.6%. Due to improvement in operational efficiency,
the operation margin as a percentage of TSP for the
department store division was 8.7%, representing an
increase of 1.1 percentage point from 7.6% in 2017. For
the supermarket division, operating profits decreased
from RMB67 million in 2017 to approximately RMB36
million in 2018, representing a year-on-year decrease of
46.6%. The operating margin as a percentage of TSP
for the supermarket division was 1.2%, representing a
decline of 1.1 percentage points from 2.3% in 2017. The
drop in operating profits for supermarket business was
mainly due to loss from closing down of some loss-making
supermarkets, provision for impairment of property, plant
and equipment, and provision for impairment of other
intangible assets, higher costs and expenses for newly
open stores and keen market completion.

Net finance expenses

Net finance expenses are increased by RMB45 million
from 2017 to 2018, due to the interest expense derived
from capitalisation of construction in progress reduced by
RMB31 million as compared to the corresponding period
last year. These comprised finance charges on interest-
bearing debts and net interest income from surplus cash.

Finance costs increased from RMB66 million last year
to RMB110 million for 2018. The increase in net finance
expenses and finance costs were due to the increase
in total interest expenses and decrease in capitalized
interest. During the year, approximately RMB22 million of
the interest expenses has been capitalized as property
under development.

REBBOLERER (BRFEWA - K5 B
@= RN REMRS AT REEKA) A
2017 M AR #6928 & L% K £2018F 1
ARBT70EEL  RFER141% - AEH
KL HEF H2017F A REE25H BT
WRE2018FM ARKTSATEE T I F 1
£20.6% - AR 2R - AEEBL
ERFE (RIEESHIBARETE) #2017
FHT7.6%EIMIAEET D IHE8.7% BT
LG B2017FMm ARBTE & T
AP E2018F M ARMESCEH &t - IBF &
46.6% o HBTH HEIFAL &5 FI & (RHEE B
THARETE) B1.2% @ HH2017F 192.3%FE L
BRETIAGE DR - BMEBLLE BT
BEZHNRBEMIS S EBEMmMERAEEX -
FTRMERE MR EREER - FTIREM
BILEEREER WNHEEEBEREY
HAEENBARS R TEECERERT
NI FrEk -

MEXHFE
MBELZHFEATSERARNE K AR K
BRABBESHFEMA - 2018F &H20174F
EMARBISAE L TERENERE
ERNFEXEREAFRBRIHARKITE
BIT-

BERAREFEOH ST ME2018F AR
BI10B BT MERTNIGINEZHR LT
BEXHEMEFERAZERMEB DB - &
W OARB2LEBETHFERAIHE AL
REZBEES -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Income tax expenses

As a result of the increase in profit before tax, income tax
expenses for the current year increased to RMB220 million
from the previous year. The effective tax rate decreased to
35.7% (2017: 36.3%).

ASSETS BASE

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
premium and long-term prepayments

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premium
and long term prepayments amounted to approximately
RMB10,526 million (2017: RMB10,765 million). Those
assets were held for long-term operations used by the
Group.

Capital expenditure of the Group during 2018 amounted
to approximately RMB366 million (2017: RMB833 million).
Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets.

Capital commitments at year-end 2018 amounted to
RMB331 million (2017: RMB400 million), representing
mainly construction items which contracted from Xishan
project.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one month and five years
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective time deposit
rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits increased
from RMB511 million at year-end 2017 to RMB617 million
at year-end 2018 mainly resulting from the increase of net
cash inflow from operations, as well as the expansion of the
Group was more asset-light-oriented, as such investment
for asset-heavy projects was reduced. About 95% cash
and cash equivalents were denominated as RMB.

FrEsimx

ERBAEFIER  ANFEMERATEA
FHRLIERFE20BET - ARREREER
35.7% (2017 : 36.3%) °

EEER

ME BERRZE BT HEESRRY
A RE

ME - -BEREE BANLIHLESRES
TN RIERELHARKE10,526F & T (2017
F: AR®10,76688 L) - LMEETAE
ERERFE  WERZERR -

REBER2018FANEARARAEINABARYE
3668 & IT (20174 : ARMSIZEETL) - &
AAXBEEAEDE  BELEE BN
wrEe RHEMEREE -

R2018FFE  AEBNEREKEBARE
3B1HE T (20174 : ARBL4006ETT) ' £
DREARERPHOFLIER -

ReRBRLEEY EHER

RITFEFRRIES HRITERF X RIUT B
MNE - EMERB—BAAZRFHRTE
BIEAREBMBESERMT  WIREH
BEMERMERDRAE - Re MRS FE
Y ERETRNREEERENTEMES -

ReERREEEY - T HREFEREFTN2017F
FEMNARESIEBTERE2018FFEHN
AREBI7TEB L TEHAREENKEER
RemAFEERNLEENIER HRENUE
BEART FARELBEHEBMEARDAAHR -
#5%MERFEEEBMUAREE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK D

Restricted cash

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations issued
by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC, the Group
was required to deposit bank balances in the Group’s
designated accounts or through issuing a letter of bank
guarantee, the total amount of which shall not be less
than 30% of the balance of advances from customers for
sales of prepaid cards. At year-end 2018, the Group has
deposited cash in the amount of RMB117 million (2017:
RMB113 million) in the Group’s designated accounts.

TREASURY POLICY

Capital structure management

The total interest bearing debts of the Group increased
to RMB3,095 million (2017: RMB2,991 million) at year-
end 2018, after debt repayment of RMB1,406 million and
a new drawdown of RMB1,437 million for general funding
purposes, during the year. All the outstanding debts are
on an unsecured basis.

The Group always strives to lower foreign exchange
risk and also strives to lower the borrowing margin, to
diversify the funding sources and to maintain a suitable
maturity profile relative to the overall use of funds. The
Group continued to maintain long-term relationships with
a number of PRC and overseas banks in order to diversify
the funding sources. At year-end 2018, five local and
overseas banks, including PRC banks provided banking
facilities to the Group as funding alternatives.

On 25 March 2016, the Group issued the first tranche
of medium-term financing notes at par value of RMB300
million with the nominal interest rate of 4.78% per annum
and the effective interest rate of 5.13% per annum. The
medium-term financing notes matured on 25 March 2019,
and the Group has repaid the principal and interests in full.
On 21 June 2016, the Group also issued the first tranche
of its corporate bonds at par value of RMB800 million
with a term of 3 years from the date of issuance with the
nominal interest rate of 4.87% per annum and the effective
interest rate of 5.22% per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

The following graph shows the percentages of total
outstanding gross debts sourced from banks and the debt
capital markets in the past three years.

Sources of Financing at Year-end
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As part of the Group’s capital management strategy, the
Group repurchased 167.4 million (2017: 106.8 million)
shares through the Stock Exchange in the year, which will
further enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group has been careful and prudent in using debt
gearing to expand its business in accordance with its
business strategy. The Group’s gearing ratio, as measured
by Net Debt to Equity ratio!, stayed at 54.3% at year-
end 2018 (2017: 54.5%). The Group’s Interest Coverage?
increased to 9.5 times for 2018 (2017: 9.1 times) as cash
inflow from the business remained strong. The stable
gearing and strong ability to meet interest payments
reflected the Group’s resilience.

1 Net Debt to Equity is defined as borrowings, trade
payables, and other payable and accruals less cash and
bank balances, time deposits and restricted cash divided
by equity plus net debt of the Group

2 Interest Coverage is defined as earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization divided by finance
costs plus capitalized interest

EBHMTEARNETIERRE  RERNS BB A
BE167.48 &M (2017F  106.88 &
f%) - BRE—FIRABREEE-

AEBEFRAERNEBABERERMOE
HeoEBEZEHKERREREEL X FTED
B EER2018F F K £54.3% (20174 :
545%) -HREBHHRE S MARTES
EEWF BB EP2018F # K £9.5(F
(20175 : 9.11%) - REBEXRERNHZSTF
BEE RSB N -

1 FEBEBRRERLEEERER BN
BHHIE - AN FIARER B RRR
ERBITET  THEFINZRERES
BERIABCR R = I E TS F R

2 MBENEXERRETITENEMERIA
MERATNEREHE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #th B =R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

The graph below shows the level of leverage and our
ability to meet interest payment obligations in the past
three years.
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Net Debt to Equity and Interest Coverage at Year-end
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Liquidity management REBESER

As year-end 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits and restricted cash totaling
RMB735 million (2017: RMB624 million). All the deposits
are placed with banks with strong credit ratings and the
counterparty risk is monitored on a regular basis.

Liquidity is available from the undrawn committed facilities
offered by the Group’s relationship banks. These facilities,
amounted to RMB1,146 million and the Group can obtain
additional loans of up to RMB2,000 million pursuant to the
official approval from the Inter-bank Dealers Association
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, at
year-end 2018, essentially allowing the Group to obtain
additional liquidity as the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

Interest rate management

Appropriate hedging strategies, if necessary, are adopted
to manage exposure to projected movements in the
interest rate. The fixed debt ratio decreased to 57.4% at
year-end 2018 from 59.4% at year-end 2017 following
repayment of RMB4 million fixed rate bank loans and new
borrowing of RMB107 million foreign currencies floating
rate bank loans during 2018.

The diagram below shows the fixed rate debt and floating
rate debt portions in the past three years.
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Foreign exchange management

The Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. The Group
conducted its business operations in the PRC and its
revenues and expenses were denominated in RMB. The
Group relies principally on cash flows generated from
its operating activities as its primary source of liquidity.
Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings and bank
balances were denominated in HK$, SGD or US$ which
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risks attributable
to fluctuations in exchange rates between HK$, SGD or
US$ and RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmKR D

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk and interest
rate exposure by performing regular reviews of the
Group’s interest rate and net foreign exchange exposures.
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates related primarily to the Group’s bank loans
with floating interest rates.

Use of derivatives
At year-end 2018, all derivatives were matured.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group had no material contingent liabilities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China thus the Group’s
business activities are regulated by competent authorities,
laws and regulations of the Chinese government. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business of the
Group. They included laws and regulations on health and
safety, employment, ambient air quality and noise control
as well as fire prevention.

The Group has registered its own domain name and
applied for or registered a number of trademarks of
multiple categories in mainland China and Hong Kong to
safeguard the intellectual property rights.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
ANALYSIS

The following is the key financial ratios used to interpret
the financial performance and position of the Company.

Return on equity
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Net asset per share
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chen Jiangiang

aged 61 (appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Chen, the founder and Chairman of the Group and has
been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer in March
2018, is responsible for the overall corporate strategy
planning, business development, investment and day-
to-day business and management of the Group. Since
the Group’s incorporation in 1996, Mr. Chen has been
engaging in retail business and actively participating in the
management and development of the Group’s business.
He holds an executive master's degree in business
administration from China Europe International Business
School. Mr. Chen is the chairman of honors of the World
Chinese Traders General Association (Hong Kong) Ltd. (&
B E 54 €). Mr. Chen is also the sole director
and shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation, the
controlling shareholder and an associated corporation of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tao Qingrong

aged 58 (appointed on 2 September 2006)

Mr. Tao has been the non-executive director of the
Company since November 2018. From September 2006
to November 2018, he was the executive director of the
Company. He also served as vice Chairman and vice
president of the Group from March 2018 to November
2018 and was primarily responsible for the day-to-day
management of business and operation of the Group. Mr.
Tao joined the Group in October 2002 as general manager
of Shanghai Springland Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd
(EBEMEREAR AR and later was appointed as
general manager of the department store business of the
Group. Mr. Tao is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tao worked for
Shanghai Soap Co., Ltd. (E/&#| 2B R /A7) as sales and
marketing director from 1997 to 2000, and Shanghai Soap
(Group) Product Sales Co., Ltd. (Eig#l2 (£E) EmRY
EHBRAR]) as general manager from 2000 to 2002. Mr.
Tao holds a master’s degree in system engineering from
the Shanghai Institute of Mechanical Technology (/81
#E2PT) (later known as University of Shanghai for Science
and Technology) and an executive master’s degree in
business administration from China Europe International
Business School. Mr. Tao is interested in approximately
38.46% of the shareholding of Celestial Spring Limited,
being a shareholder holding approximately 1.14%
shareholding of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

aged 51 (appointed on 19 July 2010)

Mr. Fung is a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is
currently the Managing Director of Global Link (CHINA)
Company Limited, a company engaged in the supply of TV
media programmes. He had previously worked as a senior
manager of the North Asia division of ESPN ASIA Limited,
a diversified sports, entertainment and media company
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Lin Zhijun (MEE)

aged 64 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Lin is the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is now the vice
president and dean of School of Business in Macau
University of Science and Technology. Dr. Lin holds a
Master of Science degree in accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada and a Ph.D degree in economics
(accounting) from Xiamen University. Since 1983, Dr. Lin
worked for various facilities in many academic institutes,
including Xiamen University, and was a visiting professor
in the University of Hong Kong, tenured professor in the
Faculty of Management of the University of Lethbridge
in Canada and head and professor of the Department of
Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University.
He worked for an international accounting firm, Touche
Ross & Co. Canada (now known as “Deloitte”) in Toronto
from 1982 to 1983. Dr. Lin is also a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(CICPA) and the Australian Institute of Certified
Management Accountants (CMA). He is a member of
various educational accounting associations including
the American Accounting Association, the International
Association for Accounting Education and Research and
the Hong Kong Association for Accounting Education.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Dr. Lin is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Everbright Limited (stock code: 0165), Sinotruk
(Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 3808), Dali Foods
Group Company Limited (stock code: 3799), CITIC
Dameng Holding Limited (stock code: 1091), and BOCOM
International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
3329), all of them are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. From 2012 to April 2014, Dr. Lin served as
independent non-executive director of Zhengzhou Coal
Mining Machinery Group Company Limited (stock code:
0564), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Zhang Weijiong (3% 4t 1)

aged 66 (appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Zhang is the chairman of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Zhang joined China
Europe International Business School (“CEIBS”) in 1997.
Dr. Zhang is currently serves as professor of strategy,
vice president and co-dean, member of the academic
council at CEIBS. He holds a bachelor’s degree in power
mechanical engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University
and a MSc in marketing and a Ph.D in strategy from
the faculty of commerce and business administration of
the University of British Columbia, Canada. Dr. Zhang
was associate dean and associate professor at the
Management School of Shanghai Jiaotong University. He
is currently an external director of HUAYU Automotive
Systems Co., Ltd (stock code: 600741), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From 2010 to June
2016, Dr. Zhang served as independent non-executive
director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,
Ltd (stock codes: 600196 and 2196), a company dual
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock
Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEE

Cheung Yat Ming* (3 —'8)

aged 50 (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Cheung is a member of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director,
chief executive officer and responsible officer of New
Century Asset Management Limited, a REIT manager of
New Century Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code:
1275), a REIT listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheung
holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) and a fellow (FCA) of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW).

Mr. Cheung has extensive experience in the fields of
investment, real estate and property market research,
corporate finance and auditing. Mr. Cheung worked for
Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and China from
1991 to 1994. In September 1994, Mr. Cheung joined
Citibank (now named Citigroup) as an accountant and
administration manager and held the position of assistant
vice president from September 1996. In October 1997,
he started working in Salomon Smith Barney (now named
Citigroup) as an equity research analyst. Since May 1999,
Mr. Cheung worked for Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette.
He joined HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited as the head of
Hong Kong and China property research department from
November 2000 to April 2005. Mr. Cheung joined Cohen
& Steers Asia Limited in 2005 as a senior vice president
and executive director, supervising its Asia Pacific real
estate investment and research functions. Mr. Cheung
worked as the head of research of DBS Vickers (Hong
Kong) Limited from June 2009 to 2011. From August
2011 to 2013, Mr. Cheung has been acting as the chief
investment officer of Neutron INV Partners Limited and
has been involved in work such as setting up the Neutron
Greater China Equity Fund and marketing to local and
overseas institutional investors, consultants, distribution
intermediaries. He currently is an independent non-
executive director of Best Pacific International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2111), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange.

* whose former name is Cheung Yiu Tai (name change with
effect from 11 August 1987)

Save as disclosed, the Directors do not hold any
directorships in other listed public companies currently
and in the last three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange, save for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 which requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. No incident of non-
compliance by Directors was noted by the Company in
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board and management are committed to compliance
with statutory and regulatory corporate governance
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,
accountability, responsibility and fairness. The Board
reviewed the corporate governance practices from time
to time to ensure alignment of interests and expectations
from our shareholders, the public investors and the other
stakeholders.

THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded
of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular
basis. Specific confirmation has been obtained from
each Director to confirm compliance with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2018.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group at the end of the financial year and
profit or loss for the financial year. The Directors have
prepared the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates,
and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

The Directors are not aware that any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.
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OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

BMHONERRSE

THE BOARD
E=xg

Leadership; Strategy Planning; Corporate Governance

Remuneration Committee

FMEES

Sets remuneration policy for
Executive Directors
RBATE FHIETH R
Determines Executive
Directors’ remuneration and
incentives

BEERITE SN R

EE S RMAE ©XER

Nomination Committee

REZES

Recommends Board
appointments
NEEFZAMNEZEFSIRLER
Reviews Board structure,
composition and diversity
BN EFGEE  EANRZT
s

Assesses independence of
Independent Non-Executive
Directors

FHME B IEMITE =B

Audit Committee

BEREES

Reviews risk management
and internal controls systems
TR B IR R NERE I R
Monitors internal and
external auditors

BE YA BP B A% BPPT R NI A%
ZLAD

Monitors overall financial
reporting process

EBEMKERER

The Board

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
corporate governance and is ultimately accountable
for the Group’s activities, strategies and financial
performance. The Board has established three committees
to manage and oversee the specified affairs of the
Group. Certain important matters involving finance and
shareholders’ interest are reserved for approval by the
Board, including annual budget, annual and interim results
announcements, dividends, major investment, equity-
related capital market operations, major mergers and
acquisition and disposal, major connected transactions,
annual risk management and internal control evaluation
as well as appointment of Director(s) following the
recommendation(s) by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. The Board has to make decision objectively
in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.
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All operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. Day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group are the responsibilities of senior
management and their functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Board and Committee Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
electronic means of communication. Throughout the
year, five Board meetings were held, during which the
Directors discussed matters relating to the re-election
of Directors, reviewed and monitored the financial and
operation performance of the Group and approved the
annual budget for the Group. Besides, the Board also
discussed and resolved resolutions in relation to entering
into a memorandum of understanding with Jimailong
Management Co., as well as re-designation of director and
appointment of senior management of the Group. Notice
and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the
meetings in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company’s Articles and Association contain provisions
requiring the Directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Since 21 March 2018, Mr. Chen Jiangiang has been our
Chairman and chief executive officer. Mr. Chen has been
a director of Jiangsu Springland Enterprise Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd (T & 2= i B PR 42 f 52 B A PR A 7))
since its incorporation in 1996 and has served as the
director of the major operating subsidiaries of the Group.
With extensive experience in the retail business, Mr.
Chen is responsible for the overall corporate strategies,
planning, business development and investment of our
Group and is instrumental to our growth and business
expansion since his joining of the Group in 1996. Our
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the management of our Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and our Board, which comprises
experienced and high-calibre individuals. Our Board
currently comprises one executive Director, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence
element in its composition.

Board size, composition and appointment

There are currently 6 Directors on the Board including:
1 Executive Director and 5 Non-Executive Directors
(including 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors).

The Company followed a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board
for decision. Thereafter, all Directors are subject to
election by shareholders at the AGM in their first year of
appointment.
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Each Non-executive Director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company, for a
specific term of not more than three years subject to
re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or the next AGM
of the Company respectively and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the meeting. In addition, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least every three years
and one-third (or the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of Directors shall retire from office every year at
the Company’s AGM.

Directors’ attendance of meeting
The attendance record of each Director for the meetings
held during the year 2018 is set out as follows:

K”Aﬂ%%%ﬂﬁ%%éﬁﬁ“ﬂﬂié&m
FEEMTEB=F LAT HER
BARRMEBER Zgi{iuiﬁﬁ§$/\ﬁw
RERIGEMARBEFENEIMNES
TRETARRAGHAR TTF&%@E
Renlt IREREERBERECLT 2R
EZNERIEB-FRESE MEBFEE
=pz— (REBEBAIR=0z—)2&
ERARRABRBFREGLER -

EEHESE
BEEFHE2018FEMBANERBRAT

Attendance/Number of meetings during the year

FREERY/eERE
Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM
¥MZzEe REZEE EBRZEE
EEE Ezeed = =t 8% RREEXAE
Executive Directors BE=s
Chen Jiangiang REs 5/5 - - - 1
Yu Yaoming (resigned on 1525 (120185
21 March 2018) 3A21AE) 0/0 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Tao Qingrong (redesignated on FES (20185
5 November 2018) 115831 5/5 - - - 0
Fung Hiu Chuen, John bl =2 5/5 22 2/2 3/3 1
Independent Non-executive BUFHITES
Directors
Lin Zhijun HEE 5/5 2/2 2/2 3/3 0
Zhang Weiiong REM 5/5 2/2 2/2 3/3 0
Cheung Yat Ming KB 5/5 2/2 2/2 3/3 1
Representatives of the external auditor participated in INEHEINR XX NEESAETES D%
every Audit Committee meeting and the Company’s 2018 MEFEARAR01I8FEREBFAE -

AGM.
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Induction, training and continuing development

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his appointment so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills for the purpose of discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.
All Directors are required to provide the Company with
the records of the training they received annually. For the
year 2018, all Directors have confirmed that they have
attended training sessions by reading regulatory updates
or attending briefings/seminars/conferences relevant to
the business or their directors’ duties.

The Board is provided with monthly management updates
which contain the latest financials and highlights of key
matters of the Group. The management updates give a
fair and understandable assessment in sufficient details
to assess the performance, position and prospects of the
Group.

Directors’ commitments

Each Director confirmed that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company for the year
2018. All Directors have disclosed to the Company the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments, with the
identity of the public companies or organizations. Each
Director is also requested to provide a confirmation to the
Company semi-annually and notify the Company Secretary
in a timely manner of any change of such information.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage for the Directors in connection with the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following three committees
(all chaired by Independent Non-executive Directors)
with defined terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules:

° Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee

° Audit Committee

All committees were set up with a written terms of
reference, which are in line with the relevant Corporate
Governance Code and available to shareholders on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, to
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Each Committee
has accessed to independent advice and counsel as
required and is supported by the Company Secretary. To
further reinforce independence and effectiveness, all Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members.

Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report were shown below:

Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Fung Hiu Chuen, John who
is a Non-executive Director of the Company, all the
other members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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Roles and duties

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least
once a year. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure of all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and reviews the special
remuneration packages of all executive Directors.
The Human Resources Department of the Group is
responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and makes recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy, structure and
remuneration packages.

Summary of work done
During the year, the Remuneration Committee:

° reviewed and determined the amount of bonuses
awarded to the Executive Directors based on
personal and company performances for the year
2017; and

e approved and reviewed senior management’s
remuneration, including annual incentive payment for
2017 and 2018 and annual pay review for 2018 and
2019.

Nomination Committee
The members of the Nomination Committee during the
year and up to the date of this report were shown below:

Zhang Weijiong (Chairman)
Lin Zhijun

Cheung Yat Ming

Fung Hiu Chuen, John

With the exception of Fung Hiu Chuen, John who is a
Non-executive Director of the Company, all the other
members of the Nomination Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.
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Roles and duties

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a
year. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the
review of Board structure and composition, identification
and recommendation to the Board of possible appointees
as Directors, making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to appointment or reappointment of
Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessing
the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record
of accomplishment in their chosen fields and who
possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to
effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for
their ability to exercise good judgment, and to provide
practical insights and diverse perspectives. Candidates
also will be assessed in the context of the then-current
composition of the Board, the operating requirements of
the Group. In conducting this assessment, the Nomination
Committee will, in connection with its assessment and
recommendation of candidates for director, consider
diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other
factors as it deems appropriate given the current and
anticipated future needs of the Board and the Company,
and to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,
qualities and skills on the Board.

Balance, diversity and skills

The composition, structure and size of the Board are
reviewed at least annually by the Nomination Committee
to ensure that it has a balance of appropriate skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to meet the
needs of the business of the Group.

Members of the Board have brought a wide spectrum
of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions. Details of the Directors
and relevant relationships amongst each other are set out
in “Biographical Details of Directors” section in this report.
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As at 31 December 2018, there were 5 Non-executive M2018F12H31H » AR BB RAIFFNITE
Directors drawn from diverse and complementary T XATABS EREZER
background:
Experience/Expertise Name of Directors
BB ER EEnA
1 General Management
ReERE
Broad business experience through a senior level position in another Tao Qingrong
company. b B &8
RE—RAIEAZBMIEREZHEELR - Fung Hiu Chuen, John
55 B B
Cheung Yat Ming
K —I5
2 Financial Services and Investment
eRBRBERIRE
Experience in the financial services industry or experience in overseeing Cheung Yat Ming
financial transactions and investment management. w5
BREERRBEELEENBRIRREBTENLR -
3 Marco-environment affecting the Group
HEEENZBERER
Expertise in the economic, political or social environment affecting the Group ~ Zhang Weijiong
and its operation, with a focus in China. o 4 A
HYB2EEREEBNLE  BUASH@RE - LESHFBBERNRM
4 “Audit Committee” Accounting Expertise
[BEXEZEEE|8FHER
Expertise based on the definition of “Audit Committee accounting expertise” Lin Zhijun
under the Listing Rules. MEE
BELMRAEZZESEHERIMACZER Cheung Yat Ming
w—IS
5 Risk Management
R g EE
An understanding of the Board’s role in overseeing of risk management Lin Zhijun
principles and practices, including an understanding of current risk MEE

management principles and practices, which may have been gained through Zhang Weijiong
current or previous experience on another public company board committee. & #E A7
BREFGHEZEREERALREENAG  BEEMBRRITHNEREER  Cheung Yat Ming
AINRER S FHENRBATEKEBAXZAEES —tTTAAEZTENHR KB

(VAR
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered that the existing
members of the Board have a diverse range of business,
financial and professional expertise in light of the business
of the Company. While the Nomination Committee did
not think setting specific requirements for such criteria
as gender and age for the Board composition are
appropriate, it believed that these are important elements
which will bring a diversity of perspectives into the Board
and, along with a diverse mix of skills, experience and
knowledge that the Board should have in view of the
prevailing business strategy of the Company, should be
taken into consideration for all Board appointments in the
future.

Measurable objectives & Progress

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, professional
experience, skill, knowledge and length of services. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee reviewed the Board’s
composition under diversified perspectives, and monitored
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy annually.
In accordance with its annual practice, the Nomination
Committee was satisfied that the diversity of the Board
was optimal.
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As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition
under major diversified perspectives was summarised as
follows:

RARERH EFQ@HETEZTLEERN
AR

Board Diversity EE&/K & % T/t

Category
gl

Educational Background
BEER

Age
FiR

Board Tenure

EFeFE

Core Expertise
FEHEEKR

Summary of work done
During the year, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, including the independence of the
three Independent Non-executive Directors and its
diversity;

e considered the nomination of two retiring Directors
for the Board’s recommendation to stand for
re-election by shareholders at the 2018 AGM of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive
Director of his independence to the Group. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent with respect to the Group.

Financial

Rl

TEBE
FAR-RHEES:

s RUEFENRE RELMAK 81
CERBUFRTEFNBELERAESZ T
1t

s EZREMABARTEFNRERAL UHEFS
HBRREA D A2018F ERRBF K
ELERERERESE -

REBELEMHRAUNER  ARRCDESELE
VEMITESHEMER  EREBHRNA
KSENFIM - NRRARRBBABRELIERIT
E=BEINAEHE -
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Audit Committee
The members of the Audit Committee during the year and
up to the date of this report were shown below:

Lin Zhijun (Chairman)
Zhang Weijiong
Cheung Yat Ming

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company.

Role and duties

The Audit Committee meets regularly, at least twice a
year, and gives its full attention to the matters submitted.
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include the review of both the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee also oversees the engagement of the external
auditor of the Group and reviews its independence as
well as the effectiveness of the audit process. The Board
expects the Audit Committee members to exercise
independent judgment in conducting the business of the
Audit Committee. A high level review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group is performed at each year end.

Summary of work done
The work performed by the Audit Committee during 2018
included:

° reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year 2017 and
the related final results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e reviewed the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2017 Annual
Report of the Company, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

ERERS - .
FARBILELAREBHNEZZEGKEN
T

—

MEE(£E)
R 41
w15

REZHEIRANARNIBUIFRNTES -

B
ERZESEFTHRERIMA  2EHE
EERRZEENERE BRZEEMNE
ZEAEREENASENGESVBHRE LR
ST AEPEE AN E b B IR R AR AR o %ﬁi
B NEEASEIINEZHMHEE -
BEBIUHREBEZEFOB R - i%’“%
HEZZEENERNEREZE KR
EH B HE - FERZE2RNEFNFRY
A& E R A PR R R B IR R AR RBGE
TEBIREET -

TIEBZ
EZEEESN2018FEN T IEBTE

o FEMALEBEHZE2017TFFENKEEZELE
EYBERERUARBBANEFEENE
WiEmESa e

o FEHHENARF2017FFHRACEER
BENWREFTH WEFEFTGHA
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reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and the related interim results
announcement, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval,

reviewed and approved of Ernst & Young’s
confirmation of independence, its reports for the
Audit Committee and management representation
letters for the year 2017, with a recommendation to
the Board for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young at
the 2018 AGM;

considered and endorsed the proposed connected
transactions, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

reviewed and considered the scope of work and fee
proposals of the external auditor for the 2018; and

conducted a high level review of the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group (covering financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions)
by considering the work of the management,
including a review of the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, and training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee

has

reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated

financial statements for the year 2018, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, in conjunction with the external auditor, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval.

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FEith BB 42 A B R /2 A

REE
EEHNAEEHZ2018FENKLEREE
MHHRE BRAKREXRANGHRAILE

EHAREFE £2018F6 4308 [F /<@
ANAREEZESMBERRALBEN
RHIZENE  VTERZESFoE

PREZE2017TFFE B LBARATKE
STRE ST S I MRS 0 B
ﬁéﬁamﬁi&ﬁﬁFﬁLu# I
MESFCRZN2018ERBEAES FEH
FHELKE mLE‘rﬁ%i%Fﬁ ;

BERARFRENBER S TREHE
=R

EHIMNEZ SR 2018 F B A Mz H &
TiESBENMERER M

BEBREEEREMNTIE  HAEBE AN
EEIEFIE R B IR R AW CRE 7S
EERAREENAREREENRE) &
TEBARE  BEREARQBEER
MBI BIERBETANER - BTERE
R 2R RH - AR ABrEIIEE
r#EH -

TAER  BREZ B EERINEZEEM

EREFEME-
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The Audit Committee is satisfied with the external
auditor’s work, its independence and objectivity, and
therefore recommended to the Board that Ernst & Young
be re-appointed as the Company’s external auditor for
2019 subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report).

ERZEQYINERBENITE  LBYME
EEBUEHERE -BHit - RBECAES
SREBEB KGN EBHR /A RT2019
FREIMNSZEEAD - R ARFBIFRITH
BRBFAG LEBEBRIEER KGR
IR Sy I

EERBE

EE2RAETT

8

XERNBE B

>

a) HEMBRARANEREABRRNET
RIERMEFGROZZR

—_

) BELEEEELRERERENZIR
FESEER

) BREERARAEETEANEER
ETEBERNER

© %% BERERERRNEEREEN
BEn R

) FZARREST EMARRM AWM (EE
BERTAREEERRS)MIER -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROLS

Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems are maintained, while management is responsible
for designing and implementing risk management and
internal control systems to manage risks. Sound and
effective systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to identify and manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives. The Audit Committee
assisted the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate
governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and
the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Management and Internal Control
Framework

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their
effectiveness.

The Company has established an organizational structure
with defined levels of responsibility and reporting
procedures. The Internal Audit Department and Internal
Control Management Team assisted the Board and the
Audit Committee in the review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis.

The Group’s internal control and risk management system
including a defined management structure with limits of
authority is designed to help the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposal, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant legislation and regulations. Those systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

B b EE R AR

B

EEe2RBF AR TENARNRARE
BEAEEGE MEEBNEERAR
HiTREREREAFEZEGEAEERRE -
TEMEYORAREERAREENESRE
A MEEREEREHRENRAR - T
ZEEHBEFERITEARAKERMY &
B AR EREERABER AR
RAMEFBETHERNEEREEER
Ae -

B EEEABEERE

E=ZgaaSENAREREANNEESE
Btz e B o

ARAC Y — 858 WH 8BS &R M IE R
RFMAMRRE - ABEBMAEER N
M EEERERZREERERNAKHE
VB E I M A BB ERIE R RO ©

AEBzAMERNEAREERGR2ER
ERERGZBMERREE  EEEHAF
EHREEXEBER REEELNRAERE
ZHMANEE  BREFZEZ G CEN
REAEZHMBEREABERIIEAMHZ
A A RFERE TS RABERERER - 1t
EmEERHAE(EFBENHE) ZRE - &
REERGEREABRIIBL - WEE (M
IR RRZERR - MERAEBERE
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Risk Governance Structure
u Facilitates risk identification and escalation whilst
providing assurance to the Board.

B Assigns clear roles and responsibilities and
facilitates implementation with guidelines and tools.

B Consists of multiple layers of roles and
responsibilities as explained below:

Board oversight
ExeEE

EFEEE

EREEE

Board oversight

Audit Committee

ERRERRE

. RERBRBERN LR AERNEESR
HARE -

n SIKBEMEOABMEE  XERTIE
REESIMTH -

n BETIZEARAEENAEMEL:

Risk Reporting
and Communication
RBRIER R
CEO & Internal control
management team

THBHMAE N

Independent
assurance
WILEF
Internal Audit

AEDE D

Risk and control ownership
RPRECHE
Each BU & management
DEEEED Dep
BHBLAREERE

Risk and control oversight
functions
BBR R BE PR IAE
artments with functions on Risk and
Control Oversight Role
BEEBEERENBAEERN

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board

RERESETENEREZES

° Evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the risks
associated with pursuing the delivery of the Group’s strategic

objectives.

o EMTHEEBEAEERRBBEMAZNRER -

° Ensures that an appropriate and effective risk management
framework is established and maintained by the Group.
s HMREECRULAERF—ESEMERNEREIRRE -

e Oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management framework.

e EEBEEEER

i s
KB

BRBR ATRERTEMNTIE-
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Risk Reporting and Communication CEO & Internal Control Management Team
EEREBRE THEZMAZEEE/)E
° Lead the day-to-day operation of the company’s risk
management system according to the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.
. &””Tmﬂ ERBRMAIEG RS BEREQAAR
BEMATEET-

° Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such
conformation to the Board through the Audit Committee

s MRELEFME —XERERERAIZES RGORTEBTT
ME&&OI%ﬂ%V§AEﬁ§$A¢ﬁE%ﬁWO

° CEOQ is primary responsible for risk management and internal
control.

o RATHAREAARREENAMEHNEFENE -HEA -

Independent assurance Internal Audit Department
S FF Al ARE il

e  (Capitalises on the audit processes and plans of Internal Audit
Department to review the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

o ERAENELIEINER R EREERIBAKK -

Risk and control ownership Each business unit and their management
EARREEES RNABREXEN BHNERARAEERE

e  The operating units of the Group who shall assume the risk
should identify, evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own risks
and report such risk management activities in a timely manner
and ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management framework for their areas of responsibility has
been conducted at least annually and provide such information
to CEO.

. LK’EINI EEBEMN (ERAERREML)#A - &% BER

ERHEZaNRER  URKRAESEEREAREREBR : 8FF
DR RS — IR PR B Y R B E IR 2R 4 ) B RU[R] B () T R AR L
ITER o

° Head of business unit or subsidiaries is the primary responsible
person for the risk management and internal control of the unit.

e BEEDRFZMBRREE AR ENLLERRE IR K& A EPIZE
ME—BEA-
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Risk and control Department with functions on Risk Control Oversight Role
oversight functions (Finance, Legal, Human Resource and Administration, Asset
BB R EEIE B A Management, Information Technology)

ERRREERMENBERN (MBH  EZHH - ASTHRH - EE

EEE - W)

° Establish and monitor relevant group-wide policies and

procedures.

o HIEAKREEEBEMABNOANEFRELRSE BEBATE

DL e

° Oversee business units and the control activities relevant to
respective functions.

o HEXIAERREEBMEE -

Risk Management Process

®  |ntegrated into business and decision-making
processes including strategy formulation, business
development, business planning, capital allocation,
investment decisions, internal control and day-to-
day operation management.

B |ncluding establishing the context, identifying risks,
assessing their consequences and likelihood,
evaluating risk level, controlling gaps and priorities,
and developing control and mitigation plans. This is
a continuous process with periodic monitoring and
review in place. It is also an interactive process with
stakeholder communication and consultation.

The Group has embedded its risk management systems
into the core operating practices of the business. The
respective business units of the Company review and
assess the status of potential risks which may impact on
their ability to achieve their business objectives and those
of the Company on an ongoing basis. This review process
includes assessment as to whether the existing system of
internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately
addresses potential risks, and should be supplemented.
We aim to build risk awareness and control responsibility
into our culture and regard them as the foundation of our
risk management and internal control systems.

Rk EERF

B O RASEERBRARRRES  BEXR
BEHIE - RIGHRE - B0 RER
FAREEREREZE -

n  SEBIHE - FHEE BB
A 18 2R N B 3R O A] BB 14 F th LR K
FrHE EERAREEROTR - X
EITERPEF - A K BIFT ER 1R MAT 4% 51
g EEBENEERREHERLR
i ARBREEXFEBEALEBME
AMEEBIE -

AEBEIEHERRERERZSGRBAXEZL
BEER ARRNEREERUFERS
LA EEBERAG R ARAKER
RHEE DB ERRMARN - ZBEEFERE
FERTAMERERREENAEE B
FERREEIRIEEREEHEEMH - &K
PmEHELEEFRYRERE# A
ZEAER - WAL ER AR ERE 2 8 R
EIEHIERER -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #E3hBIFR %R R A& - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARE

The Group has established and overseen a whistle blower
policy whereby employees, customers and suppliers can
report any suspected occurrence of improper conduct
involving the Group.

Internal Audit Department adopted a risk-and-control-
based audit approach. The annual work plan of Internal
Audit Department covered major activities and processes
of the Group’s operations, business and supporting office.
Special reviews are also performed at management’s
request. The results of these audit activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee and key members
of executive and senior management of the Group.

Internal Audit Department provides independent
assurance to the Board, the Audit Committee and the
executive management of the Group on the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls for the Group. The Head
of Internal Audit reports directly to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and CEO of the Group.

During 2018, the Board through the Audit Committee,
have conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. In respect of the year 2018, the Board considered
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
are effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern which might affect shareholders were identified.

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FEith BB 42 A B R /2 A

AEBECDHIELEE —HERBEK - Bt
BE B MLIER MY AR B[ 5
URETRIELER -
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Fk e REPEA N EF TIET8RERE
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young was re-appointed the independent auditor
of the Company at the 2018 AGM. Ernst & Young has
written to the Audit Committee confirming that they are
independent and that there is no relationship between
Ernst & Young and the Company which may reasonably
be thought to bear on their independence. In order to
maintain their independence, Ernst & Young will not be
employed for any non-audit work by the Company unless
the non-audit work meets the criteria suggested in the
Listing Rules and has been pre-approved by the Audit
Committee.

In addition, there must be clear efficiencies and value-
added benefits to the Group from that work being
undertaken by the external auditor, with no adverse effect
on the independence of their audit work, or the perception
of such independence.

During the year, the external auditor (which for these
purposes includes any entity under common control,
ownership or management with the external auditor or
any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would
reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally
or internationally) provided the following audit and
permissible audit related services to the Group:

SR BB

T BRI EBAN2018FERRBFRE
FHREZERNRRNBIIAZEEAED - LK
EMEEMEMETRZE SR L WM 3
HBIMERARREENFETMAFZER
B MR R R AIE LR o BRRITINEZH
BB - BRIERT A LT AR AP R ER
FPAJEERA TR YEHmBERZE SR
o BRIARB KA SBA L KEG I E5H
PRt EIFEat TIF -

BESN  ERIME BB E W TEBARN
SETERAEOMAEMNEEER MAETE
BHEGFTENBIMRBIVREXAE

=
rE°

FR - RENINEZE0M (EEENEERRE
EEINE A AN 2 Al — MBI - A K
EENER  AEFNZEMBEHEBERNS
—EHE AN EERAERREAME
B 2B BEEREFED R REBIEMRT X
TEFT M NER R -

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

RMB million RMB million

ARBBER AREBET

Audit Ei R 2.8 2.9
Total 48 =E 2.8 2.9

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
of the Financial Statements for the year 2018 are set out
in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this
report.

SNERZ AN LB E2018F BN SRR A
ZEEINERAREZ [BIL ZBENRE | E
R
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy of the Company which aims to set
out the provisions with the objective of ensuring that the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company,
in order to enable shareholders of the Company to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow
shareholders of the Company and potential investors to
engage actively with the Company.

Disclosure of information on Company’s website

The Company endeavoured to disclose all material
information about the Group to all interested parties
as widely and as timely as possible. The Company
maintained a corporate website at www.springlandgroup.
com.cn where important and updated information about
the Group’s activities and corporate matters such as
annual and interim reports, announcements, business
development and operations, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for
review by shareholders and other stakeholders. When
announcements are made through the Stock Exchange,
the same information is made available on the Company’s
website.

AGM

The AGM provided an important opportunity for
constructive communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Board maintained an on-going dialogue
with the shareholders and answered all questions raised
by the shareholders throughout the last AGM held on 25
May 2018.

Investor relations

During the year, the Company strived to improve
transparency and communications with shareholders and
investors. Meetings and conference calls with investors
and analysts were held, in order for the Company to
understand their views and to keep them abreast on the
latest developments.

HERRBE

ARADHEACERBABK) - HFEZ &
XEREBRAABABRLREENRESE - 5
AR FERBERERGARAZZ2EME
SEMHER  — T HERRAIEANBNOIB
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening a special general meeting
by shareholders and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, including making proposals or moving a
resolution at an extraordinary general meeting.

The Board shall convene such meeting within 21
days from the date the requisition deposited and the
extraordinary general meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of the requisition. The written
requisition may be sent to the Board or the Company
Secretary to the Company’s head office or principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should deposit a written notice
of nomination which shall be given to the Company within
the seven days period commencing the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period
as may be determined and announced by the Directors
from time to time) and in no event ending no later than
seven days prior to the date appointed for such meeting.
The procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available
under the Investor Relations (Corporate Governance
subsection) of the Company’s website.

R R i

BRRAFMBRREIAGEZEFRERRAE
LiRHES
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Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company Secretary at the office of the Company
at Suite 1508, 15/F, Cityplaza Four, 12 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meeting.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) pursuant to which in deciding whether
to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account the following
factors:

(@) the Group’s future operations and earnings;
(b) the Group’s capital requirements and surplus;
(c) the general financial conditions of the Group;

(d) contractual restrictions on payment of dividends;
and

(e) any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the
Company shall be determined at the sole discretion of the
Board and shall be subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and the Articles
of Association of the Company. The Dividend Policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and there
can be no assurance that dividends will be proposed or
declared in any particular amount for any given period.

MEEREHEN
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. There was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to
Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable
to the Board for matters relating to the duties of the
Directors, such as giving advice on corporate governance
developments. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the
relationship between the Company and its shareholders,
including assisting the Board in discharging its obligations
to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules. During
the year, the Company Secretary confirmed that he has
complied with all the required qualifications, experience
and training requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 21 June 2006. The Group is principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets in
the PRC. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries were set out in note 1
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year 2018 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at year-end 2018
were set out on pages 89 to 213 of this report.

During the year 2018, an interim dividend of HK3 cents
per ordinary share was paid. The Board recommended the
payment of a final dividend for the year 2018 of HK$7 cents
in cash per ordinary share to the shareholders appeared
on the register of members of the Company as at 4 June
2019. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as a separate allocation within the
equity section of the statement of financial position.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year,
the analysis using financial key performance indicator on
the Group, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and description of possible risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Corporate Governance Report, Report of Directors
and its ‘Our Risk Profile’ sections of this report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group can be found in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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OUR RISK PROFILE

Our approach for managing risk is underpinned by our
understanding of our current risk exposures, and how our
risks are changing over time. The following illustrates the
nature of our major risks.

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results
of operations or growth prospects may be affected
by risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The factors set out below were those that
the Group believes could affect the Group’s businesses,
financial condition, results of operations or growth
prospects. These factors were by no means exhaustive or
comprehensive, and there may be other factors in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Risk associated with the Group business

Our new shopping malls or department stores may not
achieve our expected level of profitability within our
desired time frame

We plan to further enhance our position in the region
by opening new shopping malls and department stores.
Opening self-owned new shopping malls requires
significant capital outlay up front, including the cost of
land and building and decorating the premises. However,
the new shopping mall that we open may not achieve
our expected level of profitability for a prolonged period
of time. Whether or not the operation of new shopping
mall or department store will be successfully depends on
a number of factors, including: our ability to successfully
integrate the new store with our existing operations and
achieve related synergies; our ability to introduce an
optimal mix of merchandise which successfully meets local
consumer preferences; our ability to negotiate and obtain
favorable terms from our concessionaires and suppliers;
the competition that we face from incumbent and new
players in the region and any government development
plans or construction, which could have an impact
on the external traffic flow to our store and the timely
implementation of such changes.
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We may fail to anticipate and prove the appropriate mix of
merchandise to satisfy customer tastes and demands

We maintain a comprehensive selection of merchandise
for customers. The success of our business depends
on our ability to maintain a comprehensive product
selection and, at the same time, anticipate and respond
in a timely manner to changing customer demands and
preferences. Consumer demands in the PRC are changing
at a rapid pace. Customer demands are changing at a
rapid pace and become complicated. The consumption
needs having emphasis on individuality and experience.
As the consumption market becomes more complicated,
retailers, facing bigger challenges in fund attraction,
operation and innovation, are also driven to invest more to
satisfy customers’ expectation for experience.

Technology is playing an increasingly important part in the
survivability of the retail sector. New retail technologies
introduced may substantially be categorized into two
aspects. The first one involves technologies that improve
service convenience and consumption experience, such
as mobile payment, artificial intelligence, augmented
reality/virtual reality experience, etc. The lack or delayed
implementation of those technologies would impair
consumer experience. The second category is applied
to lift the operation and management efficiency at the
corporate level, to facilitate upgrading of the supply chain,
and to streamline management including mobile office,
information-based application, big data, etc. Without
such technologies, corporations would find it very difficult
to adapt to and compete in the new landscape. The
traditional retailers must thoroughly consider the premise
of cost effectiveness when they adopt new technologies
to meet market demands and to protect themselves from
rapid market elimination.

Reliance on key management personnel

The success of the Group in expanding its growth in
operations and maintaining growth in its profitability relies
on the strategy and vision of its key management, efforts
of key members of the management and their experience
in the PRC retail market. The unanticipated resignation or
departure of any of these key management members of
the Group could have a material adverse impact on the
operations of the Group.
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Risks relating to the industry in the PRC

Consumer spending patterns in China can be influenced
by the state of China’s economy.

Consumer spending patterns and consumer confidence
in China are influenced by the state of China’s economy,
which in turn affects our sales volume, turnover,
profitability and our growth. Consumer confidence is
affected by, China general business conditions and
economy as well as current and expected future global
or regional macroeconomic conditions. We believe that
Chinese consumers tend to increase their expenditures
when the Chinese economy is experiencing strong growth
and when they have more disposable income available
for personal consumption. Conversely, a recession in
the Chinese economy, or uncertainties regarding future
economic prospects may result in a reduction in consumer
spending. In the past years, the year-on-year growth rate
of GDP is below 7%, being the lowest since 1991, which
showed the macro-economic growth slows down. That
indicates the China economy has entered the new norm
of maintaining steady growth against economic slowdown.
Due to a relatively well-developed retail market in China, a
single-digit growth rate will continue in the next few years.

Changes in foreign exchange regulations and fluctuation of
RMB

All of the revenues and a substantial proportion of our
expenditure are denominated in Renminbi, which is
currently not a freely convertible currency. We will require
foreign currencies for dividend payment (if any) to our
Shareholders. We will therefore be exposed to foreign
currency fluctuations. If there be significant changes in
the exchange rates of US dollars or Hong Kong dollars
against Renminbi, our Company’s ability to make dividend
payments in foreign currencies may be materially and
adversely affected as well as materially and adversely
affect the value of our Company’s dividends, which would
be funded by Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year were set out in note 38(a) to the financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Company during the year.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year were set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this report
and note 45 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under Cayman lIslands Companies Law, the Company
may pay dividends out of profit or its share premium
account in accordance with the provisions of the Articles
of Association of the Company and provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

At year-end 2018, retained earnings of the Company
amounted to RMB754 million, of which RMB121 million has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Details of
which are set out in note 45 in the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group were set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND FINANCING
NOTES

Bank borrowings, medium-term notes and corporate
bonds of the Group at year-end 2018 amounted to
RMB3,095 million, details of which were set out in notes
29 to 31 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group were set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB1.6 million.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published financial results and financial
position of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 214. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2018 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Chen Jiangiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Yu Yaoming (resigned on 21 March 2018)

Non-executive Director
Tao Qingrong (redesignated on 5 November 2018)
Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Lin Zhijun

Zhang Weijiong

Cheung Yat Ming

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, two of the Directors, namely, Mr. Chen
Jiangiang and Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

There are no other matters that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company were
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors” in this report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive Director of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which shall not be terminated within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Details of the Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
remuneration are set out in note 11 of the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year 2018, there were rights to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or its holding company or subsidiary or a subsidiary of
the Company’s holding company was a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
through any other corporate entities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under “Connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions” and “Related Party
Transactions” as set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements below, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company or subsidiary
or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was
a party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries or any company controlled by a
director or controlling shareholder had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At year-end 2018, the interests of each Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in the Shares of the Company

Number of ordinary
Shares interested

Name of director Nature of Interest

EERFTETHRAERARSG A
ARORES2EERKXA

R2018FFK - RRABREZE 7 M HE &P
(TBHFEBEHED]) E352(6MEFEZERL
AT sk RIE EMRBIER+FPrE 2 b
REBFATEFRZHRESTRI ([1RET
A BITHEARB RN ARAREE
B RITHRAARNA QR R EARRAE (85
KB RPIEXVER 2 %) 2 Bt - MR
REFZEDHIIMT

RKABARGDHNER

Percentage
of the Company’s
total issued shares

AR H]

ERITROEBHEN

EEn EEME BFENEERYE Bat
Chen Jiangiang Interest in controlled 1,442,500,000 (Note) (#17E) 66.96%

corporation

PRE 58 REZEGEE MR

Note: These shares were held by Octopus (China) Holdings
Limited, in which is wholly owned by Octopus Holdings
Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of Octopus
Holdings Foundation is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Octopus (China) Holdings Limited. Both
Octopus Holdings Foundation and Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited are holding companies of the Company,
each of them is an associated corporation of the
Company under the SFO.

BtiF - % Z B% 1) fOctopus (China) Holdings
Limited# A -+ itk A & fOctopus Holdings
Foundation® & # A ° PR 5t £ 1E AOctopus
Holdings Foundation®) iff — % 8 -+ &K 1%
%A ¥Octopus (China) Holdings Limited
ARG, %A # 2% - Octopus Holdings
Foundation#Octopus (China) Holdings
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Long position in the Shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations of the Company

AAFEBEENROREERDOTE

Number and
class of shares

Percentage
of interest

Name of of the associated in the associated
Name of director associated corporation Nature of interest corporation held corporation
FEEBLERS THEBEEESR
EEpE BEEEER EREE RV MED Y
Chen Jiangiang Octopus Holdings Beneficial interest 1 ordinary share 100%
Foundation (Note) (#17%)
B og Octopus Holdings ERBERA 1% & 3B Ak
Foundation
Chen Jiangiang Octopus (China) Holdings Interest in controlled 100 ordinary shares 100%
Limited corporation corporation (Note) (#17%)
[ Octopus (China) Holdings RREHEE 100/ LB M E R
Limited
Note: 1,442,500,000 Shares were held by Octopus (China) Bzt - 1,442,500,0000% 5 E8Octopus (China)

Holdings Limited, in which is wholly-owned by Octopus
Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of
Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Octopus (China) Holdings Limited.
As each of Octopus Holdings Foundation and Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited all are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of
the Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which were
required to be recorded in the register kept under Section

352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARE

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to any
Directors and chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
of 5% or more in the shares of the Company notified to
the Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMALREARTR
7z &

MARBEERESTRABRA - 12018
F12A31H * RIBEFFH M E KRG EXVIBE
ORIDEHMRTEEMEARA  KIRIBEES
N EI SR DI EI6EANRAFE 2 B M
8 THAL (RRARZEFHESTTHRAER
SN H B AR A A AR RIRD5% A
I

Long position in the shares of the Company EATROHEFE
Approximate percentage
of the Company’s
Number of total issued shares
Name of shareholders Capacity ordinary shares EERDNABRT
RRERE L) EERYE ROZENED
Octopus Holdings Foundation Interest of controlled corporation 1,442,500,000 66.96%

REHEEES (Note) (#fiZ)

International Value Advisers, LLC Investment manager 163,007,000 7.95%

RERE

Note: Octopus (China) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by
Octopus Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole
shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed
to be interested in Shares held by Octopus (China)
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Company had not been notified by any persons, other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, of
other interest or short position in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had not been
notified of any persons other than the substantial
shareholders who had interests or short positions in
the Shares of the Company, which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year 2018, pursuant to the general mandate
given to the Directors of the Company, the Company
repurchased a total of 167,398,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of HK$327 million. During
the year, 160,950,000 shares were repurchased and
6,235,000 treasury shares were cancelled. The number of
issued shares of the Company as of 31 December 2018
was 2,050,000,000 shares.

Subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of the report, the Company repurchased a total of
18,552,000 shares at an aggregate consideration of
HK$30.4 million. 25,000,000 shares were repurchased
and all treasury shares were cancelled in February 2019.
The number of issued shares of the company as at the
date of this report was 2,025,000,000 shares.

Particulars of the shares repurchased during the year are
as follows:

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each

BE - HEldBEEAAT LD
&5

2018F A IREFRE TARREET 2 — MK
BARRINBRENNRTEES TREBR
Ffr 8% [@ & $£167,398,0000% /& A 7 & i% @ &
0.0 Tz EMHD - £/ + 160,950,000
% B2 [0 B (5 A16,235,000% 5 17 A% #3185 o 7
2018F12H31H * X AFRIZEBETRMNE B
/52,050,000,0000% °

R2018F12A31 AR EARRERH - XA F
8% B & #£18,552,0000% & 15+ 42 X {8 &30.4
BEB T 25,000,000 8 @ j% 15 & E 17 A%
MPR201952 AT - AARIEZEARF WA
7 BACETRRD BB A&2,025,000,0000% °

FACBRKRO ZFHFBOT

Price per share

BREE BRKRE Aggregate

0.01;8 T Highest Lowest consideration

Month of repurchase BHEBE = 3= RIK HmRE
o A5 Thousands HK$ HK$ HK$'000
Fhz BT BT THET

January 2018 201851 H 10,950 1.90 1.74 20,457
March 2018 201843 H 9,557 1.87 1.70 17,113
April 2018 2018F4H 22,823 2.23 1.85 45,683
May 2018 2018%F5H 29,580 2.05 1.88 59,902
June 2018 201846 A 34,096 2.05 2.00 70,057
July 2018 201847 A 18,458 2.05 2.03 37,886
August 2018 2018 8A 22,966 1.93 1.82 43,192
September 2018 20189 H 12,520 1.85 1.78 22,664
December 2018 201812 6,448 1.60 1.40 10,068
167,398 327,022
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The Directors consider that the repurchases were made
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole with a view to enhancing the earnings per share
and net asset value per share of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the period.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

At year-end 2018, none of the Directors or directors of
the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had any interests in the businesses, other than being
a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and
their respective associates, that compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions of the
Company passed on 30 September 2010. The Share Option
Scheme will remain in force until 29 September 2020, and
the remaining life of this scheme is around 1 year and 6
months.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract,
retain and motivate talented participants, to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage
the participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Group and allow the participants to enjoy the
results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. The Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer any employee, management member or Director of
the Company, or any member of the Group, and third
party service providers options to subscribe for shares
on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The
amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00.
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iR
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B o BB BB IFERME2020F9H29
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The maximum number of shares which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed the number of shares that shall
represent 10% of issued share capital of the Company
(i.e. 250,000,000 shares) as at the Listing Date. The
limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed such number
of shares as shall represent 30% of the shares issued by
the Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting, the Board shall not grant options to any
person if the acceptance of those options would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to
that person on exercise of his/her options including both
exercised and outstanding options during any 12-month
period exceeding 1% of the total shares then in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
period to be notified by the Board to the grantee save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
business day on which the option is deemed to have been
granted in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe
for shares upon exercise of an option shall, be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme

and up to the date of this Report, no options have been
granted under the Share Option Scheme by the Company.

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 23 BB 152 A% 5 IR 2 &)
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group and comparable market
statistics, including the prevailing market rate for
executives of similar position.

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based
on duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.

RETIREMENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by the relevant PRC municipal governments.
The Group’s relevant PRC subsidiaries contributed funds
to the retirement schemes which are calculated based
on certain percentage of the average employee salary
as stipulated by the local municipal government. Such
retirement schemes were responsible for the entire post-
retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group had no further obligations for the
actual payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the
aforesaid contributions.

The Group made contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance in Hong Kong for all employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held in
separate trustee administered funds. The pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year 2018 were RMB69 million. Details of the
contribution retirement schemes are set out in note 10 of
the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions which constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company as
set out in Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules on the Stock
Exchange.

Continuing connected transaction - loan for the
outstanding consideration for the disposal of
Deposits & Financial Products

On 30 April 2014, indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, Jiangsu Springland International Holding
(Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu Springland”) and Wuxi Xishan
Yaohan Lifestyle Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”)
as sellers entered into an agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with Mr. Chen Jiangiang (the “Purchaser”),
whereby Jiangsu Springland disposed the Financial
Product and Xishan Yaohan disposed the fixed-term
cash deposit (the “Deposit”) for the considerations in
the amount of RMB180 million and RMB100 million
respectively to the Purchaser. The considerations in the
amount of RMB280 million were agreed to be paid on/
before 31 December 2014 in cash by the Purchaser.

On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan
Yaohan and the Purchaser entered into the supplemental
agreement and extended the payment date for the
outstanding consideration under the Disposal Agreement
in the amount of RMB182 million to 31 December 2016.
On 1 December 2016, Jiangsu Springland, Xishan Yaohan
and the Purchaser entered into the another supplemental
agreement and further extended the payment date for
the outstanding consideration of RMB118 million to 31
December 2019. Starting from 1 January 2015, interest
is charged on the amount due from the Purchaser under
the Disposal Agreement with an interest rate of 3.5% per
annum. During the year 2017, the Purchaser has paid
RMB18 million to the Group as principal and fully settled
the interest of the outstanding consideration under the
Disposal Agreement.
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The Purchaser, Mr. Chen, the Chairman and the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, loan for the outstanding consideration under
the Disposal Agreement and its supplemental agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the entering
into of the Disposal Agreement by Jiangsu Springland
and Xishan Yaohan and Mr. Chen for the disposal of
the Financial Product and the Deposit and extension of
payment date of outstanding consideration arrangement
have been set out in the announcements dated 2 May
2014, 16 December 2014 and 1 December 2016 issued
by the Company.

Views of the auditors and independent non-executive
Directors

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to
the Board pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules
confirming that, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
the connected transaction and continuing connected
transaction (i) has received the approval of the Board;
(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreements governing the transactions; and (iii)
has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant
announcements made by the Company in relation in the
continuing connected transaction.

Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above connected transactions and continuing
connected transaction has been entered into by the Group
in the ordinary and usual course of its business, either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable
to the Company than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties, and in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
above connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related
party transactions that did not constitute connected
transactions made under the Listing Rules during the year
were disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B BMEAEEABARQBINERRIZREE -
BIRE EMRBARRRNBEEAL - BRI
EHHAHEHEREBTBER RTEE
MERBERNARAFEBERS - TEE
MEBILNABE  EHESEMERREHRGFR
MERRSEHENKB B ER AT
HERENFBEHNANQEE2014F582
H - 2014F12H16H f2016F12 418 F 2
HAER -

BRBERBLFATEENRER

RIE ETAEAE14AL6EETE » AR AR E
MmESgRME KT - BREZE2018F12H
S1HBILFE  ZHEXZRFEBRERS
(ICREEESHE  ()\IBREBEEER SN
HIGIRETSL ¢ RN ERBB AR R B B%E
BB NEMHEEN LR -

BYFMTEFCHR  LABERS MR
BRERXZITBHARERBER —REHKB
BPRIEEERRLTERNGE TELE =
FEBIE=T 4 T O (WER) 7T
WIRRR MBI ER S RFFERER HHHE
B AV RBGETT - BARIGTREB AT AR
WHERRARRAEEN S -

B EXPrIREESN - FEARE EHARRAL
ABREEXFINIEERBEALIRZERN
ARE M HRRMTES9

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #E3hBIFR %R R A& - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the provisions of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Directors, auditor and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses incurred or sustained by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts. The Company has
arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company during the year in respect of any legal actions
which may be taken against the Directors and officers in
the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation
thereto.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance through its continuous effort in
improving its corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 36 to 61.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year 2018, none of the Group’s customers or
suppliers accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s
revenue or purchases. None of the Directors or any of
their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s total issued shares) had any beneficial interest
in the five largest customers or five largest suppliers of the
Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There were no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association of the Company, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands pursuant to which the Company shall
be obliged to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued shares is held by
the public at the date of this report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company was not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group were set out in note 44 to the financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire as the Company’s
auditor and a resolution for their re-appointment as the
Company’s auditor will be proposed at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Springland International Holdings Limited
Chen Jiangiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B M % B

Ernst & Young

EY =x

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 89
to 213, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

RKEEERFR Tel BiE: +852 2846 9888
EERDIRAEEIR Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
hiERE221E ey.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Impairment test of goodwill

The Group had goodwill of RMB250 million as
at 31 December 2018. According to IFRSs, the
Group is required to perform annual impairment
testing of goodwill. Impairment is determined by
assessing the value in use of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) to which the goodwill is allocated.
Where value in use is less than the carrying amount
of goodwill, an impairment should be recognised.
The Group assessed the value in use by performing
profit forecasts and estimating future cash flows
of the respective CGUs, which involved a number
of significant judgements and estimates such as
the revenue growth rates, the gross margins, the
expense rates and discount rate. Changes in these
assumptions might lead to a change in the value in
use of goodwill.

Key assumptions on which management has
based its present value of cash flow projections
to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are
included in note 20 “Goodwill” to the financial
statements. Estimation uncertainty is included in note
3 “Significant accounting judgement and estimates”
to the financial statements.

Our audit procedures included evaluating the
methodologies and main assumptions used in the
goodwill impairment testing model. We paid specific
attention to the revenues growth rates, the gross
margins, the expense rates and discount rates. To
assess the main assumptions, we compared them to
the respective CGUSs’ historical financial data and also
considered the business plan and external market’s
conditions. Our valuation specialists were involved to
assist us in reviewing the impairment testing model,
in particular, the discount rates and long term growth
rates. We also checked the relevant disclosures of
goodwill impairment testing.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Impairment of Group’s non-current assets
related to leased properties

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of the Group’s non-current assets related to
leased properties mainly included other intangible
assets, renovation and leasehold improvements,
and machinery and furniture in the leased stores
amounting to RMB206 million.

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the
recoverable amount of the renovation and leasehold
improvement of the relevant stores is determined
by management on a store-by-store basis where
the carrying amount of the renovation and leasehold
improvements of those stores is higher than the
present value of estimated future cash flows.

QOur audit procedures to assess the potential
impairment of renovation and leasehold improvement
included the assessment of the accounting policies
and procedures used by the Group’s management
during the identification of impairment indicators,
evaluating the methodologies and main assumptions
used in the assessment of the present value of
estimated future cash flows.

The Group assessed the value in use by performing
profit forecasts and estimating future cash flows,
which involved a number of significant judgements
and estimates such as the revenue growth rates, the
gross margins, the expenses rates, and the discount
rates.

Changes in these assumptions might lead to
a change in the value in use of renovation and
leasehold improvement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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The balance of the impairment of renovation and leasehold
improvements is disclosed in notel17 “Property, Plant and
Equipment” and note 19 “Other Intangible assets” to the
financial statements. Estimation uncertainty is included in
note 3 “Significant accounting judgement and estimates”
to the financial statements.

We paid specific attention to the revenue growth rates,
the gross margins, the expense rates and the discount
rates. To assess the main assumptions, we compared
them to the respective store historical financial data and
also considered the business plan and external market’s
conditions. Our valuation specialists were involved to
assist us in reviewing the impairment testing model, in
particular, the discount rates and long term growth rates.

Estimation and disclosure with respect to deferred
tax assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deferred tax
assets amounting to RMB114 million. The deferred tax
assets were mainly recognised for tax-deductible losses
and temporary differences to the extent that it was likely
that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future.
The process of estimating the future taxable profits is
complex, and required significant management estimates
and judgments which are mainly affected by future actual
operation, tax regulations, market or economic conditions.

Please refer to note 24 “Deferred tax” to the financial
statements for movements of deferred tax assets and
management’s estimation for tax losses that cannot
be utilised. Estimation uncertainty is included in note 3
Significant accounting judgement and estimates to the
financial statements.

We evaluated and tested management estimation of
available taxable profits by, among others, evaluating
to the Group’s business plans, expected future profit
forecasts and the associated growth rates used in the
estimation. We assessed the reasonableness of the
main assumptions including the revenue growth rates,
the gross margin expenses rate by comparing them
with the historical financial date and also considered
the business plan and external markets conditions. We
checked the relevant disclosures of deferred tax assets
and management’s estimation for tax losses that cannot
be utilised.

B MEERENREZREM B REME
17T E  BEMRE LTI EMETLE
BIPEE - TEENGRBEEMBFRE M
A3 EE G A MR F e

BAFREETHRAZERER - EFE - E2H
RMEERE - BTHRHEEIERR RASE
PMEEENEEELPBEBRET T LR
W& BT EEET BRSBTS BRI - A
MEEER2E TG - BEBRAFERE
ARARE - KR RMREMEHEREK -

FEMSHEENMGTRKE

HZE2018F12A31H SEEEHRIBEEE
HABEETTARY - LR RATEER BHAE
RERFOBERT  BEMSHEEETZMR
REAHNEEAREREEZR - RAREME
SRR ATBEEE FTEEANEEM
EANHIE  FEXRKRERLSEBR B
ER MBRELCERENZE -

EXEHAEENES REXMANBRBEKX
EEME  F2RUBRRMF24 EEHR
Bl At T HEEERFEEM MK RE
MEEGHHE MG o

B EMAATEREEY A ARRN G
Mevthst - AR ESRENERKTE -
FBEHIARRABIER R AT EANERER
Ko RBHEE LM BHIBEE L - HAIFFET
TEBRNAENE  BRRARER - £
E-BRX VWEETEEFEMI NS
fRiF - BPIERETREMFHREENEH
WA E IR E 5 1 58 ) A H BB R 1Y
fEHER -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3B R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BN %R

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Chee Kong.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LO
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

REVENUE
Other income and gains

Purchase of and changes in inventories

Staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses
of associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic and diluted (RMB)
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Notes RMB’000
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6 4,607,943
7 702,776
(2,578,595)
(700,123)
(523,007)
(99,752)
8 (683,326)
9 (109,746)

(71)

10 616,099

13 (219,750)

396,349

400,017
(3,668)

396,349
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RMB’000
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4,444,039
671,601

(2,600,439)
(702,988)
(485,287)
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Other comprehensive income that
may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income that E{4 7] &5 48 A 1825 HY

may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated

at fair value through other

comprehensive income:

Changes in fair value
Income tax effect

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

L
b |
=
=
<
o

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

1]
-
=Z=
£3
W=
=8
7]
oz
=
<
o
prfon
82
23
ol.l.
©6

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

F Bt A
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RERBRAFEBB
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018

—E-N\F

Notes RMB’000
k23 AR® TR

396,349

(68,787)

(68,787)

(68,787)

327,562

331,230
(3,668)

327,562
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2017
—E—4F
RMB’000
ARET T

338,495

73,069

73,069

73,069

411,564

413,088
(1,524)

411,564



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION l ”
RE M BMRR* s bl ¢

31 December 2018
201812 831H

2018
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hi et AREBTT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE MR 17 8,938,005 9,124,065
Prepaid land premiums B LHES 18 1,579,888 1,627,588
Other intangible assets HimEE 19 24,544 26,955
Goodwill BE 20 250,384 250,384
Investments in associates REE N RIRE 21 5,117 -
Avalilable-for-sale investments AHBERE 22 - 5,188
Long-term prepayments RHEIFE A 23 7,757 12,942
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE 24 113,800 111,151
Restricted cash XREEES 28 - 113,158
Due from the controlling JE W 42E B B 3R R IR
shareholder 39(b) 99,984
Total non-current assets FERBEEMETE 10,919,495 11,371,415
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rE 25 367,859 351,108
Trade receivables JEWE 578 26 7,796 6,412
Due from the controlling shareholder — J& 4 22 B A% 58 2018 39(b) 99,962 =
Prepayments and other receivables T8 508 I B R SR IR 27 414,979 430,792
Restricted cash XREEE S 28 117,408 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEDY 28 617,441 511,198
Total current assets RBEERRE 1,625,445 1,299,510
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T RIERITIER 29 1,054,083 1,467,948
Medium-term financing notes RER R 30 310,874 = -
Corporate bonds NEESH 31 819,470 - &z
e I E B3R 32 1,178,020 1,278,855 [tz
Other payables and accruals Hfth 15038 R FE =T B g5 2,408,530 2,449,601 Egﬂg
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 34 = 13,270 gﬁ%
Tax payable & 5 % 18 76,788 50,875 ,u_lgﬁ
824
Total current liabilities RPEEEE 5,847,765 5,260,549 §)Eﬂé
4 (T8
oo
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (4,222,320) (3,961,039) |
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRDAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,697,175 7,410,376

2017 \
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE BRI R

=3

31 December 2018
2018412 A31H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Medium-term financing notes
Corporate bonds

Long-term payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Issued capital

Treasury shares

Reserves

FRBEE
i EERITER
FHIRE
REES
REER R
ERERERAR

FRBBEEE

BEFE

R
BRAEHEEA
FE 15
BBRITBRA

8 77 i
X

Notes

Log=3

29
30
31
35
24

38(a)
38(a)

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
AR%T T

910,165

74,623
552,557

1,537,345

5,159,830

17,703
(56)
4,982,267

4,999,914

159,916

5,159,830
——

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARET T

396,000
309,974
817,070

77,107
569,733

2,159,884

5,250,492

19,146
(54)
5,066,312
5,085,404
165,088

250,49



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERGaBER

Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE20185F12 ABHIEFE

A1 January 2017 ANTEAIR

Proft for the year Emg

Other comprehensive income for th Enifis
year: a8

Exchange diferences on translaton of B BnESZE
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income for year FmiEasE

Aporopriaton o statutry surplus ERRETLES
fesene

Dividends paidto non-confoling XRE FEERRR
shareholders

Finel 2016 dividend declred BREN6ERERS

Interm 2017 dividend WIELHRE

Capttlrfction fom non-contoling FERRRTOREE
shareholders of a subsiciary

Repurchase ofshares Eojz

Repurchase and cancelaton of shares REEEREE

At 31 December 2017 R01TE12R31A

Atrioutable to owners of the parent

BRAERARE
Exchange
Statutory fluctuation Non-
Issued Treasury Share Contributed suplus — Discrefionary Tesenve Retained controling Total
capita shares premiym surplus Teserve Teserve ES eamings Totd Interests equity
BEfRA ERR RIAEE EARR  ARDES il FHEE Ry B FoRER ERiE
Notes RVB000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RNB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETr ARETn ARETR AR¥TR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  AREFR ARBTR ARETR
Note 38/~ Note 38(g) Note 38b) Mot 38C)  Note 38(d)
Kisne By Wiy BEne  Bdsg
0,127 (112) 728,151 [1,512) 901,764 B0 (111515 3400754 4971367 169,065 5140432
- - - - - - - 340,019 340,019 (1,524) 336,49
- - - - - - 73,069 - 73,069 - 73,069
- - - - - - 73,069 340,019 413,088 (1,524) 411,564
- - - - 9,885 - - 98,889) - - -
By R R - 5 i o - - 249) 24%9)
14 - - (100,220) - - - - - (100,220) - (100,220)
14 - - (58,640) - - - - - (58,640) - (38,640)
- - - - - - - - - I 4
3 - 923) (139,268) - - - - - (140,191) - (140191)
3 (981) 91 - j - - - - - - -
19,146 (54) 4008 (1512 1,000,649" B0 (38446 3641888 5086404 165088 526049
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREBEX

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRTREARE

Exchange
Statutory fluctuation Non-
Issued Treasury Share  Contributed Capital surplus  Discretionary reserve Retained controlling Total
capital shares premium surplus reserve reserve reserve Ej eamings interests equity
BEfRE EfR  BBEE  REER  BABR  EOBE  BEEE  BERE  RERR & FEREE  RaME
LGt RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0  RMB00O
sl \RETT ARETT  ARMTZ  ARBTR  ARKIR  ARMTZ  ARBTn  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTZ  ARRTR  ARETR
Note 38(a)  Note 36(2) Note 38(b) Note 38(c)  Note 38(d)
b 4

A1 January 2018 1201851 A1A 430,028 (1,512 B0 (08,446 3,641,888 165,088
Proft for he year ERgH - - - - - 400017 (3,668)
Other comprehensive ncome forthe ~~ EREHNAEE:
e
Eichange diferences on transation of S EEHE S 2E
foreign operations - - - (68,787) (68,787) - (68,787)
Total comprehensive income foryear ~~ ER2ENELE - - - (68,787) 400017 (366 321562
Appropriation to tatuory splus BREERNES
[ESEAE - - - 106,778 - (106,778)
Dhidends paid o non-coniroling Rfika FHERER
sharefolders - - - - (1,509) (1,509)
Final 2017 dlvidend declared BERNERERS M - (68,059) - (68,059) (68,059)
Interim 2018 diidend WiBERERS 14 - - - (54,225) (64,205)
Acaistion of on-contolingnterests ~ WEFF RS - - 5 (20)
Shareholders of a subsidiary
Cptairfction fom non-contoling. ~~ ERRRTAFEE
sherefolders - - - - 3,000
E Disposalof subsidiary RENELA - - - - - (2822) 282)
g E Repurchase of shares EORE 38 (448 (r3,04) - - (274489) - (o)
E § HR Repurchase and cancellion of sheres~ BEEBRER %88 (1,44) 1443 - - - - - -
0wz g
@ é ﬁ At 31 December 2018 H018E12831R 11,708 (56) 68,920* (1,512 1107421 B0t (10728 3,800,002 4999914 159,916 5,159,830
<=
g % 4u * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * RERERPAEKGEME H?E MERAK A
%"o" of RMB4,982,267,000 (2017: RMB5,066,312,000) in the e 4 /5 A R #54,082,267,0007T (20174F = A
($)

consolidated statement of financial position. F#5,066,312,00070) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ” M
RARERERE iy o

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE
2018 2017 &
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AR¥ TR ARETT
Cash flows from operating REEBRFMBHERE
activities
Profit before tax B 5% A A A 616,099 531,262
Adjustments for: TP SEELFE
Depreciation ne 17 478,340 451,382
Amortisation of prepaid ek 2
land premiums 18 41,177 31,221
Amortisation of other intangible Hithmp EE#E
assets 19 3,490 2,684
Loss on disposal of items of BENE BER
property, plant and equipment HEEE 10 25,309 16,374
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BREMBRRWRE 40 (417) =
Foreign exchange differences, net fE N =% 10 19 (90)
Fair value (gains)/loss, net: NFE(RES) /BEFE
Derivative instruments — MESBMIA-TRE
transactions not qualifying HH2R S
as hedges 7&10 (13,270) 24,757
Finance costs BB KA 9 109,746 65,751
Impairment of property, ME - BE k&
plant and equipment BEEE 17 27,283 8,146
Impairment of other intangible assets Hh & R EERE 19 3,697 2,838
Interest income B A 7 (19,442) (20,766)
Loss on disposal of investments RERATEFTE
at fair value through profit or loss BHEEHF ABR
fIREB/KE 10 18,021 4,924
Share of profits or losses of associates D {hEE & R al1E % 71 =
Provision/(write-back of provision) Narki=REd =g
for slow-moving inventories 10 340 (1,083)
1,290,463 1,117,400
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEH M) R (19,476) 67,621
Increase in trade receivables, FEWE 53 « B RIE K
prepayments and other receivables L {th i i S TE A9 32 40 (38,401) (74,264)
Decrease in long-term prepayments R HATE 3 ZOR AR D 5,185 6,429
Increase in trade payables, B S30E - EMEMIA -
other payables and accruals RIEETE R EE 114,396 63,634 |
(Decrease)/increase in long-term REEFAFIECRD) =
payables (2,484) 14,493 E c;)::ﬁ
Cash generated from operations REFRERE 1,349,683 1195313  Rgmbs
Income tax paid ERFEH (203,662) (200,192) B %ﬁ
<<
Net cash flows from operating BEEBRERAFE gou
activities 1,146,021 995,121 OORE
2
(o]
3]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEeRERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

Cash flows from investing
activities

Interest received
Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items of

property, plant and equipment
Purchase of items of intangible assets
Purchase of available-for-sale

unlisted investments
Losses on disposal of investments

at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary
Decrease in an amounts due from

the controlling shareholder
Decrease in time deposits

Net cash flows used in
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings

Repurchase of the Company’s shares

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Capital injection from non-controlling
shareholders

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Unrestricted time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the statement of
cash flows

REFBMBRERE

[ Gl
BEWE BELRE

HEME  BERRG
B8 A

MEEMAE

BEAHLE L DRE

BERATEGEAL
BB AR A IAX
L8 42 5P 8 500R

AR T SRR

T B 5O &

REZBHHMA
REREBFHE

RMEZBMBRERE

ERBITHER

G RITIE R

BNl ES

Yo B SE R I M 22

FERBRRTE

BB E
B FEERRRER S

BRME
MEFDFAREREFH

RERASSENAED
FNRERAEFED
SNEEXZHNTE  FR

FREASRBESEEY

RERBESSENERDN

Re RRITER

BARRN={1ARZHH
FEBREBRER

REGABRITHREER
REeEEN

Notes

iz

40

28

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000
AR®T R

51,028
(567,990)

2,945
(1,076)

(18,021)
5,578

157,650

(369,886)

(1,406,151)
1,436,914
(274,489)
(120)

3,000
(142,284)

(1,509)
(129,328)
(513,967)

262,168
353,548
1,725

617,441

617,441

617,441
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2017
—E—LF
RMB’000
ARBTF T

9,153
(833,699

2,034
(3,278)

(2,638)
(4,924)

18,000
4,520

(810,832)

(1,466,417)
1,665,284
(140,191)

45
(158,860)

(2,498)
(115,346)
(217,983)

(33,694)
389,422

(2,180)

353,548

275,731

77,817

353,548



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i ak MY =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Springland International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 21 June 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The Company was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 21 October 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate
holding company of the Group is Octopus Holdings
Foundation, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are as follows:

RAREEEHR

EHBEZERER AR (TARQF]) R
20066 H21BIRER 2 RS R AES
228 (1961F A3 - Kiza RIEF])
FREHEAMKNIREREERA
A) o AN B 5% it #% =5 R i 4 ACricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° 4~ 7] 722010910 821 B 7£ B
RETERLE™ ©

KRB RENBAR (ABIAEE])
TERFEAMEETEE KRBT -
ARARER([EF))RR A&H
R & #5122 I8 A 8] £Octopus Holdings
Foundation * —FHRF & STz
Eo/NII

o) N
ARAFEEMBRARFBET

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name MR /LR BERT/ER KEBES activities
AR EH BEwHERAH ERRRAHE EEEAL TEXH
Springland International Group British Virgin Island ("BVI") USS$1 100% Investment holding E
Company Limited @ 12 June 2006 e REER s
AR EBARA T KEELHES ol
2006%64128 0
Springland (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% Investment holding =z %E
25 January 2006 1% BEER Z
B z
200651 A25H
Novel Vanguard Investment Limited®@® BVI USS$1 100% Investment holding
MBREFRA A 21 November 2011 E9 REER
REENHES
2011511 R218
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12 A31HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AaIR&EEER (F)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

MEARE

# (&)

ARBEEMBRAFBENT : (&)

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE 4 BIFE R B R AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3§

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name S L/ LR ERT/ER AEBEY activities
R4 BEHERAH EBRRRAEE BREH TEER
Springland International Enterprises Hong Kong HK$38,000,000 100% Investment holding
Limited © 17 June 1993 38,000,000/ 7 RERR
EFEERCEAERRAY 0
1993%6A17H
Octopus (Singapore) PTE Limited “ Singapore SGDY00,000 100% Investment holding
28 August 2014 900,000%7 I3 T REER
A
2014F8H28H
Jiangsu Springland International People’s Republic of China US$360,000,000 100% Investment holding
Holdings (Group) Ltd. ®1" (the "PRC")/Mainland China 360,000,000 7T REER
IEHEHBEREREEFRA R O0 12 February 1996
/R B
199652 A 12H
Shanghai Springland Enterprise PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB850,000,000 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. @ 6 November 1996 ARE 100% REZR
ERENCERERRAAC F /e 850,000,0007T
® 1996511 A6A
z
Em Changshu Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
PE= Co., Ltd. 29 July 2004 ARM department stores
g BBNEREEERATY FEFEAE 200000007 BEEHE
oI® 2004 7R29R
= g§
= Danyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB260,000,000 100% Operation of
i Co., Ltd. @ 17 March 2004 ARE department stores
AGNEHEEBERAFY hE/AEAL 260,000,0007T BERg
2004F3R17R
Jiangsu Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 March 2001 ARE supermarkets
IHEAGERNTOERAR hE/AEAL 35,000,000 e
2001F3A14R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11 M
5 %% i ak MY =

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RAREBEESE (&) e
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MiE A TER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREBWMEBRARFBWOT : (B)

are as follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name ML/ LR ERT/ERL KEBEL activities
NRER BeEnBRAN EERRRAHE BREI TEXH
Jiangyin Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 5 June 2003 ARE department stores
IRNEHEERLERARC H /e B 130,000,0007T and supermarkets
200356 H5H BEREERET
Jiangsu Jintan Datonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB215,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 17 April 2003 ARE department stores
IHSEAREENTLERAAY H /e B 215,000,0007 and supermarkets
2003%F4A17H REARERED
Liyang Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 2002 ARE supermarkets
EEAGERNTLERRAE /R B 10,000,0007T mEEm
20026 A28H
Liyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB110,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 29 April 2002 ARE department stores
EHN\EHEBERLERAR H /e 110,000,0007C KERER
200264 A29H
n
Liyang No.1 Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,225,000 100% Property holding E
Co., Ltd. 22 May 2001 N BENE =
EBHHE-EERARY o B/ B 1,225,000 CEs
2001457228 Bh K
=g}
o3
Wuxi Springland Investment PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB667,615,196 100% Investment holding g =
Management Co., Ltd. @ 15 April 1980 ARH RERR =
BEEHREERARAAO /B A 667,615,1967C [
1980%4A15H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R EE

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEEHR (F)

MEARE

# (&)

ARBEEMBRAFBENT : (&)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name S L/B LR BRT/ED KEBES activities
NEER KEnHRAN ERRRAHE EEEAL TEXH
Wuxi Angexin Technology Co., Ltd. @ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of
BHTBENEARAAC 27 July 2006 AR technology service
hE/HE A 5,000,0007C R BT IR
200657 A278
Wuxi Datonghua Shopping Co., Ltd. ¢l PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
BERGEBMERAAY 25 September 2006 ARE supermarkets
hE/HE A 20,000,0007C Rem
2006F9A25H
Wuxi Huiquan Logistics Co., Ltd. ¢ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of
BHERMTER AR 26 March 2007 ARE logistics service
hE/REAM 10,000,0007 REMR RS
2007F3A26H
Wuxi Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB301,911,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 25 March 1994 ARE department stores
EHN\EHEEERLERAR FR /e 301,911,0007T and supermarkets
199453 A25H KRERRERET
17
'uz: Yixing Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB580,000,000 100% Operation of
= 1 Co., Ltd. ® 24 May 2000 ARE department stores
CEe EREWARARARD PE/PEME 580,000,007 BEELRE
05K 2000457248
=}
gZn
g3§ Yixing Housa Plaza Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% Operation of
= ERTNEESERAFD 13 February 2004 ARE department stores
T B/ E A 30,000,0007 BERgE
2004F2R13R
Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB350,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 28 August 2006 ARE department stores
HEIMN\BEHEEEERAR H /e 350,000,0007% and supermarkets
20068 A28H KEREERED

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE 4 BIFE R B R AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <1
5 %% i ak MY =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

1. 2AREEEHR (&)

M EER (&)
AAREEMBRARFEOT : (B)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name ML/ LR ERT/ERL KEBEL activities
NRER BeEnBRAN EERRRAHE BREI TEXH
Ma’anshan Yaohan Trading PRC/Mainland China  RMB141,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 22 August 2008 ARE department stores
SRUNEHBEEERARY H /e B 141,000,0007C KEREE
2008F8AH22R
Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB31,938,786 98.93% Operation of
Joint Stock Company Limited 16 September 1993 ARE department stores
mE\EHBEEROERA R hE/HEA 31,938,7867C K2REE
1993%9A16H
Changxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB75,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 17 November 2009 ARE department stores
RE\AHBEEERARAY b B/ B i 75,000,0007C and supermarkets
2009411 A178 KEREERED
Taixing Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. © 2 December 2010 ARE supermarkets
RETAGERDTOERA T o B/ B i 10,000,0007 gR2ED
2010%12A2H
2
Changzhou Yaohan Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB25,000,000 100% Operation of Z2
Co., Ltd. ® 17 September 2010 ARE department stores =il
EMNBREEARAF GETGE T 25,000,0007C and supermarkets  JLA=E=
2010597178 CEE Tt B
52k
Anging Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of 275
Co., Ltd. @ 8 February 2007 ARE department stores =
ZEN\BHEEBRAAY HR /e 130,000,0007 and supermarkets o
200742H8H BREREERED
Xuancheng Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB153,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 1 September 2011 ARE department stores
EMNEHEEERARY o/ B 153,000,0007 and supermarkets
201159818 REREERED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12 A31HIEFE
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AaIR&EEER (F)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

MEBARER ()
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREBWMEBRARFBWOT : (B)

are as follows: (continued)

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  ZE 4 BIFE R B R AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3§

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name S /B LR ERT/ER KEBES activities
NEER KEwHERAN ERRRAHE EEEAL TEXH
Jiangsu Green Land Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB5,100,000 100%  Supply of vegetables
Technology Development Co., Ltd. @ 23 August 2011 ARE R X
IEHRERBRERBRA R hE/HE A 5,100,0007T
201158230
Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce PRC/Mainland China US$10,000,000 55% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 1993 10,000,000% 70 department stores
BMEREEERAR B/ E A BERE
1993564281
Wuxi Beitang Datonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 21 June 2013 ARE supermarkets
EHURAGERNARLA A hE/HE A 10,000,0007C gR2ED
2013§6A21H
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle Center PRC/Mainland China US$107,040,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 14 August 2013 107,040,000% Tt department stores
BHGIL\EHEERSERAR hE/HE A BEREE
2013F8A14R
2
z Jiaxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB624,000,000 100% Operation of
=il Co., Ltd.® 11 September 2012 ARE department stores
CEe EE\EEEEERAR hE/RERE 624,000,000 and supermarkets
l@!,',g 201269A11R BEBEERBY
o2k
g3§ Wuhu Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  RMB500,000,000 100% Operation of
= Co., Ltd.2 10 December 2014 IN: department stores and
T B \EHERRRERARY B/ A 500,000,007 supermarkets
201412108 BREREERED
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China US$45,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ HR /e 45,000,000% ¢ department stores
BIRERNERARC 24 December 1993 B2ARE
1998F 12 424H



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11 M
5 %% i ak MY = |

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RAREBEESE (&) e
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MiE A TER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREBWMEBRARFBWOT : (B)

are as follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name S LB LR ERT/ER KEBEY activities
ARER SEHERAH ERRRAHE EREAL TEXH
Yixing Rongtong Trade & Commerce PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB129,046,200 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ W /e AR supermarkets
HERBHERRAAY 16 December 2013 129,046,2007T Regm
2013412/ 16H
Wuxi Tangtangguozhi Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 85% Leisure drinks
Management Co., Ltd. ¥ W /e ARE industry
EREERZEHERERARN 15 July 2015 1,000,0007T KB KR E
201557158
Wuxi Tianmaixianfang Food PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Food processing
Co., Ltd.® hE/AEAM ARE RmiI
EHMEESRRARAA 16 July 2015 3,000,0007C
201557 A16H
Yinian Shanghai Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Trading
Management Co., Ltd. ¥ HR /e ARE 2%
BF (LB)REEBFRAR 9 December 2015 20,000,0007¢
2015F12A9R
n
Shanghai Yunnian Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Catering E
Management Co., Ltd. 3 May 2016 ARE management = 4
ERFERERERATY B/ B 5,000,007 LU P
201645438 g
E3m
z -
Shanghai Zhaonian Enterprise PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Investment g’n?
Management Co., Ltd. 29 April 2016 ARE management =
TEBKFEXERBRARY o B/ Bl it 10,000,007 REER i
201654 A 29H
Jiangyin Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 28 April 2016 ARE department stores
IRNEHEEESAERA R hE/HE A 20,000,0007C BEREE
201654 A 28H
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

are as follows: (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

1. RAIRKEEER (&)

MEAEER (&)
ARAREEMBARFROT : (8)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name S L/ LR ERT/ER KEBEL activities
R4 BEHERAH EBRRRAEE EREAL TEER
Nantong Datonghua PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Shopping Co., Ltd.* 12 August 2016 ARE supermarkets
MRAGERNERAFY hE/AEA 10,000,0007C e
201658A12H
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & PRC/Mainland China RMB49,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd.® 5 November 2007 ARE department stores
AR\EHEEERAFY hE/AEAL 49,000,000 BERg
2007%11A5H
Wuxi Kuichong Roast Meat PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 100% Catering
Catering Management Co., Ltd. @ 31 October 2017 AR 600,000 management
EHERERERERARAFY R/ B £HER
2017%10A31H
Wuxi Yiping Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000 100% Catering
Co., Ltd. @ 31 October 2017 AR %800,0007T management
EBH-mEEERERAA B/ E A ZHER
2017%10R31H
Wuxi Qianjianshan Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB1,500,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. ¢ 31 October 2017 AR #1,500,0007 management
BHERLERERBERAA B/ B EHRER
2017%10R31H

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3B R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11 M
5 %% i ak MY =

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12A31HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RAREBEESE (&) e
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MiE A TER (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries AAREBWMEBRARFBWOT : (B)

are as follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of  Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operation share capital Company Principal
Name ML/ LR ERT/ERL KEBEL activities
NRER BeEnBRAN EERRRAHE BREI TEXH
Wuxi Yueyuan Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. 31 October 2017 AKX %2,000,0007T management
REBRERERARAAY H /e B ZRER
2017410A31H
Wuxi Haigangting Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. 7 November 2017 AR 800,000t management
RO BEEEHERERAAY Hh /R ERER
2017611478
Wuxi Yijiatian Catering PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100% Catering
Management Co., Ltd. 24 November 2017 AR#500,0007T management
B —RHESERBRARY H /e ERER
2017411 F 248
Changzhou Zhaonian Commerce & PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd.® 16 July 2018 A K#20,000,0007T supermarkets
BN ERERERAAY /R B mERm
201847 A 168 E
i
Huzhou Datonghua Supermarket PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Operation of gﬁg
Co., Ltd. 5 November 2018 A& #5,000,0007C supermarkets [P E““
ANAGERT AR AR hE/HE A wEwm Sa'g
2018411 A58 “om
3
Jiangsu Yaohan Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of s
Management Co., Ltd.® 25 June 2018 AR #10,000,0007T department stores
L& \EHEXERERAGY B/ B At meRm
2018F6H25H
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Management Co., Ltd. 27 November 2018 A& 10,000,000 department stores
BHHIL\EHEXERERARY hE/AEA BB
2018411 A27H
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(@) Except for Springland International Group Company
Limited and Novel Vanguard Investment Limited, which
are directly owned by the Company, all of the above
companies are indirectly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

(b)  Jiangsu Springland International Holdings (Group) Ltd.
issued medium-term financing notes and corporate
bonds in 2016. Please refer to notes 30 & 31 for
detailed information.

(c) Types of legal entities:

M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

@ Sino-foreign equity joint venture

® Limited liability company invested by a foreign
invested enterprise

@ Limited liability company

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

HE2018F12A31HILFE
CORPORATE AND GROUP ANEIREEER (F)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MiE A TER (8)

@ KREDEREEERAFLRNERER
RARRARREREASN - LA
NAERARREEEENNBAR -

b) ITEEHMBEFIZREBREBRAFIRNR2016
FRITPHEBMARES - FEH2
BIMFE30 %31 -

i

© ZEREBHRA:

pul

0 RESNEBALE
o RSAERE

O HIERECERENBREETA
=l

0 AREEAF
mREE

APBHRERDIREBERGAEAZES
Mz BRI S 2R (BEAENE
PRE SR - RS ER L BRE)
R ATARBARARGHRALER
(RAHEPDMWBEER - BRTESRT
BERAAFEFEUN AP HRER
BESLRALRE - CRIELEEBH
RAEGEEERKREERIRBHEEKA
BORFEREKEIR  E—TOEE
P EE2.4 - AP BHEAAREZS
BRARRN MBEBEBEZEER
B T8 -
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Year ended 31 December 2018

BE20185F12A31B LFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 R EE (&) = =
(CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation A OfEE

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

KIFE U BRRBEBEARAREWNEAR
A (i [ A&EE]) & £2018F12 A 31
BIEFEUHBEHRE - WEBAR (BEE
BHER) HERARA R EE S MEE
FleEE EXASEEEEELEY
WIRE R 22 EMEE A 20 ®% 2 Rk
SER  UREEHSREWIEE ST
FREIMEEF@BRR 85D (BIERZ
G T AEE S REIRE ST HEBEE
2B K BIRREESIZEGIE -

BEANREEIMEMERERKRETZ
DERERSEEURENE - ARER
AEREHRRENTHERNEERM
BHBZFERER B

() HEBRRESTZEMREREAAZ
BT

b) EbEORHMEEZERN &

) AKBIREERRBERTE-

MBARMBHRRZFRAEAMERR
B A MER - WERA — A TR
R-WMBARZEEDBAKEIRGE
HlEZBETUREFE TR EFE
AE EREMNEFELEARL -

BIfE S B I A R s B AR B AL 45
£ ANRRFHAEARFERBRESE
DIEAEEERUABERTEREME
W  NREBARBRRZERZAA
BEREARRIMEERAMG  #a -
A RAXEBREREZMREAKE K
BB -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 EE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

2014-2016 Cycle

AOFEE(E)

fid % DA B Pt 2 = TRy ER — B
ZHENBENEZEERBERT  AKHE
EFFEREEURRENHERES
T’é RIEREZEGEZBERT MBS

NREFTBREZEDORIERER IR
® -

MAEBLKENB AR ZIEH#  KNE
BRIEEEROMNBRARICEE (B1EH
B) RBE: () E TR R ER 2R
HE: RiVEESPRERE 2 0HEES
B RER)BWERREZRQFE : (i)
ERMIRE 2R ERAFE  K(ii)EREA
MR EREE 2 BHRIEE - KEE
FRREMmEEKEPER SHEEMN
5 - ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁrﬂj%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ
%E\ﬁ BB EZHREEFEES
DE BRI IRE R F

EBRRREENET

AEBRANFEPBRER P ERFEAN
T RERT BB RS 8R S 2R -

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based REHREERF% HROBERGTFL A
Payment Transactions (IB3T) PERTE
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BE R ENES BER G SR E5 R
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (BFTE) BH-HERER B HEE
» AlE9528TA
T IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRABRSEN SR ZHIA
ot IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers RHBREENESE  HEPIZENANELONAR
FEE BEET
@ » g Amendments to IFRS 15 Olrifcatons o IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts ﬁ"%ﬁ?l BRERIER BB REEENE {5}5‘5
o3& with Customers (BETA) EPEHRAmEE
= gm Amendments to 1AS 40 Transfers of Investment Property B2 5HER|F405 (BATA) @gﬁfé"%ﬁ
< [FRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance ARHERERENEE0S  JEFREN FUE
= Consideration
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 ZEPFEZE 58S ARMBREENER

ZEEHE ARE R 28RN R
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

Except for the amendments to IFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on
the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification
of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet an employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the
approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-
based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified
in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction are modified,
with the result that it becomes an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification.
The amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group
as the Group does not have any cash-settled
share-based payment transactions and has
no share-based payment transactions with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

228 HRRBENES ()

BEANEE P BRARMKREERS
ENBERT B REERESRIETA)

ARk =—F—mFE=F—
SE SN

INFHERZF
AT R AE AT B R B 765 3 o5 2

AMMEERFEWT

(a)

Rt AR B g mMmeBIRE
B & RSB 2R ERT AR =K
8 REGRMTHGTEUARSEE
BOXNRZNEE: REBRETT
B X B R B B W TR
ET2RNRHXNRS (HEF
BMAEERD) OB URBERMHX
NRSHERRIEHERSED R
HAECRHREE RS EENEBTR
VEETRIETE o A FERIANRE
FAGE AR S A B RO R
BIRHFOARTATMEAR AR
RERMDXN - ZFBITASIA—
EBIINER - B E TR -
REBETHBEEEMERNE T2
BHEBOXNRS (MAFREE
$H)  BEBEDBAURKERR
MRS o I - ZFERTAH
HBIHA MURSEERNDIHR
PR MR B FTER] - S HK
BURBEERNINRS &R
HEETBHREERNESEERN
R ARk o RS B3 & 5L IR
MEREETRFREERENNA
B RERNRORS - REHE
VAR A 75 Z B AN SR B0 32 55 B 16 3K %
fER1F1E D ETE 2 - BEiE % FER]
HARKEWER S I % WK B

=2
= e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which
the Group has applied prospectively, the Group
has recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances in
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts
of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing IAS
39’s incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS
9’s expected credit losses (“ECLS”).

228 HRRBENES ()

BUBR B IS 3RS A 505k & B T ALEY
REBR e ERE30% 2/ T A -
AR E W 201851 A1 H A
BRRNTFEHEER 652/
TEeHMAEZEE :: HEM
AERE REHER -

BRAEMBEHIN AEEEERR
20181 A1 B ¥ A M= B0 4
BMRIEHBEFAE - At - LEER
AR AR BBl 4 B AR TR BB AT 2E A
FE395R RS o

SERME
BT K431 5% P R 3 4 0
AIBORHABHARROLE - &
13 LA B A 1 o 2 R B O T
BB KB IR & R S30%
8B AR HOTE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12 A31HIEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts
under IAS 39 and the balances reported under

IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

228 BHERBENED (&)

(o) (#&)
DHERFE (E)

HZE2018F1A1H - BB &st%8|
F39R A IR E & 5B B BB S TR
ZER BOSR IR & A FAEE 2 RIS a0

T
1AS 39 IFRS 9
Measurement measurement
BB REE BB REEN
H30%iE ORI E
Re-
Notes  Category ~ Amount classification ECL Other Amount  Category
Wit g5l ¢F EFHESE RHEEEX At £ | 5l
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFL AREFI
Financial assets SHEE
Equity investments designated at fair value A% EERBE AR
through other comprehensive income A EERERE NA = 5,188 = = 5,188 Fvogl'
|From: Avaltle-forsale ivestments AR ERE () 5,188 3 :
Available-for-sale investments TREERE AFS? 5,188 (5,188) = = = NA
To: Equity investments designated at fair 2 : JAA EEEBE
value through other comprehensive FakakERE
income % () (5,188) = s
Trade recelvables FEMsE L&R® 6,412 - - - 6,412 ACH
Due from the controling shareholder ~ ERIRBRE L8R 99,084 - - E 99,984 AC
Financial assets included in prepayments 4 B EEAFERNFER
and other receivables Rt L&R 279,653 = = - 279653 AC
Time depost TR LR 348625 = L - u8e% AC
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLERN L4R 275,731 = = - 27573 AC
1,015,593 - - - 1,015,593
Total assets AELE 1,015,593 - - - 101559
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and bills payables EREFNENZE AC 1,278,855 = - - 1,278,855 AC
Financial liablties included in other SREERELENEL
payables and accruals Rt RAER AC 869,430 - - - 869,430 AC
Corporate bonds RAlkH AC 817,070 - - - 817070 AC
Medium-term financing notes HEZE AC 300,074 - - - 300974 AC
Derivative financial instruments fiEeBIA FVPLS 13270 - - - 13270 FVPL
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERTER AC 1,863,948 - - - 1,863,948 AC
5,162,547 - - - 5,152,547
Total liabilities BELE 5,152,547 - - - 5,152,547
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R EE

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)
(b) (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)
1. FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income
2. AFS: Available-for-sale investments
3. L&R: Loans and receivables

4. AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at

amortised cost

5. FVPL: Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

Notes:

()  The Group has elected the option to irrevocably
designate certain of its previous available-for-sale
investments as equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Group performed a detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable
information, including forward-looking elements,
for estimation of expected credit losses on
its financial assets in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9. The adoption of
IFRS 9 has had no significant impact on the
impairment of the financial assets of the Group.
No additional credit loss allowance has been
recognised against accumulated profits as
the amounts involved are insignificant as at 1

January 2018.

Impact on reserves and retained profits

The transition to IFRS 9 had no impact on
reserves and retained profits as at 1 January

2018.

228 HRRBENES ()

(0)

(&)
PEREE (&)
1. FVOCI: BBEMERE WEAA R

BERSNEMEE

2. AFS: A[ftHERE

3. L&R: BEFFIEMKKIE

4, AC: REHEEAFENSREE
LEMAERE

5. FVPL: &RiEEHBBIBERIER
A BEFENEHEE

e

() SEEERBEEUNAHEENR
LR EBEERBBEMES WA
ARABERENBEAKRE -

R AE

AEBEETHFASNT  HEZE
FMBEEELEER (BERER
=) - AHEMR BRI A B PR B 7 i
AERBOFRRE 2 TBHEEERE - K
A0 B PR B 75 e 5 ZE Rl B 95 S AN R (]
EEENRBETESAZE - K
20181 H1H ' BRI SEIL T
EA - BBLER R EE AR I
EEBEREE -

HERFRZERN

20181 A1H » B 3 BB B 75
5 7 B 55 O 5% I 4 35 (R 4 K2 AR B8 055

Rl R 2 -
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(©

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11
Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The disclosures are included in
notes 3 and 6 to the financial statements. As a
result of the application of IFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption.
Under this method, the standard can be applied
either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected
to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018. The impacts of
the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

()  Consideration received from customers in
advance.

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as other payables.
Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified
as contract liabilities which are included in
other payables and accruals.

228 HRRBENES ()

(©)

BESBEREEAEISFEIRAT
BR gt ERIENREES AT
BRErEF18RUARE@Z
B BHSERAINMER - BAR
EPANELENMBEA - BRE
B EEAE1GFREL —EF O
FRA - BHABEFPANELEN
Wt o IRBEIR 5 G ERE15
5 WERERREBEYN SR
AEFEEEMARGMERER
MRESRER - ERMBREE
AIF155E ) R A 5T B R R WS
REEMSEBIHTE - ZERITR
SIABZHEEREERBEMRTE -
BEIFRGSEE BRETE
T TRAMAZENEERAEBRR
B AR B ) DA K = B HI T R b5t
BB R o WEAREHN MG HRRN
H3M6 - ARIEABRY B REE
AIZE155% - NEBECHMBRRN
2.4 ATER B ET IR o

.

AEBRAEETNBPRAER
A BIRR 81 75 3R 5 X RIZE 1657 - IRIE
ERITE - RERA AR
RE<BHMAEER - HBA AEM
R BRTEROAER - AEHEE
BRI EAR2018F1 A18 4
RERBELK - RABRRIBERE
R FE1SEH AEBA B REKRF
ZmT -

() FEEBRBFEFHENEZR

HEEAIFRS 152781 AEE
BREEPEE Y ERR
& H M JE S 3E o R EEIFRS
15 - ZeBHEOPEAEGRA
& © BIEFEE b B FFIFE 5T
BRT -
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(c

(d)

(continued)

()  Consideration received from customers in
advance. (continued)

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the
Group reclassified RMB1,281,052,000
from other payables to contract liabilities
as at 1 January 2018 in relation to the
consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IAS 40, clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property
under construction or development, into or out
of investment property. The amendments state
that a change in use occurs when the property
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the
change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not
provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments have had no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC Interpretation 22, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction
when applying IAS 21 to the situation where an
entity receives or pays advance consideration
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interpretation
clarifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied
for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or
non-monetary liabilities is consistent with the
guidance provided in the interpretation.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B HEME R E XK EIRR I 15

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL wREER

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and REBRZEMBRERIAFEATIE
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet B R AR RIS R B
effective, in these financial statements. s 2R -

Amendments o IFRS 3
Amendments to [FRS 9
Amendments to [FRS 10 and IAS 28

Definition of a Busingss?
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

AREHREERZR (i 5)
AREHREERZ0R (B 5)
RGBSR 0E RER

HRBER
ABRRENEAET I
REERAEZILEL50H

(2011) its Associate or Joint Venture* SHENENEQ01) (BIR)  FELEL L
IFRS 16 Leases' BRHERLER 0% He

IFRS 17 Instrance Contracts® BEHERLERSTR wELHP
Amendments to 1AS 1 and 1AS 8 Definition of MateriaP BREHENFIRRERSH  HEMER

R0 (577%)

Amendments to 1AS 19 Plan Amencment, Curtaiment or Setfement! BEHENSI0% (BTR)  FHLT SR

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' BReFEAE0T (BR)  FEELEALEREPHKH
E
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' BRUBRERBLLENS  FAAEEHTEEL

=]
ZE-1¥E-5-1F

Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, 1AS 19, BRUBREERF - ERE
2015-2017 Cycle AS 12and 1AS 23 GHERRE BREEAZENE BRes
ERER AR e Rl E
R (BTR)
' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 X EE%O19$1H1 A sz kR FRHHE
January 2019 ; A ;> 1% B 4 2 B
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 EE%O2O¢”EH Rz RFBmEEHRE
January 2020 o o 1 B o [
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 i%;miﬂ;ﬁ Askz kR FRHE
X

January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption
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REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS
10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

HZE2018F12A31HILEE
2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BB KL RN BRI
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL WEXER (F)

EE S EARN A EE Y RS B R
SR — S ERMT

BB B R R E B BB 35% (15T AK) BB
E¥BTEE - LIREEINES] - 5ZIEF]
AETRHAI R AEBN—EHERFIMNE
EMNEERIORE—BEEAN—BEBEZE
BIE - MWAENBUEXKREZNEENE
BEAERH  EXNBERREERELNE
AT AR ASBIE - ZIEFTBUS T 51 1A
MZ2EERTHENNEER IR
BEESKZMNET EHAELE TR
BREANMEZ BELRFK KB
NEGERER - ZIEFTEWE W
THEHE ZHEIATFRERHEMNE R
R  RERAT A B EHELANE
U A o AN - EFT AR TR RS BT A
FrES@IER B EANMIES  THEA
ABEEFREHHEIE - £ FYHTERE
H— 4 ENEERTSTBRESET
LA E - AEETEE H52020%1 818
HBEAZEBE -

B R B RS iR 5 BB 105% R B BR & 51 %
B Z5285R M5 5T 7N B 22 50 B2 B 75 o 5 2
Bl 551057 B2 B R = 5F ZE Bl 55285 /W &
FRREEHABENAHALERARZ
MOWEELEITENREL T —HH
B e ZEBETARTE  MEEHHRE
BENF AL AR ZENEEHEH
EEEK —EER  ARIAZHRIZK
EBE XSS RTEXN—BEENE
B ZRXPEENRENEERICES
MIBR AR WEAEBEREEER
ZHMENAHEE DA NERER %
LB AR ARRBEREER - BERGTH%
SR MERIZE 1057 & BFR @5 2B 2857
(2011 B AT A 2 Bl Ay 58 I £ % H HAE
R2016F1 A BB et LA BEEeH
B o #Foa sl A B HS R YL R R &
AEANRN T RIBETEEZRFT
FRBIRTE « AT » ZFEFTANIRE Al 4
FEF ©

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3B R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %% i ak MY =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B 8 #5 1B 15 R 4 R AY Bl PR B 7 ————

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC Interpretation
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, SIC Interpretation 15 Operating Leases -
Incentives and SIC Interpretation 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates
to a class of property, plant and equipment to which
the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under IAS 17.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in IFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives.
In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions
allowed by the standard on lease contracts whose
lease terms end within 12 months as of the date
of initial application. During 2018, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of
adoption of IFRS 16. The Group has estimated that
right-of-use assets of RMB870,579,000 and lease
liabilities of RMB833,853,000 will be recognised at 1
January 2019.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature
or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions made by the primary
users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity
applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied
to the net investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising losses
of an associate or joint venture and impairment of
the net investment in the associate or joint venture.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments on
1 January 2019 and will assess its business model
for such long-term interests based on the facts and
circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using
the transitional requirements in the amendments. The
Group also intends to apply the relief from restating
comparative information for prior periods upon
adoption of the amendments.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 addresses the accounting
for income taxes (current and deferred) when tax
treatments involve uncertainty that affects the
application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (i) how an entity determines taxable
profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an
entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively,
either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight
or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement
of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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HZE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHBRME (F) = =
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) ERCHREE (&)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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BZE20185F12 ABHIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FERHBRBE () = 5
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Impairment of non-financial assets FELERMEERE

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)
(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESHHEME (&) -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant

o
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated ERpER -EENFERSHUOT ¢ E
useful life. The useful lives for this purpose are as =
follows: EEE
gEE
Land and buildings 20 to 40 years T RIET 20z406 EM
Renovation and leasehold 2 to 10 years BN T2 A4S 2E104 ZEE
improvements =
Machinery 10 years 425 104 i
Motor vehicles 5 years T 5%
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years RS E N 3&E5F
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FERHBRBE () = 5

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Lease agreement buyouts

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payments to old tenants to buy out their
lease agreements. The lease agreement buyouts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms of 10 to 19 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X ERHBEME (H) P

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHBEME () ~~—

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)
(continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative;
and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance
costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in the market conditions.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X ERHBEME (H) P

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EETTHRHUE (F)

(7]
=
b4
1]
=
Pl
N
wwn
=l
2%
25
b4
<
=
(TS

B 75 R 3% B =

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount
at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T ERHBEMBE (H) Tl

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date,
the Group evaluates whether the debt investments
are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. In making
that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the debt investments. In addition,
the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHBEME () e W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.
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risk has increased significantly since ERBEZILM B
initial recognition but that are not credit- FEERELHEER

impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that
contain a significant financing component and lease
receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESHHEME (&) -

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 T ERHBEMBE (H) Tl

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset - using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in
other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged
on these financial liabilities.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHBEME () ~~—

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities

when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of

profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-
in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to

be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHBRME (F) = =
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EEHHERE (F) ——
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Income tax (continued) Fres (&)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously in each future
period in which significant amount of deferred tax
liabilities or assets and expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Bonus point liabilities

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the Group’s department stores
and supermarkets. The points can then be redeemed
for gifts and coupons, subject to a minimum number
of points being obtained. The coupons are cash-
equivalents when customers use them to purchase
products of the Group.

Consideration received is allocated between the
products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to their
fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying statistical analyses. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24FERHBRBE () = 5

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Sale of goods — direct sales
Revenue from the sale of goods — direct sales
is recognised at the point in time when control
of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

(b) Commission income from concessionaire sales
Commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised at the point in time when control
of the goods is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods at the amount
of the gross consideration of the sales of goods
deducted by the proceeds paid to the venders.

(c) Provision of management services
Revenue from the provision of management
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T EETTHRHUE (F)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

WA (H2018F1H18#ER) (&)

Revenue from other sources H A IR IHA

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion £ W A FATE 4 BR X 12 B ] Bt 1) B YE T
basis over the lease terms. R o

Other income H A

Fee income from suppliers is recognised according
to the underlying contract terms with suppliers when
these services have been provided in accordance
therewith.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

e revenue from direct sales of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

e commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised at the amount of the gross
consideration of the sales of goods deducted by
the proceeds paid to the venders, upon the sale
of goods by the relevant stores;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24X ERHBEME (H) P

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Other income

e rental income is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms;

e fee income from suppliers is recognised
according to the underlying contract terms
with suppliers when these services have been
provided in accordance therewith;

° interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

e dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
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contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract.

Employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
Government, all the subsidiaries of the Group that
were established in Mainland China (the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) have participated in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC Subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to
pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 5.0% (2017: 4.9%) has been
applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the Directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT QAT ESTTHEBE (8) — - 5
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies hi

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China use Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”") or United States dollars (“US$”) as their
functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of the PRC Subsidiaries is Renminbi.
As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China,
Renminbi is used as the presentation currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgement (continued)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty THEEL T

The key assumptions concerning the future and HEARBEEZzEZEREIERBERRZ

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the Hh st T EEREZZITERBRENIRE

end of the reporting period, that have a significant NN - B G ] R B T E B BUE

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying ERNUEENBEZCEOEELEELNSE

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next B7EANER -

financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill B E

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired AREBZLEFFERERT LR

at least on an annual basis. This requires an B -2EZKkEo2HTHENHEESELE
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating BamERBEETES - GEtERE

units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating B AEEBSFEFFTARAKKERS

the value in use requires the Group to make an EHETHNRESAEE BEHEERE

estimate of the expected future cash flows from the MEBLIRRAEZERN S RENHEME-
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable BEN2018F12A31EMEEE A A

discount rates in order to calculate the present value R #250,384,0007C (20174 : AR¥&

of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill 250,384,0007T ) 2 1 8 5 B 76 4R 2% Fit

at 31 December 2018 was RMB250,384,000 (2017: 7320 °

RMB250,384,000). Further details are contained in

note 20 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than o EERE (FERI))

gooawill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators AEEBRSHREHRTHIEEHEES

of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end BHERRETR - THEEFHNIES R

of each reporting period. Intangible assets with BEENREEXRED S B RTERME 4
indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually and RETRE®RE - HEM3EopEERE z
at other times when such an indicator exists. Other EJT%‘U@T/HEEETE@T\EM&@E%ZE?%}@% Eﬁd
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when Bighl - EEESIRSELBM CIRE  Fedos
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may Ffﬁtﬁﬁ‘ﬂ&@ﬁ% I RRE AR o S
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the B REARFEREERNEEER N
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit BEZREReE FAEATEREEK oaik
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher AEBRBHENAFHEEHUNEER o
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value SR ERATEEHNGKEEEE Mg <zt
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of MK - EIBENIEFGEESNIE S =
disposal is based on available data from binding sales EESUBAHNRKESE  WERE—
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar EAteE /B IE KT ER S RAIRE -

assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

ERE5 MR A5 (&)

H i (8)
BEHEAE—AEBERL A

AREBECDREEEMEEEFILEAY
EZith+ °$E@$ﬁ<ﬁﬂzﬂiﬂl§¥k R 1
BT R TR LR R *E?Jfﬁ&*éﬁ“ ‘fﬁ%ﬂ
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

E R M B R A5 (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued) EEt T REEM (&)
Deferred tax assets BT IR E E

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses and deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The carrying value
of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses and deductible temporary differences at
31 December 2018 was RMB122,508,000 (2017:
RMB119,539,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2018 was RMB405,765,000
(2017: RMB306,059,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Further details
are contained in note 24 to the financial statements.

BERBEEENDRADAHRESER
AEIAE R Z R ERALR - MELAE
Rt AR FHEEZE AR AR S B
HEEBEELUTRINEHEEZEENS
HEAR - -EEA THER E’WEU}EEI,E%E
MoK EEEAREARENE/Z
BE - RRPE R s A E R R R IEET 2
By RS 1B 8 K T - 72018412 A 31
B EEEHERBESERITEMNNY
HUEZE2MNREHEEERAEABEAA
R #122,508,0007T (20174 : A R ¥
119,539,0007T) ° 201812 A31H
BR—Z2RFRE AR KA R K ER
i A M £ 58 A A R405,765,0007T
(20174 = A R #306,059,0007T) &) &
HEBITAERAELEREBEELEE  AA
EEZSHEBENNBAREEE—
ERBERE - WA TBEF NS AE A B R B m Al
RARENRIBEE - FBEHRMBHRE
B 5E24 -

Bonus point liabilities Z5ESEE

The amount of revenue attributable to the credits é%. 0 52 By 5t B B R P AT R AY
award earned by the customers of the Group’s T_E'\ﬂ REEENRASER pﬁzﬁﬂﬁ*@'
loyalty point programme is estimated based on the 7 iﬁ@]ﬂﬁé$ﬁ&ﬁ n'|'?§17§$1$2+
fair value of the credits awarded and the expected 5‘; EJ{TT VE;'-TJ%J’E B 1& i 7] T@VEE’J
redemption rate. The expected redemption rate is W) %@W YRGB EAR TG HRE
estimated by considering the number of the credits E@%ﬂf@i T§ f’EE:ﬁr K2018%F 12
that will be available for redemption in the future AStHEBRAAEMNEREEEARA

after allowing for credits which are not expected to
be redeemed. The carrying amount of bonus point
liabilities at 31 December 2018 was RMB36,683,000
(2017: RMB32,508,000).

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB4,222,320,000. The Directors have prepared
these financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liability position
because the Directors expected that the Group
will generate sufficient cash inflows from the sales
proceeds on the operation of department stores
and supermarkets, and will successfully refinance
its current interest-bearing debts by various means
including but not limited to renewing its existing
loans, utilising its unused bank facilities, and issuing
new bonds, to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due.

E%36,683,0007z (20174 - AR
32,508,0007T) °

ERBRE

MR2018F12A31H  AEERHAER
HERBEE LN ARE4222,320,000
JT ° i ZKEEIﬁ/?/IIL@Jﬁ{E Z’K/L\\a
ﬁ%@i%%ﬁf%& s R B AR ol B 7% 5
ReARREEBHAEEJEEZR
EERBMEEMERERELERHIN
HemA » WBBRZESR (BFEETR
REGBREER  FRARKETRERE
€ BITES) BESEKETEREN
BITEIHEENET
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HZE2018F12A31ALFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT LEHWBER
INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised HREERFE  AEEREER R MR
into business units based on their products and BEEGD BZEAZEREN - oA

services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

TRERRELE D

- Department store segment — BEEDE
- Supermarket segment — HEmoEs

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, fair value gains from the
Group’s financial instruments, gains on disposal of
unquoted current investments, stated at cost as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from this measurement.

w

Segment assets exclude the Group’s available-for-
sale investments, deferred tax assets, restricted cash,
long-term time deposits at banks, tax recoverable,
amounts due from the controlling shareholder, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

EEEeNHEREEDMONEEAEL
BERDERELFEERR - D EBRA
FHETREBE A IME D &R N - AR FHE
BB AR MET - BT B EWA -
BMEKRAS AEBSRT AN FEK
7 RERKAGENELELTERIRE
VST S ONCI S
BRBEADGEN Z 5t BIARRN KB
Al A — B »

DMEETRRASEAHEERE
EEMAEE XREBES HFRR
THRMEHRFR  AJREIFRIE - Bl
BEEERFE ReMRSFEMME
TRAIBEMERRDTDEE  B%F
%f%ﬁzx HEAEEFRE o

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank SHMEETBEFERITEN ﬁiﬁ
borrowings, derivative financial instruments, tax BITH.  EBNBKIE REBRE . AFE
payable, medium-term financing notes, corporate H RIEHRBEBEBEMETCADEAHRS
bonds, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated ERARBE ARSaEREEAEE
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities B o

are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

’“ﬁBF’EJfﬁ%&L‘“*ETFM“‘H m{EmH
EHHENEBEETR
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HILEFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Year ended Department
31 December 2018 store  Supermarket Total
BZ2018F12A1ALEE BEE Bm At

Segment revenue (note 6)

2EBA (HE6)

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB’000
AR®TR

RMB’000
ARBTR

Sales to external customers HINBRPHEE 1,979,513 2,619,509 4,599,022
Management service ERRS 8,921 - 8,921
1,988,434 2,619,509 4,607,943
Segment results PHEE 754,089 35,773 789,862
Reconciliation: HE -
Interest income and unallocated gains FILBUA Rk 2 B Mz 37,549
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A8 R E M A B X (101,566)
Finance costs BEMA (109,746)
Profit before tax BR B A A 616,099
Segment assets ATHEE 9,970,604 1,558,874 11,529,478
Reconciliation: H%
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARREMKDREE 1,015,462
Total assets BEE 12,544,940
Segment liabilities PTHEE 2,772,687 781,655 3,554,342
Reconciliation: k.
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities AAREMRAEARE 3,830,768
Total liabilities BafE 7,385,110
Other segment information Hir &R
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH 428,487 520,329
Corporate and other unallocated amounts A & R EL At R D Be 50B 2,678
n
-
i Total depreciation and amortisation MEREHA 523,007
&
0 = E Provision/(write-back of provision) BT ERE/
e O 5 for slow-moving inventories (BEEm) 651 340
2 g §§ Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1% * HiE & & &R E 27,283 27,283
z = Impairment of other intangible assets HiwEFEERE 3,697 3,697
Z
= Capital expenditure BEREY 229,353 131,631 360,984
Corporate and other unallocated amounts A & R EL At & 2 B 208 5,459
Total capital expenditure® BERRL 366,443

* BARAXEBREAEME  BNLIHE
EhEMETEE (BEKERENS
REWEE) °
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. RESWER (M) ;= B
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2017 store Supermarket Total
HZ2017F128318 L5 E BEE M @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETL ARBFL AREBTL
Segment revenue 2HBBA
Sales to external customers HINBEPHHE 1,767,320 2,676,719 4,444,039
Segment results PHEE 625,288 66,995 692,283
Reconciliation: i -
Interest income and unallocated gains FEWARED B & 37,323
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2RI R EMADE X (132,593)
Finance costs BERA (65,751)
Profit before tax R 50 BT A 531,262
Segment assets PBEE 10,094,446 1,570,634 11,665,080
Reconciliation: ik -
Corporate and other unallocated assets ARREMKDREE 1,005,845
Total assets BEE 12,670,925
Segment liabilities PHEE 2,880,976 812,688 3,693,664
Reconciliation: El 3
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities A B REMADEEE 3,726,769
Total liabilities BmafE 7,420,433
Other segment information Hitt A HEH
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 391,459 90,584 482,043
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 22 &l R E & 5 B 7UA 3,244
Total depreciation and amortisation MEREHEA 485,287 &
- z
(1]
Provision/(write-back of provision) i SR E o Eg
for slow-moving inventories (Bfmrm) (1,938) 855 (1,083 [P
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1% M= & Z &R E 1,759 6,387 8,146 B O &
Impairment of other intangible assets Hth BV EERE - 2,838 2,838 B gg
—_— 2 2
Capital expenditure BEREY 752,916 79,145 832,061 z
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 2 & R LAt & 7 B 208 1,023
Total capital expenditure® BERRL 833,084
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HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. ReEHIER (F)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 3
Geographical information i E & R
All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers REBHARAKREFRANMES - MW
based in Mainland China and all of the non-current REEFMAFERDEEMNTEAM
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.
Information about major customers FEEFPNER

RAFEIWEE —F PR IARZEH T H
I%HEJE' H) 35 B 1A AN SR B U A10%3K A

No revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under common control
accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

6. REVENUE 6.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

i A
WABH2FIMT -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Revenue from contracts with FERES &AM A
customers
Sale of goods — direct sales EmEE —EEHE 2,973,916 2,950,247
Commission income from REBFTEEHEHEASWA
concessionaire sales (Note) (K17E) 1,336,396 1,280,122
Provision of management services LB 18 AR 75 8,921 =
Provision of food and beverage REB KRS
services 7,204 6,011
4,326,437 4,236,380
Revenue from other sources H b RN
Rental income AU A 281,506 207,659
Total Revenue BUA 4,607,943 4,444,039

Note:

analysed as follows:

The commission income from concessionaire sales is

HiaE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 3B R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FrggEEfs kAT T

(7]
=
= 2018 2017
OEL’: —E-N\F el
|-l;:§ RMB’000 RMB’000
il ARET T IEUN-I S
og
zag Gross proceeds from B e FTIS NIE
E concessionaire sales 8,381,597 8,029,994
[T
Commission income from FIrEEHEHEMASBA
concessionaire sales 1,336,396 1,280,122
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE

6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WA (&) H\
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) BoHFZWAEHR

HZE2018F12A31H L EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Department
Segments 28 store  Super-market Total
BE #m ‘st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TT ARBTR
Types of goods or services BREREER
Sale of goods - direct sales AmEE-EREE 496,900 2,477,016 2,973,916
Commission income from BHEEHEERSKA
concessionaire sales 1,273,799 62,597 1,336,396
Provision of management services REERRS 8,921 - 8,921
Provision of food and REZFRB
beverage services 7,204 7,204
Total revenue from contracts with RERFPEHZBALE
customers 1,786,824 2,539,613 4,326,437
(i) Performance obligations (i) BIT&E®K
Information about the Group’s performance EAEE R T FHE R
obligations is summarised below: N
Sale of goods - direct sales/Commission income BERiHE—EEEE R E
from concessionaire sales EH 2 IHA

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods to the customers.

Management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are rendered and short-term
advances are normally required before rendering
the services. Management service contracts are
for periods of five to twenty years, or are billed
based on the time incurred.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

—FR
—FLE

Within one year
More than one year

The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

W

BIRBRERSIRGESHE
7 o

E R
BRI D  BITRBHEER
BRETMGEIET BHEERM
BB 2 A1 B A T AT 2K - AR
BARMBBEAREE 6 - %
R R R B o

MN20185FE12A318 » DELFIARE
NEE(RBITRBOREIT) R
SERIOT :

RMB’000
ARBTT

16,000
167,500

183,500

HHEENSETREER 0T RY

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #E#th BB 2GR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3

%)
[
Z
[1T]

off

=
niE

W o

=

2=
(3]

Z

<

=

(TH

BB | R MR




STATEMENTS

TR
3 (4 —

N TS =
- M B

Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Har A Rz

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBF T

Other income Hibg A

Fee income from suppliers R B e 7 e E At WA 651,245 622,455
Interest income B A 19,442 20,766
Subsidy income RN 7,171 16,835
Others Hity 11,231 11,455

689,089 671,511

Gains &
Fair value gains, net: NEEWYE - FRE
Derivative instruments
— transactions not
qualifying as hedges iE B 13,270
Foreign exchange difference -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & BB R A U E 417

13,687 90

702,776 671,601

NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 R 3% Y =

166
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HILFE
8. OTHER EXPENSES 8. HpEx B
Other expenses mainly include utility expenses, EMmESYFrEREKERY  BEE5E2E
advertising and promotion expenses, loss on EH WE BMELREBEOHEEEE -
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, ME BMENMEEBREESR HEMhEFR
impairment of property, plant and equipment, BERBEEE THEAHRZZINITE
impairment of other intangible assets, net fair SHMIEREFEX WAERS  #
value losses of derivative instruments of which ELREMER  EZIRE  EBKHEEFE
the transaction is not qualified as hedges, office WER - BUSH NERMEEERY

expenses, maintenance costs, travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses, property tax and
government surcharges and other miscellaneous

expenses.
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMNA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEREDTAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREET T
Interest on medium-term RHEIE BT E
financing notes 15,240 15,240
Interest on corporate bonds B EHFE 41,360 41,360
Interest on bank borrowings wholly AR A F R 2 2(EE
payable within five years RITIE KA F E 75,380 62,119
Less: Interest capitalised R BRI E (22,234) (52,968)

109,746 65,751

7
[
z
[1T]
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BR % A% A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBMBRBADEF 2B/ (GEA) T3
charging/(crediting): B
2018 2017
—E-N\E et 3
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR®ETT ARETR
Cost of inventories sold FEHEKK 2,578,255 2,601,522
Provision/(write back of provision) for BHEERE/ (BERE)

slow-moving inventories 340 (1,083)
Depreciation & 17 478,340 451,382
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums BRIt RS & 18 4,177 31,221
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEBYEE#E 19 3,490 2,684
Impairment of property, plant and Mm% BERSERE

equipment® A fEe 17 27,283 8,146
Impairment of other intangible assets® Hth B EERBELERE 19 3,697 2,838
Loss on disposal of items of property, BEME  BELKSE

plant and equipment REE 25,309 16,374
Loss on disposal of investments at fair value R ERAFEE R EEH A

through profit or loss BaRmRERX 18,021 4,924
Minimum lease payments under BERETHRERS

operating leases:

Land and buildings T REF 99,752 106,292
Auditors’ remuneration ZER £ 2,825 2,868
Staff costs including Directors’ and BIMA(BRESRIIN

chief executive’s remuneration BEEM) (Hat11)

(Note 11):

Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 FHeRkiEa 592,604 595,102

Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR 69,223 72,974

Other social security costs HiiteRRER 38,296 34,912
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER  F8 19 (90)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFERE  FE:

Derivative instruments — fTESBIA-

transactions not qualifying THEHAER
as hedges® 2R 50 7/8 (13,270) 24,757
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB A Al E 40 (417) =

B 75 3R 3% B =

17
=
Z
1]

ol

g

niE

W o

=

2%

o

Z

<

=

(TS

@®  The impairment of property, plant and equipment,
impairment of other intangible assets and net fair value
losses of derivative instruments of which the transaction
is not qualified as hedges are included in “Other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(@)

WE - BB RREREER  LOEP
HAEREBEFRTIEAEPERE LR S
MITESRT AR FEFRRBSHES
Bl ERATEMAS] -

m SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE# B ERBR/AA] - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4}



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %5

Year ende

2% MY AE

d 31 December 2018

HE2018F12 A31HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the

year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, 383(1)

(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies Regulation
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors), is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments: oA S B -

Salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

@

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Mr. Lin Zhijun MEELEE
Mr. Zhang Weijiong o 4 1 5 A
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming ok — I8 St A

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2017: Nil).

e EMREDANG

BRAKEF B

M. EERITRARFTH

i

BAE £ AR R E B A FE ) 8383(1)
@), (b), (c), MERARIFIEEE (EE
FMEERE)  EERRERNBHEEM

WEFMERIRENT

2018
—B-N\fF
RMB’000
AR TR

924

@ BUHFHITEF

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
ARBF T

933

4,968
174

5,142

6,075

REBBRASNEBIIFNTES

MESIT :

2018
—E-N\%F

RMB’000
AR%TFR

308
308
308

924

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARBTT

311
311
311

933

R B8 BRI I FE N 45 8 S FF AT
EEMHEMME (2017F : &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF MNEERITHARESMH (E)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and (b) BTEE FHTEFERTHAEZ

the chief executive

Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees F& 2 E{k€ remuneration
e RENFE FTEIf R 0 o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET R

2018 20184
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (3= teal
Mr. Tao Qingrong Gl el
Mr. Yu Yaoming (=L beal
Non-executive director: EHTES
Mr. Tao Qingrong BESLLE

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John — BEET L4

Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees E2 =] BIRE  remuneration
@ e REMHM & STEIHE et
= RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Eﬂ ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

CEe

i 2017 20174

5 E'g Executive directors: WIES:

ZoE Mr. Chen Jiangiang Bkt = 1,256 70 1,326
Z Mr. Tao Qingrong MELELE - 2,146 16 2,162
z Mr. Yu Yaoming AERHLE - 1,265 88 1,343

- 4,657 174 4,831
Non-executive director: FRTES
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BT84 4 - 311 - 311
E 4,968 174 5,142
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o [[ ﬂq
B e 007

Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE20185F12 ABHIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF MEERITHARETMH (&) \
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and (b) BTEE FHTEFERTHAEZ

the chief executive (continued) (#&)

() On 21 March 2018, Mr. Tao Qingrong () H2018F3A218 ML L
resigned as the chief executive of the Group ERAEBERITHEIEBE R
and Mr. Chen Jiangiang was appointed BERAEWTITAEERRITE
as the chief executive of the Group. On 5 # - 2018F11 A5H  lEEZ
November 2018, Mr. Tao Qingrong was re- AR EH I AIERITES -

designated from an executive Director to a
non-executive Director.

(i) On 21 March 2018, Mr. Yu Yaoming (i) #2018%E3A218 ' G1ZMH %
resigned as an executive director. R EHITEERE o

There was no arrangement under which a REBHEYEE SR THAZH N

director or the chief executive waived or agreed EXRAENE TSI T -

to waive any remuneration during the year.

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. 7 {1 8 515 2 & B
The five highest paid employees during the year NEBHE A4S SHESHTILE
included two (2017: three) directors, details of whose EH (20175 3B E)FHEEBE I L
remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of BHEE11 o E843%2 (20174 : 2&) BE R 2
the remuneration of the remaining three (2017: two) EEB T ETHRAS A E R
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor SEENT
chief executive of the Company for the year are as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETF T
Salaries, allowances and Fe RUREYI=
benefits in kind 3,786 2,625
Pension scheme contributions RIKNEFTEIH R 266 74

%)
[
Z
w

off

g

nE

W o

[ =g}

o<

(3]

Z

<

=

[T

4,052 2,699
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12 A31HIEFE
12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12,5V BSEEHE (E)
(CONTINUED)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

BEZEMFTRAHTSHMESR
M ABE THIF B E M ETH R -

Number of employees

2017
—E—+F
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZEE—FET -
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 ARE—BEZT—E
ARE—BRTET 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 ARE—FBRT+EZT—TLE
AR -_BET 1
2
13.INCOME TAX 13. i 8%

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the
“New CIT Law”), the income tax rate becomes 25%
starting from 1 January 2008. Therefore, a provision
for the PRC income tax has been made at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on
the assessable profits of the PRC Subsidiaries.

AEBANERBELEGRANEERKE QA
REEMREEREREERAELSK
REMEMNXMAEN AREEAR
RHABMEERGH EARERER
HIR Y EIR 8 B AN ERTA -

ARBRNHASEHESEMKIZNREHA
Ej o

RE(REARLMBE S ERFHOE)
(TFHEEMBHIAD - B2008F1 A1
BREEPTSH X K25% - E it - ¥ B

(20174 : 25%) EITHBIPT ST B -

2018 2017
—E-)N\EF —T—+4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT

Current — PRC corporate income BVE —F AR B EFTSHR

tax charge for the year i3
Deferred (Note 24) EIER IR (B 7224)
Total tax charge for the year FARERZ 85

180,069
12,698

192,767
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

5””& % ,j

\

13.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

13. RS % ()
AR REAE D W B R R MR
B350 8 25 2 1S 0 R L A R
i PR BB B T B R B SR st e Bt

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥T T
Profit before tax B 50 B A 616,099 531,262
Tax at the statutory tax rate of BE T E25% T EMILTE
25% (2017: 25%) (20174 : 25%) 154,025 132,816
Different tax rate applicable to AR R AA TR E
company 5,045 5,894
Expenses not deductible for tax R0 13,122 17,942
Tax losses utilised from previous EHABATHENIESS
periods (2,131) (1,074)
The share of tax attributable to BEREE AR,
associates (18) -
Effect of withholding tax on TR0 A0 ¥ A B B A Rl Al 9k
the distributable profits of i N B 8
the PRC Subsidiaries 23,643 11,608
Tax losses not recognised REERBIIEEE 26,064 25,581
Tax charge at the Group’s EAREEERBERTED
effective rate B IA R 219,750 192,767
14. DIVIDENDS 14. R E
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 £
ekl RETE W
g
Interim — HK3 cents AR — B AR T A S M Bl e O
(2017: HK3 cents) (20174 : & HE3I) 238
per ordinary share 58,640 tz;“‘K
2
Proposed final — HK7 cents R B R B B — @Ak =
(2017: HK5 cents) BRABETIL
per ordinary share (20174 : BEs) 121,218 88,890
175,443 147,530

B EERET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

14.

15.

16.

DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The amount which the PRC Subsidiaries can legally
distribute by way of dividend is determined by
reference to the distributable profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting rules and regulations
in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB400,017,000 (2017: RMB340,019,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,119,066,718 (2017: 2,289,041,027) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The PRC Subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant government authorities for their employees
in Mainland China and contribute to these plans
based on a certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The
contributions to these plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when incurred.

14.

15.

16.

IR 2 (&)

REZHRIKERPREBERERELRE
FAELFARBBEILAE

FEMBEARERREAEDIK &
BYS2ZERBETEAREFTRAGH
B R B TE B 7 R BT R R 9 R 0

WM -

BAREERERBEAERGS
gl

EREXRXGEANDERFET QA
TEBREEFEBEAEBRGLGENARKE
400,017,0007C (20174 : AR
340,019,0007T) ME RN E &7 LB
hn#EF 5 E2,119,066,718f% (20174 :
2,289,041,0270%) 5+ & -

B £2018%F12A31H K2017F12 431
ALFE AEBERZFTHEBRAE
EREREBNERTA -

& 5 RKEF
RETEAREIANAE  TEMEA
AIE2H2REHRFENRGTE - 28F
MEBAREEHAERZHMENELRNK
B & 1R 5 08 &Y PR 4t [ 1 B F 35 i B
THEMNETEL A FREERAS - EUEHE
T HRARAEEBHMERA LARKER
REE B AERN A EBRRER -

B Lot s - AR B BB AR E AL
BRSEAI K - 7% F 5t 8 & R0
REREASEEEMNHAS -
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HILEFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. 9% - BERRKRE
EQUIPMENT
Renovation Furniture
Land and and leasehold Motor  and office Construction
buildings improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BRR
ThEEF  BEREE B RE  BOZRG HEIR @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTn AR%Tr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARETR
31 December 2018 2018%12A31A
At 31 December 2017and ~ R2017%12A31H
at 1 January 2018 Re018%1A18
Cost or valuation AR 9,462,700 1,017,280 876,938 9736 2482712 165283 11,780,200
Acoumulated depreciation  EFFERFEER
and impairment (1,507,536)  (547,697) (415,815) (7,232)  (177,864) (2,656,144)
Net carrying amount FHFE 7,955,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70,408 165,283 9,124,065

At1 January 2018, netof ~ H2018F1A1R -
accumulated depreciation BB Z5tiTE

and impairment RAEERE 7,055,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70408 165288 9,124,065
Additions RE 29,692 100,120 24,822 3,731 27,231 176,071 361,667
Depreciation provided during ~ FE 2317 &

the year (269,509 (112,445) O7531) @4 ([26111) - (18340)
Impairment REER (27,012) - - (2M1) - (27,283)
Transfers g% 37,856 34,268 (5,509) - 3,656 (70,271) -
Disposal RE 19,500 (4,419) (872) (493) (2,970) - (28,254)
Disposal of a subsidiary (nofe 40) &= & M B\l (#240) (6,795) (3,172 (252) (3,631) - (13,850)

At 31 December 2018, netof  R2018E12A318
accumulated depreciaion B 3tirE

and impairment RAEERE 7,733,703 453,300 408,861 2,746 68,312 271,083 8,038,005
At 31 December 2018: R2018F12A31H 2
Cost or valuation RARHE 9,555,780 1,053,038 831,024 9,446 251,603 271,083 11,071,974 =
Accumulated depreciation 23T E RAEER omi
and impaiment (1,822,077)  (599,738) (422,163) (6,700)  (183,291) = (3,033,969) SEE
wawn
=
Net carrying amount REFE 7,733,703 453,300 408,861 2,746 68,312 271,083 8,038,005 gg‘g
gmﬂ
<
=z
(TH
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BT R EE

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

17. 9% - BERKHE ()

EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Renovation Furniture
Landand  and leasehold Motor  andoffice  Construction
buildings  improvements ~ Machinery vehicles ~ equipment  in progress Total
R
THEEF  BEREE & RE  BAERE gl s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2017 2017512R318
At 31 December 2016and ~ R2016E12A31H
at 1 January 2017; R2017%1R18
Cost or valuation A 8,840,804 913314 740,254 12670 232,552 219,114 11,018,708
Accumulated depreciation  EiFHERFEERE
and impairment (1,260,601) (471,826  (363,911) (8,980)  (151,195) - (2,246,519)
Net carrying amount FHFE 7,580,203 441,488 386,343 3,690 81,357 219,114 8,772,195
At 1 January 2017, netof ~ R2017E1A18 -
accumulated depreciation BB Z5tiTE
and impairment RAEERE 7,580,203 441488 386,343 3,690 81,357 29,114 8772,1%
Additions RE 142,185 59,400 47,219 1,812 28,219 555,971 829,806
Depreciation provided during %% 23117
the year (246,726) (99,827) (66,585) (992) (37,252) - (451,382)
Impairment HEER - (6,387) (1,759) - - - (8,146)
Transfers a5 481,856 81,554 102,355 - 4,037 (669,802) -
Disposal BE (2,354) (6,645) 6,450) (2,006) (953) - (18,408)
At 31 December 2017, netof ~ W2017512A318 -
accumulated depreciation BB Z5tHTE
and imparment RAEER 7,955,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70,408 165,288 9,124,065
At 31 December 2017; 20176128318
Cost or valuation RAFEE 9,462,700 1017280 876938 9736 2482712 165,283 11,780,200
Accumulated depreciation Bt HERBEER
and impairment (1,507,536) (b47,697)  (415,815) (1,282 (177,864) - (2,656,144
Net carrying amount KHFHE 7,955,164 469,583 461,123 2,504 70,408 165,288 9,124,065

At 31 December 2018, the application for converting
the land use right certificate to the property
ownership certificate for the Group’s land and
buildings amounting to RMB611,316,000 (2017:
RMB1,470,441,000) was still in progress.

M2018%F12A31H - KEENMEAEBE
AR #611,316,0007T (20174 : AR
1,470,441,00070) M T R EFHREY

XA #ER -
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE
18. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS 18. Tt HZES \
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥T T
Carrying amount at 1 January MATENEEEE 1,627,588 1,676,148
Amortisation capitalised as property, FE#HEEN L BYE -
plant and equipment for the year B K& (6,523) (17,339)
Recognised as expenses HRBFERX
during the year (41,177) (81,221)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31HEMEEEEE 1,579,888 1,627,588
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and HELHURPHER  UREHALYE
is held under a long-term lease. HiEAH -
19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. Hth B EE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Lease agreement buyouts HEHZ B
Carrying amount at 1 January MIATEMEREEE 26,955 29,199
Additions NE 4,776 3,278
Impairment B2 (3,697) (2,838)
Recognised as expenses TRAEFEMXZ
during the year (3,490) (2,684)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31 A EREEE 24,544 26,955 »
z
[1T]
The lease agreement buyouts represented the HEREEMEASERRAL MR PN
Group’s payment to old tenants to buy-out lease BEEEERE TIKRESLIEHAESRRK ;EE
agreements, and were amortised over the lease terms BiH - B 5
on the straight-line basis. ok
g§
<
Z
[T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R AR MY 5

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE
20. GOODWILL
At 1 January: W1A1H
Cost BN
Accumulated impairment RETREERE
Net carrying amount BREFE
Impairment during the year FNREERE
At 31 December ®12A31H8
Cost BN
Accumulated impairment RETBEERE
Net carrying amount BREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the department store cash-generating
units for impairment testing, including Wuxi Yaohan
Commerce & Trade Center Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Yaohan”),
Zhenjiang Baisheng Commercial Co., Ltd. (Zhenjiang
Baisheng”) and Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade
Joint Stock Company Ltd. (“Nantong Yaohan”). The
recoverable amount of the cash-generating units have
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to all
cash flow projections is 13.5% (2017: 13.5%).

The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period from the end of the reporting period is 2% for
all years. The growth rates are below the average
growth rate of the retail industry for the past 10
years. Senior management of the Company believes
that using a lower growth rate is a more conservative
and reliable choice for the purpose of this impairment
testing.

20.FH&E

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AREFT

329,440
(79,056)

250,384

329,440
(79,056)

250,384

BB AR
BREBAMELENREDIREZEEE
EREEEBMERERD  BIEED
NEHEEEPLERAR (TEHN\AE
D - EITEBRERERAR (THET
BER)MEBANAHEERDAERAR
(B A - BeEABMNHNATK
El&@NREFEAEETEETE - At
BuoH eREBESREERABMILE
MERLFHMNV K BERERESRE
TEOR - BT FE IR e = T8OR#E A A9 Bb
IR H13.5% (20174 - 13.6%) °

PrBEFERNER B REBRETIF
HEgRSELENNRSREMER
MIBERED2% - ZIBERERIBEI0F
TETENTFHERKR - ARASRE
BEABHE ERARENEREZR
BRI E JOEART R AT SERYREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the cash-generating units is as follows:

Wuxi Yaohan

B35 N\EH

RMB'000
AERTR

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARBTR

2018 2017 2018

CE-NE el -3\

Camyingamount ~ EEBAE

of goodwill 87,122

20.

Zhenjiang Baisheng
FIRE

RMB'000
ARETT

2017
“E—+F

122,945

& (&)

7 E AR ()
BEEAEIRESERSEN MY
mF -

Nantong Yaohan Total

HENEH# @t

RMB'000 SIS  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT EUNREH AR%TT WSS
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\F S —I-/\F g
40,317 250,384

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use
calculation of the department store cash-generating
unit for 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill.

Store revenue:

the bases used to determine the future earnings
potential are the average historical sales and
expected growth rates of the retail market in
Mainland China.

Gross margins:

the basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Expenses:

the basic factors used to determine the values
assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other
expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions
reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating
expenses at an acceptable level.

BR&E AR E2018F12A318 &
2017F12AGIEBEEERERELES
iz o LT 5 E R E R 2R E R

A E B RK o

BEERA :

PR T R RAFE N R LT B
EHERSRURRE R E TSN TE
iR -

EFE -

ANEEEEENREENEEARE
T A — AT B T ERIE
IR RRIR T K TR 4B A0 o

FX

RAREEREEENERARZSE TK
A HERXKREMAS - SETEIE
BRENEERRBELSR N EEEHRIE
AR EERMI RN A RZKE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

21.

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Discount rates:

the discount rates used are after tax and reflect
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the
cash-generating units. In determining an appropriate
discount rate for the unit, regard has been given to
the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the
current year.

The values assigned to the key assumptions
on discount rates are consistent with external
information sources.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the
department store cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value, including goodwill, of the cash-generating unit
to materially exceed the recoverable amount.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets DI EEFRE

Investments in associates were certain unlisted equity
investments. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group obtained significant influences on the below
associates in January 2018, and reclassified them
from Available-for-sale investments, and unlisted
equity investments at cost of equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income to Investments in associates, with the fair
value upon transferring approximates carrying
amount of RMB5,188,000.

20.&F & (&)

21

B W R ()
BRI K

FIAMBAXERHT IRREEEH T
EERSEUBARBHMGE - AEE
NETEBWREN BEREEFE
EAMBEREER -

TEARBRYREINEERINGENR
IR — 2 e

BREDNWHZAE
EHAEERSELABNEREEEL
AR EEEMRELAEAEERR
ARELBENAEES TEHERSEL
BUMEHEE(BRERE) ZEENEA
Yo Bl & %8 o

RBEQATRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AREFTT

HBERRRER/YIFLTRERE
EZERA SERN2018F1AHUT
R AR ELEATE WHEKLAH
HEREZIE/ERBRA /RN FEE
M EmRERE BB HMERS S
ENEAHBERE  ENERNAR
BEA/ARYKS,188,0007T © EEE(EE
GER
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE
21.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 1. HEELRARE (K e
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows: SEHIZHEQFRMNABBRANT
Percentage of
ke
Place of registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name and business interest power sharing Principal activities
AR ER EERTH RE RRE NEIE TEXHB
Changzhou Ribao Commerce &  PRC/Mainland China 25 25 25  Sale of consumer goods
Trade Co., Ltd. N \
EMTEERERERAA BN, B AR HEmHE
Wuxi Jinlong Food Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China 20 20 20  Sale of consumer goods
EYTRERRERAA BN,/ B AR HEmHE
The Group’s trade payable balances with the K’E B B AR R ENE S RIAEE
associates are disclosed in note 32 to the financial 73 Bl ER B T R R B 5132 ©
statements, respectively.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRETNTEES@E QRN BBITG
information of the Group’s associates that are not BEE  BLEEWIEEFOME
individually material:
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARET T
Share of the associates’ loss for the year FADEEE A REE

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ AN&EEHE = QAR ERTEBEER
investment in the associates

The Group had the following transactions with FRNAEEEBEARBEHIZFE
associate-related parties during the year: (N E
]
2018 2017  WPSE
2 LS CEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 B 5
Kt WNLagd A ExTr R
3
Purchases of products 721 on R (i) 62,909 =
Notes: Kz
() The purchases from the associates were made (i) REEERRNRKBEERER S QFRA
according to the published prices and conditions FTEZFRENTEERNGAEEITH -

offered by the associates to their major customers.
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Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE20185F12 ABHIEFE
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 2. MHHERE
INVESTMENTS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR¥F T
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost  JE EMRAERE LK AFE 5,188
As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity R2017F12A31H » BFEBEAARKE
investments with a carrying amount of RMB5,188,000 5,188,0007T #Y FE £ i1 R 1% & LAFIBR R
were stated at cost less impairment. The Directors T\E@:E’UBZ$§|J/?\ ° %%?Sﬁ'ﬁ; HAFE
were of the opinion that the investments’ fair value 2017912 A31 B A A] Sent & -

cannot be measured reliably on 31 December 2017.

23.LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS 23. R AT IR

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

Rental prepayments FENHEE 12,942
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31ALFE
24. DEFERRED TAX 24, IEE 18 \
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities REBEEMNELHREEERBENE
during the year are as follows: BT
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Losses
available
for offsetting
against future Loss on Accrued Bonus
taxable profits disposal rental point
MEEERR  ofassets  expenses liabilities
ERBER REEE Eitie €8 Others"! Total
NE#S E# BX  B2EE Hipo @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREFTT AREBTR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Gross deferred tax assets Ro017F1A18
at 1 January 2017 BREHEREES 41,493 23,067 15,654 9,552 29,780 119,746

Deferred tax credlited/(charged) ~ F WA/ (1)
to the statement of profit or WERMELHRE H#13)

loss during the year (Note 13) 9,300 (1,323) 3,490 (1,425) (10,249) (207)
Gross deferred tax assets R2017E12/31H

at 31 December 2017 and R2018E1 A 1A 4

1 January 2018 BEHEEELE 50,793 19,144 119,539
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ EMtA/ (%)

to the statement of profit or hEZHETHE

loss during the year (Note 13 (#2173 (10,765) (488) 2,969
Gross deferred tax assets 2018F 12743184

at 31 December 2018 BLHEREER 40,028 18,656 122,508
Note: Kz
(i)  Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused i) HMEZRELENAS BRI R

by pre-operating expenses, accrued expenses and FERESINGRREZER -

inventory provision.

NOTES TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B35 R R M
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31HILFE
24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 24 ELERIE (&)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities REBRPRMECHEBEBEERAGBENE
during the year are as follows: (continued) R (4&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBRIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
WEEKE  Withholding
AREEMN taxes® Others® Total
AFEAR BB Hpo @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Gross deferred tax liabilities 201741 A1E &)
at 1 January 2017 R EaELR 404,371 14,093 150,717 570,081
Realisation during the year FAEER - (14,451) - (14,451)

Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREA/ (M) k&
to the statement of profit or loss ~ EVERER 1B (#75713)

during the year (Note 13) (17,919) 11,608 18,802 12,491
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2017412A318

at 31 December 2017 and %2018%1 A1H A

at 1 January 2018 EEHEEEAE 12,150 169,519 568,121
Realisation during the year EREER (31,483) - (31,483)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRZA/ (NB)KER

to the statement of profit or loss ~ E)IEERIE (41:213)

during the year (Note 13) (12,571) 22,328 24,627
Gross deferred tax liabilities #2018%12A31R

at 31 December 2018 MELHERGEES 373,881 2,995 561,265
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Notes:

(0

(i)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% according
to management’s’ best estimation. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will, in the foreseeable
future, distribute earnings with an aggregate amount
of temporary differences of RMB1,634,814,000
(2017: RMB1,634,814,000) associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31
December 2018.

Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused
by capitalised interest and accelerated tax deduction
of property, plant and equipment.

For presentation purposes, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised  FAR A BTk & FE M)
in the consolidated statement of ~ EEFHBEEFHE

financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised FA 4R A B ik i & A&
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

ERHRREEFR

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #Eth B ZER AR AR -

24. FEB IR ()
S 5 B4 7 B i ()
Wit -

() WREFEAREMBECEMBREL &
FE AR S R INE RN IR E
EHAERMAEEHZI0%ENT - It
HE B2008F1A1B AR BAR
200712 A31 HEMAF o i B At
HONEIR A EFTE R AR B RIEH
ORI ERBREREHSIENH - A
E£EME  BEETEENAEGSER
EAE5% - Bt - NEBZAERFRBE A
BT BB B A B 20084F 1 1 B A2 Fr &
B DR EHRIE o

M2018F12A31H » EERAEFER
I & KT B A Bl E ] T8 B A S R 1]
RED 225 A ARK1,634,814,000
7t (20174 : A R #1,634,814,0007T)
REERE  HREREEEEENE
EAMEFMAEHERTFER-

(i) HMET2EREACH S| BAERR Z5HE
K% - BB MNRENINERRMESE

REJBEMME  ETELCHBEEER
BEERNGEMBRRKREHE - U TR
WU BE2RENHARENETHIES

BRIETT 2 DT -
2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+fF
Offset Net amount Offset Net amount
Eid b2 HiH ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR AREFTT ARETT
(8,708) 113,800 (8,388) 111,151
(8,708) 552,557 (8,388) 559,733
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

24,

25.

26.

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

The Group has no tax losses arising in Hong Kong
(2017: Nil).

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB405,765,000 (2017: RMB306,059,000)
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

INVENTORIES

Store merchandise, at cost or net

realisable value s ] 235 FEFE
Low value consumables KEHBEE R

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB5,357,000 (2017:
RMB5,172,000) were carried at net realisable value.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on a cash basis except
for certain bulk sales of merchandise which are credit
sales. The credit terms offered to customers are
generally one month.

None of the balances of the trade receivables at each
reporting date is either past due or impaired.

JEF R BAR

24.

26.

iEEL R ()
BB IE A W ()

N £ B 7E BB W 4 T fa] B UK HE K (2017
&)

dEoh - ZEBEER B A E £ N TR UIE
%A ANR#405,765,0007T (20174 + A
R #306,059,0007T) ' E—ZEHFA
FHR - AREER R ERFE o

EIER TR A B W R pLiE L B IR FERR
REMLRAEEBER -—BREBNTAF
o BAERATKAEELERANER
REHHBIERX -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#¥T T ARET T
350,654

454

351,108

M2018F 128318 » NE B R mEEE
A AR #5,357,0007T (20174 « AR
5,172,0007T) MF & + JTHE R Al #3HF
Bt E -

FEW & 5 FKIH
BRETAREAHEREEHEN &
SEFAANENRASERERT - KT
EFNEES—RA—MEA -

REHS HRNTE RKE ZFAEER
WHEEE - JE BB RE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 26

An aging analysis of the trade receivables at the
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within one month —@AR

27. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Value-added tax recoverable AT e E R
Prepayments to suppliers ) {4t 8 P TR 5P BRE
Other receivables from suppliers 1] 4 P 7 L b FE UK IR
Prepaid rental and deposits BEE RIES

POS receivables POSFE W 5138

Interest receivables JE WA B

Other deposits and receivables H iz & & EWGRIE

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

JEWE 5 RE (R)

)

REREAHEREESHAEZERAY

EOMEREOITWT

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000

ARBT R

7,796

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR®ETR

111,506
10,149

92,861
46,604
126,782
25
27,052

414,979

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000
ARET T

6,412

27. N FE R H A B WK IR

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARET T

89,927
14,754
109,577
46,458
92,146
35,839
42,091

430,792

PR EEY EAMIRE - FFA LS
PR R B A A BT HY 0 S R RS R Y

FEWHRIAB R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT R EE

Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018512A31BILFE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERBREEEBYHNZIREE

AND RESTRICTED CASH 5%
2018 2017
—E-—N\HF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREFIT
Cash and bank balances He MR1THS 617,441 275,731
Time deposits EHIFE R 117,408 348,625

734,849 624,356

Less: Restricted cash with maturity — J&l : —FUAARNEZREEES

within one year (117,408) -
Restricted cash with maturity —FUENZREEES
over one year (113,158)
Unrestricted time deposits over —EARAUNERZRTEHFR
three months (157,650)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEY 617,441 353,548
The Group’s cash and bank balances and time AEBNZREBDHNIR S RIBIT4AR
deposits at the reporting date are denominated in the NEBGEZIZ T EMt(E :
following currencies:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARETTT

RMB AR 695,545 528,391
us$ ET 1,826 47,297
@ HK$ BT 36,489 51,884
= SGD N3 ot 977 1,777
omi EURE BT 12 7
I—'EE
g
I—_,ﬁ 734,849 624,356
Os%
20o&
E Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based RITFERRE ST B R 177F K Fl R BEE
= on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made TEH L THESRE—BEASEEN
for varying periods of between one month and five BAE RIEAREFENEIRIRESESKT
years depending on the immediate cash requirements E WIS B W EHFRF R GEF
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time B RITEMRBFEAERGERIT -BER
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with ReFEY THREXNEEEESRR
creditworthy banks. The carrying amounts of the cash NEERE °

and cash equivalents and time deposits approximate
to their fair values.
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

28.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations
issued by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China, the Group was required to deposit
bank balances (or through issuing the letter of bank
guarantee to deposit) in the Group’s designated
accounts, which amounted to no less than 30% of
the balance of advances from customers for sales
of prepaid cards. As at 31 December 2018, certain
of the Group’s cash amounting to RMB117,408,000
(2017: RMB113,158,000) represented the above
balances in the Group’s designated accounts.

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS

28.HERELZEYNSHEN

% (&)

BEREARLIMBEEBEIBEEHE
BEH AEBEFARBBRESE
TRENERAEETIREEREGE
THRFEMNREHRTEI0NNEBIET
BR P - A20184%12H31H » N&EE A
R ¥117,408,0007C (20174 : AR #&
113,158,0007L) MEK ECEFAEHE
HIEERRP o

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Bank loans: RITEK
Unsecured R 1,964,248 1,863,948
1,964,248 1,863,948
Bank loans repayable: JEEBRITER:
Within one year or on demand — LA =k BN B 1,054,083 1,467,948
Over one year but within two years ~ — & A _E{EHMF RN 710,165 3,000
Over two years but within five years & EEBRFR 200,000 393,000
1,964,248 1,863,948
Total bank borrowings SBITE R EE 1,964,248 1,863,948
Less: Portion classified as current B D EAREAEN
liabilities REIREE] (1,467,048)
Long-term portion KEZ 5 910,165 396,000

Bank loans bear interest at fixed rates or floating
rates.

The Group’s bank loans bore interest at effective
interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 4.8% per annum
as at 31 December 2018 and 2.5% to 4.8% per
annum as at 31 December 2017.

RITERREEN K FZZB KRR -

MN2018F 12 A1 B AREBEHIRITERA
WE R R H2.6%%E4.8% K% H20174F12
F31H #H2.5%%4.8% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE
29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 29. st R ITHERK (&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at AEBERSHRE B AN SRITE IR
the reporting date are denominated in the following THEEEHE
currencies:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB AR 649,000
US$ =Y 1,122,493
HK$ BT 92,455
1,863,948
30. MEDIUM-TERM FINANCING NOTES 30. FHAE &
An aggregate principal amount of up to RMB2.0 AEBRFRITEM SR S E e ait
billion of medium-term financing notes was approved EBETARCHBBENBEBARE20EITH
by the National Association of Financial Market RHAZ . 3 R201643A25H Tk B
Institutional Investors and the Group issued its first ARG 4% A\ REIRBTHEAZER 3
tranche of medium-term financing notes at par value T RFERENEBLT8% » BERF X
of RMB300 million to domestic institutional investors 55.13% ° R EAS R A9 EARR A3 Hf - F
in the PRC on 25 March 2016. The nominal interest BEF LI -2018F38 » XEEBE 7
rate is 4.78% per annum and the effective interest TE_FHNMNBEARKI143BET °
rate is 5.13% per annum. The term of the medium-
term financing notes was 3 years from the date of
issuance. The interest shall be paid on an annual
basis. In March 2018, the Group paid the interest for
the second year in the amount of RMB14.3 million.
31. CORPORATE BONDS 31. A EESH
An aggregate principal amount of up to RMB2.0 M20165F5H  "EBIREHBEEES
billion of corporate bonds was approved by the China M EBRBHERGNAERIT RSB
Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai THBEARE20ETHARNES TR
Stock Exchange in May 2016 and the Group issued 2016F6A21H T B A BEAR
its first tranche of corporate bonds at par value of BEIETLAREHFHEIT - HFEREFIX
RMB800 million to public qualified investors in the R4.87% * BEFER5.22% - RRIEH
PRC on 21 June 2016. The nominal interest rate is B HA[R A34F B o I B3R £ 3 i - 2018
4.87% per annum and the effective interest rate is F6H  NEBINTE_FEFHFEAR
5.22% per annum. The term of the corporate bonds #39.08&E T °

was 3 years from the date of issuance. The interest
shall be paid on an annual basis. In June 2018, the
Group paid the interest for the second year in the
amount of RMB39.0 million.
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Year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F12A31HILFE
32. TRADE PAYABLES 32. BB R \
An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the n& &iEIHHFEHféf%mIE&ﬁ‘ =N:p)
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as BREE AT T ¢
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFIT
Within three months =EAR 1,050,378 1,024,983
Over three months but =REA K EEREARN
within six months 53,563 150,185
Over six months but NEANK EE—FR
within one year 41,035 57,989
Over one year —F 33,044 45,698
1,178,020 1,278,855
Included in the trade payables are trade payables BSIERENE S IE R B L DT
of RMB12,762,000 due to associates which are B 5 IA AR ARKE12,762,0007T * R
repayable within 90 days, which represents credit QOANME - EEtE ARIMREEFERP
terms similar to those offered by the associates to RENEHERAE -

their major customers.

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are J'E'H%%W\Iﬁj:’] AR BEEE0LRA
normally settled on terms of up to 60 days. S o

33.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 3B.HMERFERESEH

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

g3 AR®ETR ARETT

Payables to suppliers’ FE P 7 (E B SRR

employees 14,970 15,187
Deposits from suppliers HEFES 213,881 163,374 4
Value-added taxes EER 11,326 20,423 z
Other tax payable H{th S R IR 36,285 37,145 S 4
Payable for capital expenditure & & 7B 5% 342,707 546,017 EEE
Payable for staff costs &N B TRA 247,156 241,551 S
Bonus point liabilities e8RS AR - 32,508  [F¥i
Advances from customer BETENFRIE - 1,248,544 | = gf_g
Contract liabilities BRARE (@) 1,383,207 = z
Payable for acquisition of HSZ i — M B 2 7 e OE =

a subsidiary 20,747 19,753 =
Interest payable J& A5 7] 2 1,458 2,106
Other payables H th F& 1~ 5R08 136,793 122,993

2,408,530 2,449,601

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest- bl A gp T KR R B, o
bearing.
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33.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1
January 2018 are as follows:

Short-term advances received from Y B
customers RHTEA R
Bonus point liabilities gEE AR
Advances from customer P BN HRIE
Total contract liabilities RERARE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver goods. The increase in contract liabilities in 2018
was mainly due to the increase in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the newly opened
department stores.

34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Cross currency swap RXE¥E iR

The cross currency swaps are not designated for hedge
accounting purposes and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging
cross currency swaps amounting to RMB13,270,000 were
credited to the statement of profit or loss during the year.

35.LONG-TERM PAYABLES

(7]
=
b4
1]
=
Pl
D=
wwn
=l
2=
O
b4
<
Z
(TS

B 75 R 3% B =

Long-term portion of accrued FEET TR ER ZHY
rental expenses KEFE 5

3. Hth BN RIBEREFER (&)

Bat

A Z=2018412A31 B 20181 A1HM AR
BEIFAMAMT

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\E —E-N\F
+=A=+-—8 —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFTT

32,508
1,248,544

1,281,052

BRAERESRNE MM KD & EBIEN
FKIA ° 20185F A A AT RYIE N E BT A 0HT
FE B BRI E P ES 858 TR FRIRE N

2017
—E-N\F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T

o 3
ik nul’ma
Rl

i
S
S
S
m
als
%
o
+H

RSk

e
mn <
Blomy e RS

2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ET T

77,107

\ -
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36.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36.ZmERERERME e X &
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities and equities arising from ARt & RE s aBENERED

financing activities

Interest- Medium-
bearing term Non-
bank financing Corporate Interest Treasury Share  controlling
borrowings notes bonds payables shares premiums interests
)

BITER HHRER RAEF  ENFS BER  RhEE FERER

At 1 January 2017 R201741A1H 1,739,204 309,074 814,670 2,033 (112) 728,151 169,065

Changes from financing BETHRLR 198,867 (14,340) (38,960) (62,046) (923) (298,128) (2,459)
cash flows 2y

Foreign exchange EXEE (74,129) = = = = = =
movement

Interest expense HEm% - 15,240 41,360 62,119 = = =

Repurchase and ZEFEME - - - - 081 = =
cancellation of shares

Profit for the year FERM = - - - - = (1,524)

At 31 December 2017 R20174128318 1,863,948 309,974 817,070 2,106 (54) 430,023 165,088

Interest- Medium-
bearing term Non-
bank financing  Corporate Interest Treasury Share controlling
borrowings I CH bonds payables shares  premiums interests
iR
RITER HERE  AREF  EAAE ERR RAEE FERER

At 1 January 2018 ®2018%1A18 1,863,948 309,974 817,070 2,106 ()] 430,023 165,088
Changes from financing ~ BZEBE4 R 30,763 (14,340)  (38,960)  (76,028) (1,445)  (361,103) (1,504)
cash flows 2y 2
Foreign exchange &5 2E) 69,537 &
movement o & E
Interest expense MEFX 5 E E
Repurchase and RERE TS B 5
cancellation of shares g Z—’;§
Profit for the year EREH (36 |l 2
=
[TH
At 31 December 2018 12018%F12A318 1,964,248 310,874 819,470 (56) 159,916

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #E#th BB 2GR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3 .



(7]
=
b4
1]
=
Pl
D=
wwn
=l
2=
O
b4
<
Z
(TS

B 75 R 3% B =

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %% i ak BT =

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, 7. ZAREE KEHEZRHERE

OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease arrangements
Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements with lease
terms ranging from one to twenty years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BiEEEME)

After five years =

Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth years, F_EFERF
inclusive (BREEEMS)

After five years AFENE

AR

(a) REHERH
A B ERBATNA
AEBKEBEREHELHEEET
THRETF BHER—ZE=_F+F-

MR2018F12A31H » AEERET
AHEEEREN R RKEENSHE

SEFEINT
2018 2017

—z— 5 [
RMB’000 RMB’000

95,191

429,255

595,832

1,120,278

A E 1E 73 A
AEERBELEMHEZHHEET
ThEF HHES—ZE-_TF-

R2018F12A31H  KAEEBIET
A 1 A2 2 R B A R R (K FE U AR
TREEMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARBT T
203,180

336,470

157,236

696,386
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HE2018F12 A31HIEFE
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, 37.FREE - KLHELTHLEE \
OPERATING LEASE AN EIE ()

ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAREIE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T

Contracted, but not provided for: BT EREE -

Property, plant and equipment Y - BE K& 330,690 399,850
38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER B.CBRITRAKRREE
RESERVES
(a) Issued capital (a) BEETRAE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T

Issued and fully paid: BEREITRERE
2,050,000,000 2,050,000,000
(2017: 2,217,185,000) (20174 : 2,217,185,000)
ordinary shares T A 19,146
A summary of the movements of the Company’s RARIEBITRANESHHELNT
issued capital is as follows:
No. of
shares at
HK$0.01
each in
SREE 2
0.01/& LK Z
BHoEE 2
thousands RMB'000  W=F=
F & ARETT Ko
=T
R
At 1 January 2017 RK2017F1A1H 2,330,760 20,127 o=
s
Shares repurchased and cancelled A% Z & [a] & +F § (113,575) (981) fra
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A31H &
1 January 2018 20181 A1H 2,217,185 19,146
Shares repurchased and cancelled X Z & [ 7 7§ (167,185) (1,443)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H 2,050,000 17,703
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38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Issued capital (continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

38. CBRITRAK ## (&)

(a) ERITRAE (&)

RAREE KRGS BB FAER
ARRBEMDEAT

No. of
shares at
HK$0.01 each Price per share
SRER SRRE Aggregate

0.018 Tt Highest Lowest consideration  Equivalent to
R HE ES i ARE E3F
Thousands HK$ HK$ HK$'000 RMB’000
Month of repurchase  E[E A T BT BT FET ARETR
January 2018 2018514 10,950 1.90 1.74 20,457 16,574
March 2018 201834 9,557 1.87 1.70 17,113 13,717
April 2018 2018547 22,8283 2.23 1.85 45,683 36,910
May 2018 2018554 29,580 2.05 1.88 59,902 48,978
June 2018 201856 34,096 2.05 2.00 70,057 59,070
July 2018 201857 18,458 2,05 2.03 37,886 32,910
August 2018 2018584 22,966 1.93 1.82 43,192 37,560
September 2018 201894 12,520 1.85 1.78 22,664 19,948
December 2018 2018%12H 6,448 1.60 1.40 10,068 8,822
167,398 327,022 274,489

The Company repurchased 167,398,000
shares during the year ended 31 December
2018. The nominal value of approximately
HK$1,674,000, equivalent to RMB1,445,000
(2017: HK$1,068,000, equivalent to RMB923,000),
was credited to the issued capital account, and
the premium paid or payable and the related costs
incurred for the share repurchase of approximately
HK$325,348,000, equivalent to RMB273,044,000
(2017: HK$163,836,000, equivalent to
RMB139,268,000), was charged against the share
premium account of the Company.

Included in the repurchased shares were
167,185,000 cancelled shares during the year
ended 31 December 2018. The nominal value
of approximately HK$1,672,000, equivalent to
RMB1,443,000 (2017: HK$1,136,000, equivalent
to RMB981,000), was credited to the issued
capital account from the treasury share account.

H E2018F12HA31H IEFE - K
N 7 B B1167,398,000/% i = -+ A%
N TH B #) 51,674,000/ 7T © HE
R A R #1,445,0007T (20174 :
1,068,000 ¢ ' HE R AR K
928,0007T) ' EETABZEITRAE
F - s R M) B RS E
X 18 & B #9325,348,0007 Tt
HERAR273,044,0007T (2017
£ :163,836,000/87C ' HERAR
#139,268,0007T) ' EFF AL R &
B mERP °

B E2018F12A31HIEFE ' &
FEEDR B R ES 167,185,000

1,672,0008 ¢ ' HHE R AR
1,443,0007% (2017: 1,136,000/
ot HHE R A R#981,0007T)  #
HEFREFPFTAARRABE BT
KERF o
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38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Issued capital (continued)

The remaining 6,448,000 shares were not
cancelled and still recognised as treasury shares
as at 31 December 2018. The nominal value
was approximately HK$64,000, equivalent to
RMB56,000 (2017: HK$62,000, equivalent to
RMB54,000).

Subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report, the Company repurchased
a total of 18,552,000 shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$30,437,000. 25,000,000
repurchased shares were cancelled in February
2019. The number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report was
2,025,000,000.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the
difference between (i) the Company’s cost
of investments in the subsidiaries that were
acquired via a business combination under
common control in the prior year and (i) the
aggregate of the nominal values of the paid-up
capital of these subsidiaries upon acquisition.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, each of the PRC
Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until this reserve reaches 50% of its
registered capital.

The SSR is non-distributable except in the
event of a liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as paid-up capital.
However, the balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after these usages.
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38. CBRITRAK ## (&)

(a) ERITRAE (&)

M2018F12A31H - &8 T H
6,448,0000% & 7 8 B W88 - 17
WHERBERR ERAMENS
64,000/ 7T + #HE 7 A R #56,000
7T (20174 : 62,0008 7T - #HE R

AR #54,0007T) °

2018F 12 A1 HEARE XM 2 A
AR TR (E B 130,437,0007T
O] B AN R &) f% 2218,552,0000% ° R
201942 8 - 25,000,000/ Bl B A%
BWAE BHEAREEM A
ARRIEEITHR %) £2,025,000,000

B e

(b) EHE

ERBREONARRERNA B AR
Z BB R R I R 5 A o R R
B I8 2 ) ) 4R B A 7S B (i) A2 B By R
EMBARMNCHRAHERRED

ER -

(c) ZEELAES

R EQFDERDEK B ES
BNEABER  TEMNBARAR
HERBEENE10% (REFERQ
REAEUNETE) DEEEERTR
2 (DEEAER])  BEERFRRA

CEFERBEFMERNE0% -

EERTBREHRRIBRERINA D
K EEETERTBARMER
ETREI A AR EHERETERNL
EXMEREHER - BERFERHE

B ZEAELABEEBRARTE

D AEFEMEARM25% °
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HE2018F12A31HILFE

38.ISSUED CAPITAL AND OTHER
RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(d) Discretionary reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, certain of the PRC
Subsidiaries transferred a certain percentage
of their profit after tax, at the discretion of the
PRC Subsidiaries’ boards of directors, to the
discretionary reserve. The discretionary reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during
the year:

On 15 April 2013, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Jiangsu Springland
International Holding (Group) Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Springland”) purchased a financial product (the
“Financial Product”) from China Construction
Bank Corporation Wuxi Chengbei Branch at
RMB200,000,000 maturing on 17 April 2014.
However, a balance of RMB180,000,000
remained outstanding under the Financial
Product after the maturity on 17 April 2014. In
the course of enquiries with the bank, it was
discovered that a pledge had been registered
on a one year fixed deposit of RMB100,000,000
with China Construction Bank Corporation Wuxi
Yingbin Branch, which was placed in January
2014, by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle
Center Co., Ltd. (“Xishan Yaohan”), at an
interest rate of 3.25% per annum (the “Deposit”),
payable upon maturity.

38. CBRITRAK ## (&)

(d) BERE

RIFP B R RDE R+ BB ES
BENABER  FTHENEBERR
BRARRREMNOBFEAD L (H
EXERBET) ENIEHE - IS
FEEATANEHEBEFRENEERX
EINEME R -

30.BRERTRS
BRRB B REE M EHRBOZ S MG

CAREBAFREETEWUTEXN

5

(a) BRAHBmEREME D FATIAM

RHON - AEBFNERZ BT 8
RSBWTH

MR2013F4 158 T & %= i B (R
TR EBER AR ([TEREM]) -
AAREEZEKBAR  [AFHEH
ERRITRMOBRA B &G
ST E ARE2ETTH IR E R
([BHEM]) - WHR2014F4817
BEH AmeerzEsAREL8E
JCIE Bf E MR 2014F4 5178 B A
&R E - FERBITHERBIRR
B RRIEIREGS L EHEEE
BEaRAR ([HBLUNEH]) @ &
ARIEEEZENB AR f£2014F
1TAEBR P EIERZRITRG AR
RRIEHIE T2 AREAETT -
FUZE R B3.25%H — FHEHF
K(TEHER]) BEBER -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(continued)

On 30 April 2014, to prevent possible losses
and incurrence of further time and costs by the
Group, Jiangsu Springland and Xishan Yaohan
as sellers entered into an agreement with Mr.
Chen Jiangiang (the “Controlling Shareholder”)
as purchaser, whereby Jiangsu Springland
agreed to dispose of the Financial Product to the
Controlling Shareholder for a cash consideration
equal to RMB180,000,000 and Xishan Yaohan
agreed to dispose of the Deposit to the
Controlling Shareholder for a cash consideration
equal to RMB100,000,000. The considerations
were determined after considering the costs paid
by Jiangsu Springland for the Financial Product
and Xishan Yaohan for the Deposit, respectively.
The considerations were to be paid by the
Controlling Shareholder on/before 31 December
2014.

On 16 December 2014, Jiangsu Springland,
Xishan Yaohan and the Controlling Shareholder
entered into a supplemental agreement
whereby the outstanding consideration became
interest bearing at a rate of 3.5% per annum
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2016.
And On 1 December 2016, this agreement
was extended to 31 December 2019. The
Controlling Shareholder repaid RMB98,000,000
of the considerations in the year of 2014
and RMB64,000,000 in the year of 2016
and RMB18,000,000 in the year of 2017.
The outstanding consideration due from the
controlling shareholder was RMB100,000,000
as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
RMB100,000,000).

Up to 31 December 2018, the interest
generated from the receivables amounting to
RMBS3,500,000 (2017: RMB3,797,000). The
Controlling Shareholder had paid the interest
in the amount of RMB 3,522,000 before 31
December 2018.

0.BELXRZ (&)

(a)

(%)

M201454 A30F » Ak 74 £ F
AREELETMEBINERNELEE %
MEREMEBR  JIHREMRRNE LN
AfEERE HEEEAE L E (2K
BENDIEAE R TEE
HWRIZEFIEBRBEREUNESHEAR
kA SETHERMER MG L E
HRIERIERRREAREHE1ET
HETHTER - HEDENIEHE
MABEENERMSLNERTE
WEBTEHRAITHRABEET
BrERERERMN20145F12 431 H
BT o

2014%12 8168 « TR ZEH ~ 511
JBE R AR 5] 7o tp e o
Y8 45 #2 h201551 5 1H /2016
F12881H * & F%3.5% % 11 Fl
B o F2016F12A18 - HZ HIR
B K £20199412H318 - 2014
F EBRREEINFEHEARE
98,000,0007T * 20164 - & X i+ ¥
B A R#64,000,0007T © 20172
B A R #18,000,0007T © A
20184 12A31H  ERIZ K =
HE &% & AR 100,000,0007T
(2017412 A31H : 100,000,000
JL) °

F2018F12831H ' ZE E KK
TH B 4 F B E A R 3,500,0007T
(20174 : AR#3,797,0007T) ° 22
AERE R B 1R2018F 12 A31H Z ATL
57 %5 B AR#3,522,0007T °
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HE2018F12A31HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties

Due from the Controlling R MR % R BR R 0R
Shareholder

Note:

()  The Group had an outstanding balance due from
the Controlling Shareholder of RMB100,000,000
as principal and RMB38,000 as interest received
in advance as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB100,000,000 as principal and RMB16,000
as interest received in advance). This balance is
unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 3.5% from
1 January 2017 and shall be repaid on/before 31
December 2019.

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

390.BEIXRZ (&)
(b) SRBAET MK B

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
20184 20174

12A31H 12A31H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 ARBTR ARBETT

(i) 99,984

Hat -

() A&EBEMN2018F12A318 E
W EREBAAS AR
100,000,0007T & T8 W F| B A R &
38,0007T (20174 : K& AR #
100,000,0007T & T8 UK F1] & A R &
16,0007T) ° it 5K 18 Jh & K4 -
B20174%1 A 18 # A FE F&3.5%
58 FIEEE2019F12A31H
2 ATEE ©

() AEEEXTREBASHETMH

2018 2017
—E—N\HF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR¥ET T

Short-term employee benefits & HiE 8 % 8,526
Post-employment benefits BRE 248
Total compensation paid to THHEEEERAE

key management personnel KO % B 48 58 8,774

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 11
to the financial statements.

AEBEFTRITREZFH M E—
FHBRPERRMFTIRE -
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HZE2018F12A31HILFE
40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 40. HEH B D 7
2018
—E-N\E
Notes RMB’000
Wat ARET R
Net assets disposed of: i EEESFE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 13,850
Cash and bank balances Be RRTER 1,422
Trade receivables W E 5 R 1
Prepayments and other receivables T8 BOE & H b e W IR 17,015
Inventories FE 2,385
Trade payables [ E 5 FR0E (7,696)
Accruals and other payables HAib e 58 R BB A (17,572)
Non-controlling interests FEERE S (2,822)
6,583
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR M 7 417
7,000
Satisfied by: H
Cash AR & 2 1
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash EHTENBATINIRERIRESEEY
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary MAFELTAT -
is as follows:
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR¥T T
&
Cash consideration ReERE 7,000 z
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTHEHIR & MBS EEY (1,422) oEm
A
Net inflow of cash and cash EHEHENBARNE SR e O
equivalents in respect ReEEYRNFER 238
of the disposal of a subsidiary :z;““<
Z
™
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Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE20185F12 ABHIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY M. ZENEsHNERTIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REREEHR S TANEAEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BT :

period are as follows:

31 December 2018 2018F12H31H
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
R R AEHE
NWEMEE
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Trade receivables e Z Z 508 7,796
Due from the controlling shareholder JE Uiz 22 5 IS 3R SR IE 99,962
Financial assets included in prepayments 5+ A 81~ k38 Kz £ At & Uk 5k
and other receivables NerEE 246,720
Restricted cash XREEES 117,408
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEEBY 617,441
1,089,327
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
” R R AGHE
= HEmasE
gm RMB’000
e EE ARE T
N =i
b O %
o I® Trade payables BB 5B 1,178,020
o= Financial liabilities included in AR A ERA SRR
= other payables and accruals Bt ERTemAaE 730,556
= Corporate bonds NEIMES 819,470
Medium-term financing notes FHIEE 310,874
Interest-bearing bank borrowings AT ERITER 1,964,248

5,003,168
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HE2018F12A31HILFE
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY M. ZENE eI A () : P
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
31 December 2017 2017912 A31H
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets
ERk A E Total
e U F A CREE Fe
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT ARETIT
Available-for-sale investments B ERE - 5,188 5,188
Trade receivables U E 5 5RIE 6,412 = 6,412
Due from the Controlling JRE Uiz 42 AR AR R 5K 0R
Shareholder 99,984 - 99,984
Financial assets included in ST ATEAT FE R E e K
prepayments and REMSMEE
other receivables 279,653 - 279,653
Restricted cash XREBKES 113,158 = 113,158
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEFEY 511,198 — 511,198
1,010,405 5,188 1,015,593
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost
RN ”
sHEH) Total s
FERS THERE FEEy g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  [EfEE
ARET T AREFTT AREFTT ﬁﬁm
Bk
<
Trade payables FET B 5308 - 1,278,855 1,278,855  Natek
Financial liabilities included in T AE I HIE R E
other payables and accruals B ERANERAE - 869,430 869,430 e
Corporate bonds NGIIEE - 817,070 817,070
Medium-term financing notes HHERE - 309,974 309,974
Derivative financial instruments ~ fTA €@ T A 13,270 - 13,270
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & 2 R 17f5 3 - 1,863,948 1,863,948
13,270 5,139,277 5,152,547
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42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42.¢BIENAFERAFES
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N
wwn
=l
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25
b4
<
=
(TS

B 75 R 3% B =

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
which were previously classified as available-for-
sale equity investments, management has estimated
the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model and
has quantified this similar to the fair value of these
unlisted equity investments.

The fair values of medium-term financing notes,
corporate bonds and interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities, which also approximate
to their carrying amounts. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2018 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with a licensed bank. Derivative financial instruments,
including currency swaps and interest rate swaps,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to
forward pricing and swap models, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality
of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts
of cross currency swaps are the same as their fair
values.

MR

BEEEEFERERRASEEY  BK
BHHAE - BNEHHIEA S ABENRK
EREMERRH SR EE  FTAEM
BN FIBEREFEROQFER AR
HEREE ZFEEXABENAFE
HEMREEERS -

BE—HRERNZFRELERE
E-RAENRST CRAENER
BENBERALET AFEELT -
TEE AR BRI ATE ¢

AonBEFEAZHTARLMES K
mAIE LT R E R RSB R
EMAnEE BEERFTERAGE
AITHERTRIERMEEELNE AE
ERE YRES BELIFE TR
RIREN DA EEMLT -

FHEIER  AalEHFMETERITERD
AFEFESBIEIERRIR S AR
REEE 2ZHAIAEMUTANRR
B EHRBRMIPAEE - AEER
201812 A31 HEr BRITERH A B I
BEHEREREETEANL o

AEBRFENRITRITESRTA
BE - TECRIAREERER TR
A =B % - FRBRLEHEEREAN
M =B AR R B0 [ (E BT - W AR EE
- -HEABRZBMEHAERNEZER
HBHEREE  INELBAHSERE
KR MEEHR - EREB SN REE
BEEAAFE -
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HE2018F12A31HILFE

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value
There were no liabilities measured at fair value as at

31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2017:

Quoted prices

ETMITANAFERQIFES
ESAC Y

ATV ESHEMN
MTF I RAEESMIAMATE
SLELE

HAFEFENEE
M2018F12A31H » KEE W EIZAF
BftEmWamE-

Ro017F12H318 -

Fair value measurement using
AFEHETHEA
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
BAA EAAT

BZEAE HEGAE
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F=8&) (B=8) ok

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARBTR ARBTR

13,270 = 13,270

in active

markets

i

MR ME

(Level 1)

(5—R)

RMB’000

ARETT

Derivative financial instruments ~ $7T4£ 4@ T & -
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial liabilities

(2017: Nil).
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans, short-term
financing notes medium-term financing notes,
corporate bonds, cash and short-term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

FR - TEsHMEENMERMEBEELF
ENETESE R AE_HFoHEER -
MEEEEm A S HE =R (20174F : &) o

MEEREEREBEERBK

AEENETZ2RIA  BRITERI
BREBTER EHRESF PHE
B AFES HAeBEHRER -ZF
TRIANTERAGE/RAEEERE
BES AKBHARREMALER
BREANEREENEE  WEREKES
RIBMENE KA -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #E3th B R AR A7) - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 451

(2]
4
-4
(1]
off
g
D=
wawv
[ =g}
2=

3]
4
<
=z
[T




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally currency swaps and interest
rate swaps. The purpose is to manage the interest
rate and currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank loans with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

43. MR EE B ERBUR (#)

AEBEEETTTERRS  TEBRE
MEGH|MEREE SN - BMERT
BEENEEELLBEREELENHNE
EE = L B o

AEBSRTAEELNTERREFN X
Rk SNERR - EERBERBES
R EF2EFEMALRBEE LMXAE
REREEE  EdmT c REBBER
ITEMAE S BERN P B HA M E2.45

=

RSN
AEBFAZHTSHREHEARES
mARERIHF R ANBTERA
E"E o

TRBAREEORBAET GEBET
BREHTE) HARA BB (£ A
H{p 2B R FEOERT) OBRBE -

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax

B B A1 28 A

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis points

e
GRd) #m CEL)
RMB’000

AR T

(/2]
=
E Year ended 31 December 2018 B ZE2018F12831H L FE
i _
CEe us$ £
gag HK$ BT
oI® —
z%3§ US$ ETT
2 HK$ BT
=z
(TS
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A31H IEFE
uss$ =PI 50 (1,588)
HK$ BT 50 (29)
uss$ ETT (50) 1,588
HK$ BT (50) 29
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. 8B EREEEEREBEEK (&) e —
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk Sh s R

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and all transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities were
denominated in RMB, except for certain bank
balances denominated in US$, HK$ and SGD as
disclosed in note 28 and bank loans denominated in
US$ and HK$ as disclosed in note 29.

Certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances,
time deposits and bank loans are denominated in
US$ or HK$ or SGD which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk attributable to the fluctuations
in the exchange rates of US$/HK$ against RMB, the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

Management monitors the foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 3% (2017: 3%) increase and decrease in RMB
against the relevant foreign currencies which is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 3% (2017: 3%) change in
foreign currency rates.

AREBENEHYRNFPEAMLBRMER
SUERARE - RN E28T BT
ETIRITAESRAEIT - BT R T
FHE KM 29 R BERITE FIAER TR
BILAHEN  AEBAZHEERAE
AAREFE -

AEBEETRITEHIAS  RITEXK
TyPAETL /BT FINETTEE - A
SEAEL EBTEARE (HREEE
B EY) 2 MERKE - AR
HRR -

EEEERIERR  UNBEFREE
B ERINE EL R o

TRALAEEH AR L HHEINEE
KITE M2 E3% (20174 : 3% ) K98
BRE MEREEABARI2HRINER
REPEANBBRELRRREEEY
SMNETE R A]RER B A IRRT G - RE
DMEBRENINETENREEERR
B - 307 R B R A R B #23% (2017
F:3%)INEERSBFHELIME o
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A31HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

43. MR EE B ERBUR (#)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Increase/(decrease) in profit BATAES LN (RD) :

before tax:

If RMB weakens against a
foreign currency

If RMB strengthens against a

foreign currency

BEARBHINE TR

BEARBHINE LK

The sensitivity analysis above only analysed the
Group’s year end inherent foreign exchange risk
exposure and does not represent the exposure during
the year as the value of the monetary items and the
exchange rates fluctuated during the year.

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are mainly
deposits with state-owned banks in Mainland China.
The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

US$ Impact

ShEEE B ()
HK$ Impact
EyR-4 Brye

2017 2018 2017
e o2 “E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL ARETT AREFL

(32,298) (1,746)

32,298 1,746

HRFERNEEEBERERKS @ L
BHFREDITEBAEEFRNEA I
ERR DN - ML TEERREFRRE -

FERR

AEEYEEERBREFER A5HE
MRELREEEBNEIEZRERNTE
N EBEBRITHFER - AEELEES
SR RREEEY  BEESHFIAEN
RE M EWSRE NN SR EENRE
BEIVEAHFTENMEAZNRSEER

B o
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Lidle

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3. I EEBEEEEREE (&) "

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk RBE SRR
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of RNEBNBER LTSS T AERNES

funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans, medium-term financing notes
and corporate bonds. Pursuant to the credit facility
intention letters provided by certain banks, the
banks had agreed to provide additional loans of up
to RMB1,146,000,000, subject to available facilities,
upon the Group’s request. Pursuant to the official
approval from the Inter-bank Dealers Association
and the China Securities Regulatory Commission,
the Group can obtain additional loans of up to
RMB2,000,000,000, upon the Group’s request.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

3t0 12 1t05 Over 5
Less than months years years
On demand 3 months =Z - g3 Total
2018 REXK AR t=fA k2 Bt g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%Tr  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETx @
=
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8 BTfE R 374,496 226,335 1,444,007 2,044,838 o 2
Medium-term financing notes PEZE 314,340 - - 314,340 ('; E E
Corporate bonds NeElfEF - 838,960 - 838,960 ] @
Trade payables ERESFE 144,791 1,033,229 - - 1,178,020 ok
Fiancil labies ncluded i~~~ SARHBREER o®
other payables and accruals EiERNLREE 722,002 722,022 %

866,813

1,722,065

EReER RITAZEEERMIAR
TREE(WMEWESHIE) WA &
KERKERHNEFRERE

AEBMHBELERRITER  RHE
BREARMES  UWRHBESHEMENE
EMEMENTEEG BREAEEFK B
REFEERITMEREREE  BITBRE
12t A B #1,146,000,0007T ) & X 58
E-RERTERZEHSMPEFE
CHME AEEFUHBZEIEIN
%1z AR #2,000,000,0007T °

HERRENK  AEEHD A F
8 (A AR REE) BRI TR
B -

1,065,295 1,444,007 5,098,180
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HE2018F12A31HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

43. MR EE B ERBUR (#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FREESEMR (E)
31012 1105 Over b
Less than months years years
On demand 3 months =z -F nF Total
2017 REXE =fiAR TZfEA i3 W g
RMBY000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AREFTT  ARETT  AR%®Tn  ARETR  ARETR
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ 3f BHTER - 891,146 623,207 433,715 = 1,948,158
Medium-term financing notes hEZE - 14,340 - 314,340 = 328,680
Corporate honds NS - - 38,960 838,960 = 877,920
Trade payables ERBEHHE 253,873 1,024,982 - - = 1278855
Financial liabilties included in SAEBEMTER
other payables and accruals EHERNSHAR 869,430 - - - - 869,430
1123303 1,930,468 662,257 1,587,015 = 5,303,043
Capital management EREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

FEEEXRERNTIZARRREBAR
SEREFELE  UHFEBRENELRL
FOUAXHEEBERIBBRRER K
RF2f

AEERELERINESGMERE
BARBEBWELAE - BEFIARE
BARERE AEERSHAEIN TFRE
RIS ~ MREEEE NN ETHR -
7R & B 15 7R 38 7 (E A] SN EB oe 10 Y & AN AR
TE o & £2018F12A31H k2017412
RA31BLLEFE  EABEEAE BX
BAWEEES o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

A3.EEREEEERKE (H)

44

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes medium-term financing
notes, corporate bonds and interest-bearing bank
borrowings, trade payables and other payables
and accruals, and cash and cash equivalents, less
restricted cash. Capital represents equity attributable
to owners of the parent. The Group’s policy is to
keep the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

EXEE (&)
AEENEEABLEERELA ME
7 B &t X AME 5% BARR A B A DB 75
FEo-BEHFRERTHRE ARG
F RBRBRTENR  ENESFHE K
ENRENEFERERERREE
BEVMHGRIREEED - EXEE QT
BEEANEGERD AEENBRRBE
ERABLRERERIEKE -RFSH
REEBRBLERNT :

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFTT

Corporate bonds NAEESH 819,470 817,070
Medium-term financing notes PEEE 310,874 309,074
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRERITER 1,964,248 1,863,948
Trade payables e E 5 R5UE 1,178,020 1,278,855
Other payables and accruals HAib 5 R BT E B 2,408,530 2,449,601
Less: Restricted cash W RXREEES (117,408) (113,158)
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY (617,441) (511,198)

Net debt B 5,946,293 6,095,092

Equity attributable to owners [SYNCIEZ E PN g

of the parent 4,999,914 5,085,404
Equity and net debt HaREBEE 10,946,207 11,180,496
Gearing ratio BEARBLX 54.3% 54.5%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2018 and up to the
date of this report, no material subsequent events
happened.

44. HEMBRER

R2018F 12 A31 BAE MRS HE - #F
AT ENEEEE -
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45

B 75 3R 3% B
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POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position
of the Company at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Dividends receivables
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital
Treasury shares
Reserves (Note)

Total equity

Chen Jianqgiang
(=4

Director

EF

FRBEE
KB QAR

FEMBEERE

MENEE

FE W B 2

BNRE RER
H A & W IR

ReRReEEY

MEEERE

mEAE
H e RA KRB E A

MEREBE

SN

=
BEBTRA
EER
& (M at)

EEEER

T

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NIRRT

RBEHRR - A2 BHRRARELSN

—®-N%
RMB’000
ARETF

645,530

645,530

255
17,730

17,985

918

918

662,597

17,703

(56)
644,950

662,597

m SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE# B ERBR/AA] - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 4}

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
AR¥ET T

391,056

391,056

1,295

243
3,917

5,455

19,146
(54)
377,419

396,511
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

45. & 1 R Bt B R & (&)

(CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Wizt -

RRABEFEEERDT -

Exchange
Share fluctuation Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
Ex
R EE RERE REBH “am
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 418 728,151 (162,292) 145,119 710,978
Total comprehensive income FEZENRBH
for the year - (34,736) (695) (35,431)
Final 2016 dividend declared BEEM2016FE KRR A (100,220 - - (100,220)
Interim 2017 dividend 2017E R ER & (58,640) . = (58,640)
Repurchase and cancellation fREER R
of shares (139,268) - - (139,268)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017E128318 Rk
1 January 2018 201841 A1H 430,023 (197,028) 144,424 377,419
Total comprehensive income FEXEREE
for the year - 19,229 663,630 682,859
Final 2017 dividend declared BEEM017TERBR S (88,059) - - (88,059)
Interim 2018 dividend 20184 IR & - u (54,225) (54,225)
Repurchase and cancellation R E R
of shares (273,044) - - (273,044)
At 31 December 2018 2018F12A31H 68,920 (177,799) 758,829 644,950
46. APPROVAL OF THESE FINANCIAL 46. T I MR AR &

STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on

25 March 2019.

ZM B MK N2019F3H2AKEEE

e e A IR AE T A o
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FIVE YEA

EIEHBERE

FINANCIAL RESULTS

TSP

Revenue

Profit from operation

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to
owners of the parent

Earnings per share
attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the
parent (RMB cents)

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

>
(VS
<
=
=
=
(7]

EFUBRE

[2)
o
<
w
>
w
=
s

Total liabilities

Net assets

m SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  #Eth B R AR AT -

BEES
HEMBHRRE
LON
BRER
EREM
BRAGEARE B

BRALARER

REANEGEER
B (ARED)

BERREE

FRBEAE
RYEE

BEE

RYAE
FRBAR

#aE

BEFE

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=+-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-mF  ZZ-RF  ZE-RE ZE—+F
RMB million

(\REEET)
11,049 10,696 10,889 11,188
4,276 4,168 4,193 4,444
983 788 687 692
646 490 322 338
634 480 325 340
26 20 14 15

As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2014 2015 2016 2017
—2-mF —Z-nf ZE-1F e 3
RMB million

(AREBER)
9,065 10,662 11,266 11,371
2,537 1,580 1,184 1,300
11,602 12,242 12,450 12,671
3,330 5,513 5,562 5,261
3,075 1,511 1,748 2,160
6,405 7,024 7,310 7,421
5,197 5,218 5,140 5,250
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Lai Ho Wai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

* Non-executive Director
* Independent Non-executive Director
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands
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INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 1508, 15/F, Cityplaza Four
12 Taikoo Wan Road
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE

26/F, Wuxi Jinling Hotel
No.1 Xiangian East Street
Wuxi City, Jiangsu, PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, certified public accountants

STOCK CODE
1700

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.springlandgroup.com.cn
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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